
 

 
 

February 8, 2023 
 

AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING  
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

OF THE PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
TO BE HELD AT 2029 EAST AVENUE Q, PALMDALE 

OR VIA TELECONFERENCE 

FOR THE PUBLIC: VIA TELECONFERENCE ONLY 
DIAL-IN NUMBER: 571-748-4021  ATTENDEE PIN: 699-156-889# 
Submit Public Comments at: https://www.gomeet.com/699-156-889 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2023 

6:00 p.m.  
NOTES: To comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, to participate in any Board meeting 
please contact Danielle Henry at 661-947-4111 x1059 at least 48 hours prior to a Board meeting to 
inform us of your needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible. 

Additionally, an interpreter will be made available to assist the public in making comments under 
Agenda Item No. 4 and any action items where public input is offered during the meeting if requested 
at least 48 hours before the meeting.  Please call Danielle Henry at 661-947-4111 x1059 with your 
request. (PWD Rules and Regulations Section 4.03.1 (c) )  

Adicionalmente, un intérprete estará disponible para ayudar al público a hacer comentarios bajo 
la sección No. 4 en la agenda y cualquier elemento de acción donde se ofrece comentarios al 
público durante la reunión, siempre y cuando se solicite con 48 horas de anticipación de la junta 
directiva. Por favor de llamar Danielle Henry al 661-947-4111 x1059 con su solicitud. (PWD reglas 
y reglamentos sección 4.03.1 (c) ) 

Agenda item materials, as well as materials related to agenda items submitted after distribution of 
the agenda packets, are available for public review at the District’s office located at 2029 East 
Avenue Q, Palmdale (Government Code Section 54957.5). Please call Danielle Henry at 661-947-
4111 x1059 for public review of materials. 

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES:  The prescribed time limit per speaker is three-minutes.  
Please refrain from public displays or outbursts such as unsolicited applause, comments, or 
cheering.  Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere with the ability of the District 
to carry out its meeting will not be permitted, and offenders will be requested to leave the 
meeting. (PWD Rules and Regulations, Appendix DD, Sec. IV.A.) 

Each item on the agenda shall be deemed to include any appropriate motion, resolution, or ordinance 
to take action on any item. 

1) Pledge of Allegiance/Moment of Silence. 

2) Roll Call. 

3) Adoption of Agenda. 

4) Public comments for non-agenda items. 
 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT                   -2-                    February 8, 2023 

 

5) Presentations: 

 5.1) None at this time. 

6) Action Items - Consent Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on 
any action item on the Consent Calendar as the Consent Calendar is considered 
collectively by the Board of Directors prior to action being taken.) 

 6.1) Approval of minutes of Regular Board Meeting held January 23, 2023.  

 6.2) Payment of bills for February 13, 2023. 

 6.3) Approval to reorganize the Finance Department by replacing one position and 
adding another position to the Organization Chart. (No Budget Impact –Human 
Resources Director Barragan-Garcia/Personnel Committee) 

 6.4) Approval to award contract for janitorial services to Executive Facilities Services 
for the Main Building, NOB, and Treatment Plant offices and laboratory. 
($39,775.72 – Budgeted – Facilities Manager Wall)  

 6.5) Approval to reject claim received from Damon Conway and refer to Joint Powers 
Insurance Authority. (No Budget Impact – Finance Manager Hoffmeyer)  

7) Action Items - Action Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on any 
action item as each item is considered by the Board of Directors prior to action being 
taken.) 

 7.1) Review and discussion of evaluation criteria for Strategic Water Resources Plan. 
(No Budget Impact - Assistant General Manager Ly/Woodard & Curran) 

7.2) Consideration and possible action on 2022 Salary Survey. (Budgeted 2023 – 
Human Resources Director Barragan-Garcia/Personnel Committee) 

7.3) Consideration and possible action on construction contract award to GSE 
Construction Company, Inc. for the demolition and installation of the on-site 
sodium hypochlorite generator system at the Leslie O. Carter Treatment Plant. 
($589,100.00 – Budgeted – Project No. 22-608 – Operations Manager Masaya)  

7.4) Consideration and possible action on construction contract award to Cedro 
Construction, Inc. for the installation of water main in 15th Street East from 
Avenue P to Well 36. ($294,615.00 – Not – to – Exceed – Budgeted – Work 
Order No. 20-622(c) – Engineering Manager Rogers) 

7.5) Consideration and possible action to authorize formation of an Ad Hoc 
Committee for legal services. (General Manager LaMoreaux)  

7.6) Consideration and possible action on authorization of the following conferences, 
seminars, and training sessions for Board and staff attendance within budget 
amounts previously approved in the 2023 Budget: 

 a) Antelope Valley Hispanic Chamber of Commerce Installation Gala to be 
held March 3, 2023. 

8) Information Items:  

 8.1) Finance Reports: 

a) Status report on Cash Flow Statement and Current Cash Balances as of 
December 2022. (Financial Advisor Egan/Finance Committee) 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT                   -3-                    February 8, 2023 

 

b) Status report on Financial Statements, Revenue, and Expense and 
Departmental Budget Reports for December 2022. (Finance Manager 
Hoffmeyer/Finance Committee) 

c) Status report on committed contracts issued. (Finance Manager 
Hoffmeyer/Finance Committee) 

d) Other financial reports. (Finance Manager Hoffmeyer/Finance Committee) 

1) Accounts receivable overview. 

2) Revenue projections. 

3) Rate Assistance Program status. 

4) Payment transactions by type 

5) Billing and collection statistics. 

8.2) Reports of Directors: 

a) Standing Committees; Organization Appointments; Agency Liaisons: 

1) Antelope Valley East Kern Water Agency (AVEK) – January 24. 
(Director Dino, Board Liaison/Director Mac Laren-Gomez, Alt.) 

2) Special District Association North Los Angeles County 
(SDANLAC) Board Meeting – January 25. (Director Dino, CSDA 
Chapter Chair/President Dizmang) 

3) Palmdale Fin & Feather Club – February 4. (Director Dizmang, 
Board Liaison/President Wilson, Alternate) 

4) Personnel Committee Meeting – February 6. (Director Mac Laren-
Gomez, Chair/Director Kellerman) 

5) Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association (AVSWCA) 
– February 9. (President Wilson/Director Mac Laren/Director 
Dizmang, Alternate) 

b) General Meetings Reports of Directors. 

 8.3) Report of General Manager. 

  a) Department Activity Updates: 

   1) Resource & Analytics Department. (Resource & Analytics 
Supervisor Bolanos) 

   2) Information Technology Department. (Information Technology 
Manager Stanton)  

 8.4) Report of General Counsel. 

9) Board members' requests for future agenda items. 

10) Adjournment. 

 
DENNIS D. LaMOREAUX,  
General Manager 
DDL/dh 



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T  

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: February 6, 2023   February 13, 2023 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Board Meeting 

FROM: Ms. Angelica Barragan-Garcia, Human Resources Director 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.3 – APPROVAL TO REORGANIZE THE FINANCE 
DEPARTMENT BY REPLACING ONE POSITION AND ADDING ANOTHER 
POSITION TO THE ORGANIZATION CHART. (NO BUDGET IMPACT – 
HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR BARRAGAN-GARCIA/PERSONNEL 
COMMITTEE) 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff and the Personnel Committee recommend that the Board approve revisions to the Finance 
Department that include the elimination of the Customer Finance Supervisor position, replacing it 
with the Accounting Technician position, and adding a second Management Analyst position to 
be filled mid-year. The Accounting Technician position has been budgeted at salary range 23.  
 
Alternative Options: 
 
The Board can choose to not recommend these revisions as outlined and consider a portion of the 
recommended changes. 
 
Impact of Taking No Action: 
 
The position of the Customer Finance Supervisor position would be advertised to be filled. 
 
Background: 
 
The current Customer Finance Supervisor has recently retired. This position supervised two 
individuals that oversee billing and collection processing. In reviewing the workload of this 
position and the supervisory load levels, it would be better to change the position into an entry 
level accounting position and a mid-level Management Analyst position for better succession 
planning. The current Accounting Supervisor would then oversee a total of eight personnel that 
includes supervising the billing and collection processes.  
 
The newly created Accounting Technician position would assume a portion of the basic work that 
the Customer Finance Supervisor is performing along with entry level accounting duties including 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.3



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager -2-            February 6, 2023 
 
 
payment processing, financial data entry, and spreadsheet analysis under the guidance of the 
Accounting Supervisor. This position would also serve as backup for the Customer Account 
Technicians when those individuals are out for vacation and/or sickness. 
 
The second Management Analyst position would assume the same job duties as the current 
Management Analyst. This would allow the Finance Department to develop two advanced 
accounting positions to manage both current and future workload. This would also provide the 
option of having two individuals that could assume some of the tasks currently being performed 
by the Accounting Supervisor. This would be the first step in developing succession planning for 
the Accounting Supervisor position internally.  The second Management Analyst position would 
be added to the organization chart but not filled until mid-year as defined in the 2023 Budget. 
 
Supporting Documents: 
 

 Organization Chart revision 
 Existing Management Analyst job description 
 Newly created Accounting Technician job description 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

G.I.S. COORDINATOR

WATER QUALITY/
REGULATORY AFFAIRS 

SUPERVISOR

LAB ANALYST I/II
(3)

ENGINEERING / GRANT MANAGER

HUMAN RESOURCES
DIRECTOR

RESOURCE & 
ANALYTICS DIRECTOR

FACILITIES MANAGEROPERATIONS MANAGER

CUSTOMERCARE
REP. I/II

(6)

CUSTOMERACCOUNT
TECHNICIAN

(2)

PUBLIC AFFAIRS 
SPECIALIST

ACCOUNTING 
SUPERVISOR

EXECUTIVE 
ASSISTANT

SENIOR 
CUSTOMER CARE

REP.

MANAGEMENT 
ANALYST

* ASSISTANT GENERAL 
MANAGER / COOFINANCE MANAGER / CFO

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY MANAGER

ENGINEERING 
ANALYST

PURCHASING 
TECHNICIAN

(2)

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

SERVICE WORKER
III - Foreman

(2)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
TECHNICIAN

PUBLIC AFFAIRS
DIRECTOR

FIELD CUSTOMER
CARE REP. I/II

(4)

SERVICE WORKER
I/II
(9)

SCADA/INSTRUMENTATION 
TECH II/III 

(2)
MANAGEMENT 

ANALYST

ENGINEERING 
TECHNICIAN I/II/III 

(3)

PLANT OPERATOR I/II
(5)

PLANT OPERATOR III

AUDITORATTORNEY

GENERAL MANAGER / CEO

VOTERS

RESOURCE & ANALYTICS 
SUPERVISOR

SENIOR/ASSOCIATE/ 
ASSISTANT/ JUNIOR 

ENGINEER
(2)

SENIOR FIELD 
CUSTOMER CARE

REP.

CUSTOMER CARE
SUPERVISOR

CONSTRUCTION 
SUPERVISOR

OPERATIONS
TECH. I/II

(2)

OPS. TECH. III -
FLEET LEAD

ELECTRICIAN I/II/III
(2)

WATER USE EFFICIENCY 
TECH I/II

(2)

NETWORK ADMINISTRATOR

SAFETY AND TRAINING 
TECHNICIAN

PROPOSED JAN. 2023

LEGEND
*ASSUMES THE ROLE OF GENERAL
MANAGER IN HIS/HER ABSENCE

TOTAL POSITIONS: 92

MANAGEMENT 
ANALYST

(2)

MAINTENANCE 
SUPERVISOR

SCOTT KELLERMAN
DIVISION 1

DON WILSON
DIVISION 2

GLORIA DIZMANG
DIVISION 3

KATHY MAC LAREN-GOMEZ
DIVISION 4

VINCENT DINO
DIVISION 5

OPERATIONS TECH. I/II/III

MAINTENANCE WORKER I/II

(7 Positions)

MANAGEMENT 
ANALYST

FULL-TIME FUNDED POSITION: 92
CONCEPTUAL FUTURE POSITION: 1

INTERN FUNDED POSITION: 0

IT SPECIALIST

CONSTRUCTION 
INSPECTOR I/II (4)

HR & SAFETY 
COORDINATOR

PART-TIME IT TECHNICIANACCOUNTS
TECHNICIAN



6/7/2021 

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT ANALYST - FINANCE 

FLSA Status: Non-Exempt 

JOB SUMMARY 
To perform technical level administrative and/or financial related duties in assistance to 
the Finance Department; to research, collect, and analyze data and prepare draft 
reports; to perform payroll related functions; to provide some highly responsible 
administrative duties in support of the Department heads and supervisors. 

Supervision Received and Exercised 
Receives general supervision from Accounting Supervisor, may receive technical and 
functional supervision from Finance Manager/CFO. 

Examples of Essential Duties  
Duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

- Oversees and administers Payroll Processing (i.e. CeleriTime); performing all payroll
functions for the District including bi-weekly payroll processing, deductions,
adjustments, levies & garnishments, analytical review, audit and reconciliation;
maintaining all necessary back-up documentation for payroll transactions and
communicating with local agencies to manage payroll deductions and payments.

- Oversee the payment of all District payroll related tax and other related obligations
providing necessary documentation; prepare/process and review all quarter and
year end reporting (i.e. Federal and State payroll tax returns, CalPERS, and
requested management reporting).

- Oversees, updates, and develops necessary standard operating procedure (SOP)
documentation for processes within the department.  This will ensure that all regular
tasks can be performed in the case of the primary individual not being available.

- Establish and maintain a wide variety of filing and reporting systems as necessary;
develop record keeping procedures; provide relevant information to relevant parties;
prepare and type correspondence, and compile and type reports.

- Assists with reconciliation of banking processes; and maintain and review detailed
sub-ledgers such as capital improvement projects, accounts payable, accounts
receivable, and customer deposits.

- Assists with the general ledger in preparation for year-end financial statement audit
and prepare schedules for auditors.

- Assists the Accounting Supervisor in the preparation of the District’s annual budget
performing analysis and calculations necessary for completing all necessary
projections and forecasting.

- Assists with accounts payable functions, as needed.
- Assists in performing year-end closing procedures including but not limited to the

setup of project maintenance accounts for the new year, entering cost of living
adjustments (if applicable), and various other tasks.



  6/7/2021 

- Independently respond to letters, electronic mail, and general correspondence 
based on areas of assignment. 

- May perform a wide variety of complex, responsible, secretarial, and administrative 
duties for executive staff and other management personnel; provide routine 
analytical support. 

- Build and maintain positive working relationships with co-workers, other District 
employees, and the public using principles of good customer service. 

- Perform related duties as assigned. 
 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Knowledge of: 
- Principles and practices of administrative and/or technical area to which assigned 

including, but not limited to, legislation, budget, and personnel. 
- Modern office equipment, procedures computer hardware, and software, including 

word processing, database, spreadsheet and accounting applications. 
- Basic arithmetic functions including addition, subtraction, multiplication, division and 

calculation of percentages and fractions. 
- Advanced practices and procedures related to accounting for cash receipts and 

maintenance of revenue accounts. 
- Techniques and principles of effective written and oral communication. 
- Pertinent local, State and Federal laws, codes, ordinances, District functions, 

policies, rules and regulations. 
- English usage, basic mathematical calculations and statistical methods. 
 
Ability to: 
- Perform technical level administrative and/or program related duties. 
- On a continuous basis, know and understand all aspects of the job; intermittently 

review documents related to department operations; analyze work papers, reports 
and special projects; identify and interpret technical and numerical information; 
observe, identify and problem solve office operations and procedures; understand, 
interpret and explain policies and procedures; explain operations and problem solve 
office issues for the public and with staff. 

- On a continuous basis, sit at desk for long periods of time; intermittently walk or 
stand in the field and sit while driving in vehicle or operating equipment; twist and 
reach office equipment; write and use keyboard to communicate through written 
means; perform simple grasping and fine manipulation; lift or carry weight up to 20 
pounds.  

- Operate a personal computer utilizing spreadsheet, word processing and database 
software at an intermediate to advanced level. 

- Perform independent research in carrying out technical administrative and technical 
duties. 

- Collect, compile, analyze and present a variety of data in a meaningful way. 
- Review budget submissions and revisions for mathematical and accounting 

accuracy. 
- Understand District policies and practices to objectively analyze situations to 

determine proper course of action.  
 



  6/7/2021 

- Understand and interpret complex policies, procedures, and regulations of outside 
agencies as necessary to assume assigned technical responsibilities. 

- Analyze situations quickly and objectively to determine proper course of action. 
- Compose professional quality correspondence; write highly detailed technical and 

analytical reports. 
- Maintain a high level of confidentiality of a wide range of sensitive information.  
- Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the 

course of work. 
- Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 

 
EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING 
Any combination of experience and training that would likely provide the required 
knowledge and abilities is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the knowledge and abilities 
would be: 
 
Experience 
Five years of responsible administrative support or technical experience preferably in 
the subject area to which assigned. One year of lead supervisory experience is highly 
desirable.  
 
Education 
- Associate degree from an accredited college with major course work in Public 

Administration, Business Administration, or a related field based on area of 
assignment desired or a Bachelor’s Degree from an accredited college with a major 
in Public Administration, Business Administration, or a related field based on area of 
assignment. 

- Additional specialized training in payroll functions and compliance. 
 

License and Certificate 
- Possession of, or ability to obtain a valid California Driver’s License. 
- May be required to obtain special certifications, depending on area of assignment. 
 
PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS 
Intermittently, walk stand, kneel, climb, and bend in the field; sit while studying or 
preparing reports and driving in vehicle or operating equipment; perform simple and 
power grasping, pushing, pulling and fine manipulation; intermittently write or use a 
keyboard to communicate; and lift or carry weight up to 35 pounds. Additionally, the 
incumbent in this position works outdoors in all weather conditions, including wet, hot 
and cold with extreme sun exposure. Some of these requirements may be 
accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals requiring and requesting such 
accommodations. 
 
 
Approved: June 28, 2021 
 
 
 
 



  6/7/2021 

 
I have reviewed this job description with my Supervisor and agree with its contents. 
 
___________________________________                ______________________ 
Employee Signature                                                       Date 
 
___________________________________  ______________________ 
Supervisor Signature     Date 
 
 
The specific statements shown in each section of this job description are not intended to 
be all-inclusive.  They represent typical elements and criteria necessary to successfully 
perform the job. 



Accounting Technician 

Bargaining Unit: NA 

Class Code: 
ACCTECH 

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
Established Date: February xx, 2023 
Revision Date:  

DESCRIPTION: 

FLSA Status: Non-Exempt 

JOB SUMMARY 

To performing a variety of paraprofessional accounting and clerical duties requiring knowledge of 
basic accounting. An Accounting Technician performs general accounting duties such as reconciling 
accounts receivable customer billing, preparing adjusting entries and schedules, and performs other 
related duties as required. Providing these services in an effective and efficient manner will ensure 
that municipal finances are accurate and up to date. 

Supervision Received and Exercised 

Receives general supervision from the Accounting Supervisor. 

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES: 

Duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 Receive and process night drop payments/payments by mail and customer deposits and
general ledger receipts; sort payments by category and use a computerized system to enter
payments, and balance and post data.

 Process rejected payments.

 Perform backup roll to billing and collections processing

 Assist with lien placement; process payoff demands and bankruptcies.



 Perform a variety of clerical duties including typing, document scanning, and filing. 

 Build and maintain positive working relationships with co-workers, other District employees 
and the public using principles of good customer service. 

 Perform related duties as assigned. 

 

TYPICAL QUALIFICATIONS: 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

Knowledge of: 

 Modern office procedures, methods, and computer systems and equipment. 

 Principles and practices of customer service and interaction with the public. 

 Basic record keeping practices and procedures. 

 Basic arithmetic functions including addition, subtraction, multiplication, division and 
calculation of percentages and fractions. 

 Principles and practices of basic business correspondence including proper English usage, 
spelling, punctuation, and grammar. 

 Advanced practices and procedures related to accounting for cash receipts and 
maintenance of revenue accounts. 

 District policies and procedures related to account maintenance and meter adjustments. 

  

Ability to: 

 Perform a wide variety of clerical and accounting duties. 

 Independently perform responsible clerical and accounting service work.  

 Learn/use specialized customer service information software, financial reporting software, 
and automated meter reading software. 

 Intermittently, review documents related to assigned duties; observe, identify and problem 
solve office operations and procedures; understand, interpret and explain District and 
department policies and procedures; explain operations and problem solve office issues for 
the public and with staff. 

 Learn pertinent District and department policies. 

 Learn basic principles and practices of billing and collections; learn to apply balancing 
techniques with speed and accuracy. 



 Perform accounts payable functions, process and code invoices for payment. 

 Perform accounts receivable functions, receive payments and reconcile with statements or 
invoices for accuracy, process related paperwork, post and update account information. 

 Assist accounting supervisor with account balancing when necessary. 

 Perform rapid and accurate arithmetic calculations; use a 10-key calculator. 

 Perform detailed and accurate clerical work while experiencing frequent interruption. 

 Set up and maintain manual and computerized records, files, and accounts. 

 Analyze situations quickly and objectively; determine proper course of action within scope 
of assigned responsibility. 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of 
work. 

Experience and Training 

Any combination of experience and training that would provide the required knowledge and 
abilities is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the required knowledge and abilities would be: 

  

Experience 

Two years of experience performing accounting/clerical/billing/collection duties desirable. 

  

Training 

Equivalent to high school diploma/GED.   Additional specialized training in accounting is desired. 

  

License and Certificate 

Possession of, or ability to obtain, a valid California Driver’s License. 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: 

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS 

Position requires prolonged sitting, standing, walking, reaching, twisting, turning, kneeling, bending, 
squatting, and stooping in the performance of daily activities. The position also requires grasping, 
repetitive hand movement and fine coordination in preparing statistical reports and data using a 



computer keyboard. Additionally, the position requires near vision in reading correspondence, 
statistical data and using a computer. Acute hearing is required when providing phone and personal 
service. The need to lift, drag, and push files, paper, and documents weighing up to 25 pounds also 
is required. Some of these requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals 
requiring and requesting such accommodations. 

 



Position Min Max
Recommended 

Range 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35

0.215505174 $24.65 $25.88 $27.18 $28.54 $29.96 $31.46 $33.04 $34.69 $36.42 $38.24 $40.16 $42.16 $44.27 $46.49 $48.81 $51.25 $53.81 $56.50 $59.33

Accounting Technician 33.04$     40.16$     23 Palmdale Water District Recommendation $33.036-$40.1554
Account Clerk II 27.84$     36.20$     Cucamonga Valley Water District $27.84-$36.2
Accounting Technician 30.06$     41.45$     Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $30.0631-$41.4485
Accounting Assistant II 31.58$     40.41$     Yorba Linda Water District $31.58-$40.41
Accountant 29.86$     41.77$     Olivenhain Municipal Water District $29.86-$41.77
Accounting Technician II 29.63$     42.11$     Western Municipal Water District $29.63-$42.11
Accounting Technician II 30.27$     36.91$     Santa Clarita Valley Water  $30.27-$36.91
Accounting Clerk II 29.43$     35.87$     Desert Water Agency $29.43-$35.87
Finance Tech II 25.97$     32.35$     Eastern Municipal Water District $25.97-$32.35
Accounting Tech II 27.36$     37.72$     Mesa Consolidated Water District $27.36-$37.72
Account Clerk II 25.90$     31.08$     Rancho California Water District $25.9-$31.08
Accounting Technician II 25.60$     40.00$     Walnut Valley Water District $25.6-$40
Accounting Specialist-15 26.21$     37.08$     Padre Dam Municipal Water District $26.21-$37.08

28.31$     37.75$     
Mid 33.03$     
Min|Max 29.81$     36.25$     



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M

DATE: February 2, 2023 February 13, 2023 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Wendell Wall, Facilities Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 
Mr. Adam Ly, Assistant General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.4 – APPROVAL TO AWARD CONTRACT FOR 
JANITORIAL SERVICES TO EXECUTIVE FACILTIES SERVICES FOR 
THE MAIN BUILDING, NOB, AND TREATMENT PLANT OFFICES AND 
LABORATORY. ($39,775.72 – BUDGETED – FACILITIES MANAGER 
WALL) 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board approve the award of contract for janitorial services to 
Executive Facility Services (EFS) for the main building, NOB, and treatment plant offices and 
laboratory. 

Alternative Options: 

The District can choose to continue janitorial services provided by Quality Cleaning Services 
(QCS) Building Services. 

Impact of Taking No Action: 

Continuation of unsatisfactory performance. 

Background: 

The current janitorial service company, QCS Building Services, has been providing janitorial 
services for the District facilities since January 1, 2007. The quality of the services provided by 
QCS Building Services is unsatisfactory and many complaints have been registered by staff and 
QCS.  In an effort to find a janitorial service that will provide more adequate services and ensure 
the District adheres to a competitive contract allowing other contractors an opportunity to service 
the District, an RFP was initiated to solicit janitorial services. Staff received five bids and all 
proposals were evaluated by District staff. Executive Facility Services (EFS) was unanimously 
selected based on the proposal presented, the evaluation scores, and the overall annual cost of 
$39,775.72. The contract is scheduled to begin on March 1, 2023. The janitorial services 
provided by EFS will include the main building, NOB, water treatment plant, fleet, purchasing 
offices and select services for the laboratory. In addition to the basic janitorial services provided, 
EFS will also perform semi-annual carpet cleaning, hard floor surface cleaning, and window 
cleaning services. This will allow the District to have all cleaning needs provided by one 
company, saving time and money. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.4



2 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

Mr. Adam Ly, Assistant General Manager February 2, 2023 

Strategic Plan Initiative/Mission Statement: 

This item is under Strategic Initiative No. 2 – Organizational Excellence. 

This item directly relates to the District’s Mission Statement. 

Budget: 

This is budgeted under Budget Item Nos. 1-04-4155-420, 1-04-6300-000 and 1-05-6300-000 
with the annual contract totaling $39,775.72.  

Supporting Documents: 

 EFS Proposal
 Janitorial Services Score Cards
 Janitorial Services Annual Cost for Service



Executive Facilities Services, Inc. 
Central Coast – Inland Empire – Ventura County

Corporate Headquarters 
1227 Flynn Road. Suite 307 
Camarillo, CA 93012 
844-780-2626  |  Fax 951-346-3922
www.execservices.biz

Palmdale Water District

Janitorial Services 

RFP: DPW-Project NO 20-30
January 10, 2023

1



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

A. Letter of Introduction. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  . . . .3  

 B.  Profile of Contractor. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 

Connecteam . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  12  

E.  Project Understanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  16  

Project Schedule / Work Plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  16  

Scope of Work. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  18

Organizational Chart . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   27  

 Company Bios. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  . .   31

Transition Plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 

 Company Profile.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . .7 

D.  Unique Qualities or Qualifications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .       12

F.  Project Staffing.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   26  

C.  Qualifications of the Contractor. . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .10

 G.  Quality Control Plan (QCP) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .       . . .  35

H.  Use of Subcontractors . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   39 

Green Cleaning Program . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  13 

Vendor Questionaire . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

I. References . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40

J.  Accept the District's Services Agreement.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  44

Pricing Proposal.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   45

 COVID-19 Response Plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    48

 Certificate of Insurance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56

2

Additional Information . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57



January 10, 2023

Mr. Scott Hulsebus
Maintenance Supervisor 
Palmdale Water District
2029 East Avenue Q
Palmdale, CA 93550

Dear Mr. Hulsebus,

Executive Facilities Services, Inc. (EFS, Inc.) appreciates the opportunity to present to you for 
consideration our Service Proposal and Pricing in response to the following Request for Proposals.

Throughout the last 19 years, we have developed a proven track record of meeting and exceeding our 
clients’ expectations in the quality of services, expertise of staff, and excellent communications.

Our Service Proposal addresses each of the specified items identified in the Request for Proposals identified 
on pages 10 and 11.  EFS, Inc.’s Service Proposal clearly defines our experience and qualifications, evidence 
of responsibility and reference, key personnel, work plan, communication plan, quality control process, 
and additional services for commercial buildings, cities, counties and state organizations with multiple 
facilities and locations.

Having been in the service industry for over 37 years, I have learned that what matters to most to our 
clients is a quality service that exceeds expectations and is provided at a cost-effective price.

Simply, price and service.

We know from strategically growing EFS, Inc. over the last 19 years, that we will not be the lowest price 
quote that Palmdale Water District receives, and we fully understand and accept this fact.

Some of the service providers that will be responding to this RFP will attempt to utilize Independent 
Contractors and will not be providing workers compensation insurance or paying employer payroll taxes. 
These individuals performing janitorial services do not meet the IRS guidelines in order to be classified as 
an Independent Contractor. The State of California has attempted to address this issue via Assembly Bill 5.

Executive Facilities Services, Inc. is in compliance with all State of California labor laws and codes 
including California Assembly Bill 5 and Labor Code section 2776 that covers business-to-business 
contracting for janitorial services. EFS, Inc. will not utilize independent contractors to perform any of the 
proposed services for Palmdale Water District. 

EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC. 3



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

We know that our W-2 employees are our most valuable asset and in response to our current labor market, 
EFS, Inc. knows that to attract, train and retain quality employees, our janitorial base hourly wage will begin 
at $15.50 per hour, the State of California's minimum wage per hour. EFS, Inc. understands that based on 
experience our pay rates may increase. 

With a strategically located and staffed facility in Camarillo, CA., EFS, Inc. is ideally positioned for quick 
responses to ongoing, last minute and emergency situations. EFS, Inc. has additional offices in the Inland 
Empire and Central Coast, with each location able to provide janitorial, day porter, carpet, window and 
upholstery cleaning, hard floor services, and disinfecting services for our clients. We currently service more 
than four-million- square feet of building space per night throughout Southern and Central California, and 
have the staff, training, and capacity to efficiently and effectively serve your needs. 

Jim Ferraro  
Executive Facilities Services, Inc. 
Office: (844) 780-2626   
Cell: (909) 815-0144   
Fax: (951) 346-3922   
Email: jferraro@execservices.biz  

RJ Storm-Larsen
Executive Facilities Services, Inc. 
Office: (844) 780-2626
Cell: (805) 705-4195
Fax: (951) 346-3922
Email: rjstorm-larsen@exeservices.biz

4



Palmdale Water District 
P a g e  | 34 
Annual Janitorial Services - 2023 Powered by ProcureNow 

XV. VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE

XV.A Proposer's Acknowledgment*

By submitting a Proposal, the Proposer represents that it has thoroughly examined and become 
familiar with the work required under this RFP, and that it is capable of performing quality work 
to achieve the District's objectives. 

☐ Please confirm
*Response required

XV.B Proposal Documents - Upload*

Please upload your COMPLETED documents, as one (1) PDF file here. 

*Response required

XV.C Janitorial Services Registration Number*

Contractors are required by law to be licensed and registered with the Department of Industrial 
Relations (DIR). Please provide the Janitorial Services Registration Number issued by the DIR. 

*Response required

XV.D Business License*

Please provide the organization's City of Palmdale Business License Number. 

*Response required

XV.E Required Insurance *

By confirming, the proposer understands that if they are the successful proposer, they are 
required to submit Insurance Documents upon execution of their contract. 

☐ Please confirm
*Response required

XV.F W9

If you have not previously submitted your W9, please upload a copy here. 

XV.G Proposer's Recommended Additional Insurance*

Proposer shall identify additional insurance needed for this project based on its own judgment 
which may be necessary for its proper protection and prosecution of the work. If not needed, 
please enter "None". 

☐ Please confirm
*Response required

55

X

X

X



Palmdale Water District 
P a g e  | 35 
Annual Janitorial Services - 2023 Powered by ProcureNow 

XV.H Service Agreement *

Please download the Service Agreement in the Attachments section and review. If you agree 
with its content, checkmark "Accept." If submitting proposed revisions, checkmark "Proposal 
includes proposed revisions". 

☐ Accept

☐ Proposal includes proposed revisions
*Response required

66

X



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

A path of strategic and sound growth
Over the years, EFS, Inc. has grown significantly through acquisitions and by adding 
new clients. The following is a list of acquisitions that have taken place in the last 
five years and a few of the resulting impacts upon our operations:

• Acquired Excellent Building Maintenance (January 2014), White Glove Professional
Cleaning Services (October 2015), Best Janitorial Services (August 2017) and HMC
Solutions (January 2021)

• Operates from three facilities and one satellite location to increase convenience and
response times.

• Utilizes a computerized inventory system for all locations, maintaining an ample
inventory at all times.

• Hired and trained six full-time Operations Managers, seven full-time Night Super-
visors and numerous site-specific lead employees to ensure continuity and excellence
of service.

• Established four floor care teams and two window cleaning teams.

B. PROFILE  of   CONTRACTOR

A history of excellence

The experience and history of Executive Facilities Services, Inc. (EFS, Inc.), founded in 
1981, is a testament to our ability to serve clients in a variety of business and building 
types throughout Southern and Central California. Jim Ferraro purchased the company, 
with nine clients covering 29 locations, from George Horokia in August 2004. EFS, Inc. 
has grown to serve more than 125 clients with 350 sites over the ensuing years. EFS, Inc. 
has a long history of providing janitorial, day porter, and disinfecting services for 
commercial clients, government, municipalities, and public agencies.

Initial actions taken by Jim Ferraro to enhance the infrastructure and strengthen the 
company’s capacity serve a greater number of clients while maintaining excellence, 
included:

• Established Executive Facilities Services, Inc. as a California corporation on
August  4, 2004.

• Created an Employee Handbook (revised annually) as well as a Safety Manual and
ongoing employee safety training program.

• Developed employee recruitment, training and performance evaluation programs
to ensure continuity and quality.

• Established a long-term relationship with Waxie Sanitary Supply that enables
consistency and quality of inventory.

• Upgraded all commercial cleaning equipment.

• Developed an annual business and financial planning model to ensure future
viability.

• Developed a daily cash flow analysis model.

• Developed a financial stability and capacity to support controlled growth year
over year

7



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

• A proven ability to respond to emergency situations including COVID-19 disinfecting/
deep cleans at client facilities. Certified to perform COVID-19 disinfecting services.

• Utilizes ONLY W-2 employees to perform services, does NOT use independent
contractors and is NOT a franchised organization.
• In compliance with Assembly Bill 5 and registered with the Department of Industrial
Relations.

• EFS, Inc. has earned a solid reputation and currently services 350 sites within Southern
and Central California.

• Experience spans a range from commercial clients with a single location to school
districts with multiple sites and everything in between.

• Warehouse and office facilities in Riverside, Camarillo, and Salinas California.

• Clients have 24/7 access to company owner

• Maintains a large on-call labor force and all of our supervisors are English speakers.

• Web based communication methods enable swift response times and employees
working on site.

• Financially strong organization that maintains a two-week inventory of supplies in
addition to client onsite inventories

• EFS, Inc. does not have litigation for any past or present projects undertaken.

Building a solid reputation through experience
Executive Facilities Services, Inc. is proud of our reputation as an organization known for 
providing excellent janitorial services. We have built long standing relationships with 
clients through professionalism, excellent communication, and exceptional customer 
service. Here are highlights of some of the clients and services we have been fortunate to 
serve over the years.

• 2004 to present: Provide janitorial and additional facility services to San Bernardino
County Superintendent of Schools for their 34 locations totaling more than 495,000 square
feet of space.

• Spring 2005 to present: Provide nightly janitorial services for all 13 Provident Bank
locations. Perform carpet and window cleaning, maintenance of hard floor surfaces and
replenishment of all paper products and restroom materials.

• September 2010: Provided emergency janitorial services for San Bernardino County
Superintendent of Schools, Desert Mountain Region. Services provided at 20 locations
within days of the request to the client’s complete satisfaction.
• January 2014: Acquired Excellent Building Maintenance and assumed responsibility for
the servicing of 10 Conejo Recreation & Park District locations. Currently provide
janitorial services for numerous outdoor restrooms and community centers in the City of
Thousand Oaks. Responsible for restocking consumables, sanitizing restroom fixtures,
wiping down mirrors, removing trash, and replacing liners. Performed additional services
including emergency water extraction, hot water extraction carpet cleaning, maintenance
of hard floor surfaces, window cleaning, and power washing.

COMPANY PROFILE
The EFS, Inc. advantage

Some of the many advantages that EFS, Inc. brings to the Palmdale Water 
District are:

8



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

COMPANY PROFILE

INLAND EMPIRE FACILITY 
San Bernardino, Orange, Riverside, and 
San Diego County

VENTURA COUNTY
San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, 
Ventura, and Los Angeles County

CENTRAL COAST FACILITY 
Santa Clara, Santa Cruz, 
San Benito, and Monterey County

Service Area

9



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

C. QUALIFICATIONS OF THE CONTRACTOR
Building a solid reputation through experience
Executive Facilities Services, Inc. is proud of our reputation as an organization known for 
providing excellent janitorial services. We have built long standing relationships with clients 
through professionalism, excellent communication, and exceptional customer service. Here 
are highlights of some of the clients and services we have been fortunate to serve over the 
years.

• 2004 to present: Provide janitorial and additional facility services to San Bernardino
County Superintendent of Schools for their 34 locations totaling more than 495,000
square feet of space.

• Spring 2005 to present: Provide nightly janitorial services for all 13 Provident Bank
locations. Perform carpet and window cleaning, maintenance of hard floor surfaces and
replenishment of all paper products and restroom materials.

• September 2010: Provided emergency janitorial services for San Bernardino County
Superintendent of Schools, Desert Mountain Region. Services provided at 20 locations
within days of the request to the client’s complete satisfaction.

• January 2014: Acquired Excellent Building Maintenance and assumed responsibility for
the servicing of 10 Conejo Recreation & Park District locations. Currently provide
janitorial services for numerous outdoor restrooms and community centers in the City of
Thousand Oaks. Responsible for restocking consumables, sanitizing restroom fixtures,
wiping down mirrors, removing trash, and replacing liners. Performed additional services
including emergency water extraction, hot water extraction carpet cleaning, maintenance
of hard floor surfaces, window cleaning, and power washing.

• 2014 to present: Initially serviced 10 Dignity Health Medical Foundation clinic locations
in Ventura and Los Angeles counties, performing a combination of nightly janitorial,
annual scheduled services, hard floor services, hot water extraction carpet cleaning,
window washing, construction clean-up, and disinfecting services. Beginning September
2018, successfully responded by providing janitorial and carpet/floor services for 26 sites
throughout Santa Cruz County. Continue to perform scheduled and emergency tasks to
ensure that facilities adhere to the highest levels of clean-liness for patients, staff, and
physicians. Complete a nightly cleaning checklist available to the site manager on a
weekly basis.

• June 2016 to present: Contacted by Library System Services, managing agent of Riverside
County Library System, to provide janitorial and carpet cleaning/hard floor services at 23
sites throughout Riverside County. Effective July 1, 2016 the EFS, Inc. management team
developed a work plan and initiated provision of janitorial and additional services that
continue to this day.

• May 2020 to present: The City of Thousand Oaks awarded EFS, Inc. the janitorial and
additional services contract for all City buildings. EFS, Inc. seamlessly transitioned daily
services from previous provider as well as respond to emergency calls from the City of
Thousand Oaks for disinfecting services as needed.

• June 2020: Mission Springs Water District awarded EFS, Inc. the contract to provide
specialized, highly-detailed janitorial services required for water treatment plants and
municipalities. The partnership expanded to include janitorial and disinfecting services,
enabling staff and visitors to return safely and confidently to their offices, labs, and water
treatment buildings.

10



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

• June 2021 to present: Western Municipal Water District awarded EFS, Inc. the contract to
service all 6 locations totaling 78,650 square feet across Riverside County. EFS, Inc. was
chosen for its detailed response plan to the scope of work provided withing the request for
proposal. At each location, EFS, Inc. provides nightly janitorial and disinfecting services,
manages inventory across all sites, and performs additional services including carpet
cleaning, hard floor services, window washing, and power washing of various buildings.

• August 2021 to present: City of Agoura Hills awarded EFS, Inc. the contract to service the
City’s buildings, and its historical adobe structure. For all of the City’s locations, EFS, Inc.
provides janitorial services and consumables to ensure that its residents and staff are able
to enjoy the historical buildings across the City.

• December 2021 to present: The City of Costa Mesa awarded EFS, Inc. the contract to
provide services for 11 locations totaling 208,689 square feet and 13 parks across the City.
EFS, Inc. was chosen over the incumbent janitorial provider due to its detailed response,
and work plan strategy to operate and manage all of the aspects of the scope of work that
was provided in the request for proposal. At each location EFS, Inc. provides nightly
janitorial services, along with carpet cleaning, hard floor services, and window cleaning
services.

• EFS, Inc. has performed hand disinfecting services multiple times since March
2020 for San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools (SBCSS) and many other
clients. We initially utilized hand touch disinfecting guidelines detailed in the Additional
Documents section of this proposal. Our company invested in Protexus Electrostatic
Sprayers to disinfect the building from top to bottom to ensure the health and safety of
students, teachers, parents, and staff at all SBCSS buildings. EFS, Inc. was instrumental in
developing a disinfection schedule for both schools and administration buildings as
planned reopening approached to ensure that the organization adhered to all CDC and
State of California guidelines.

• Garnering expertise in COVID-19 cleaning protocols, EFS, Inc. continues to honor
requests for specialized deep cleaning and disinfecting services. Management and
employees respond immediately to contract and non-contract clients for these services at
public parks and their restrooms, city facilities, public and private schools, financial
institutions, commercial properties, and public agencies.

Experience (continued)

11



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

We also created geo-fenced locations in the 
Connecteam app that each employee is 
responsible for. These geo-fences are set up 
with alerts that provide current and up to date 
reports to Supervisors and Operations 
Managers notifying when employees arrive 
for work. This allows EFS, Inc. to verify that 
employees are arriving on time and provides 
our clients with the peace of mind that their 
service provider is monitoring all service 
activities day and night. 

EFS, Inc. has used these business practices to 
outperform our clients’ expectations for over 
19 years and will apply these same 
foundational principles to the delivery of 
janitorial services for the Palmdale Water 
District.

D. UNIQUE QUALITIES OR QUALIFICATIONS
TECHNOLOGY INNOVATIONS 
CONNECTEAM

EFS, Inc. utilizes a web-based, mobile time tracking and scheduling app called 
Connecteam. Connecteam is able to track employees’ hours during their shifts and 
allows the management team to monitor and verify that employees are arriving at the 
job site and spending the correct amount of time at their designated janitorial site. 

Connecteam employs a robust reporting engine to manipulate data however 
customers require. A key feature EFS, Inc. has seen great value in Connecteam is the 
"Who’s Working" widget, which shows you which individuals are on the clock, which 
groups are working, and a map of where people are  signed in at a designated region 
such as the Palmdale Water District as pictured below. 

12



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

Green Cleaning Program and Partner

13



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC. 14



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC. 15



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

E. PROJECT UNDERSTANDING
PROJECT SCHEDULE/WORK PLAN 

for Night Janitorial and Additional Services
In order to fully develop our approach to servicing the Palmdale Water District. EFS, Inc. will 
develop a Project Schedule/Work Plan. We have found this tool to be the most successful for 
ensuring excellent service for new and existing clients. The Project Schedule/Work Plan is 
adhered to by all members of our team. This Project Schedule/Work Plan was developed and 
has been tested by Jim Ferraro, Company Owner, who is actively involved in all aspects of the 
business. We view our Project Schedule/Work Plan as a“"living document" that continues to 
evolve based upon our clients’ site-specific requirements. 
All of our Operations Managers, Supervisors, site-specific lead employees, on-site employees, 
and support staff play a role in our Project Schedule/Work Plan. If EFS, Inc. is awarded the 
contract to provide janitorial services at all of the Palmdale Water District, a detailed Project 
Schedule/Work Plan for each location will be developed. EFS, Inc.’s Project Schedule/Work 
Plan will strictly adhere to the Scope of Work that has been provided in the Request for 
Proposal for janitorial  services for all the Palmdale Water District. 

The Project Schedule/Work Plan will also include the site-specific needs and/or requirements 
that are identified during our initial site visits with a representative from the Palmdale Water 
District in order to understand all needs. We have learned from experience that this 
additional information is vital to a successful startup of services and for a seamless start-up 
for our clients. 

It all begins with an initial meeting with the appropriate the Palmdale Water District 
representatives and the EFS, Inc. management team to thoroughly review and discuss all 
aspects of the Scope of Work. If EFS, Inc. is awarded the contract, we will work closely with 
the Palmdale Water District staff to ensure that each location has been thoroughly cleaned 
and disinfected nightly.
Our Project Schedule/Work Plan will enable EFS, Inc. to create a detailed plan for performing 
the janitorial services that are required as per the Request for Proposal and Scope of Work 
that has been provided by the Palmdale Water District.

EFS, Inc. has reviewed the Scope of Work listed pages 7 through 9 in the Request for Proposal 
in order to make a detailed schedule for each building. Through our 19 years of experience, 
this process allows us to monitor, schedule, and perform regular additional services 
effectively and with little interruption to our clients. Performing additional services at each 
location on a weekly, monthly, quarterly, and semi-annual schedule will provide the 
Palmdale Water District with janitorial services that exceed their staff and tenants 
expectations. 

EFS, Inc. clearly understands the importance of providing thorough janitorial services for 
these locations and maintains the same attention to detail day in and day out to ensure that 
the Palmdale Water District staff and tenants can be confident that the areas they are visiting 
have been cleaned properly. 

Martin Borboa and Carlos Quiroz, the Operations team, along with RJ Storm-Larsen, will 
serve as the main point of contact for the Palmdale Water District and its staff. Martin 
Borboa will be supported by Jim Ferraro, our management team members, and our 
administrative staff throughout the life of the contract. 

Martin Borboa  possesses excellent communication skills, and he has learned that ongoing 
communication is one of the keys to success in the service industry.

16



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

• EFS, Inc. company owner leads the development of the Project Schedule/Work Plan
required for each client and each site.

• It clearly defines hours and work to be performed to ensure that the provision of EFS,
Inc. services are most convenient for the client’s operations.

• It reflects the Scope of Work provided in the Request for Proposal. It will also include
the site-specific needs and/or requirements identified during initial site visits. This
information is vital to a successful and seamless startup of services.

• EFS, Inc. has included the scope of work as acknowledgment of all service items that
are requested by the Palmdale Water District.

• A "Playbook" is developed for each client site. It includes laminated pages consisting of
the scope of work and work plans, floor plans, property maps (if needed), emergency
contact numbers, and any additional necessary information identified during our
initial site visits.

• A proposed Project Schedule/Work Plan is included with this proposal and will be
refined and implemented if EFS, Inc. is awarded this contract.

PROJECT SCHEDULE/WORK PLAN (cont.)

Our administrative staff will play a vital role in the ongoing daily communication with 
the representatives of the Palmdale Water District and/or site-specific personnel. 

Martin Borboa and Carlos Quiroz our Operations team, will be responsible for the 
training of all new and existing EFS, Inc. employees that will be assigned to the Palmdale 
Water District locations listed in this Request for Proposal. Martin Borboa and Carlos 
Quiroz has extensive experience in the managing and training of our supervisors, our 
lead employees, and our front-line employees. 

Jim will be leading the development of the Project Schedule/Work Plan required for each 
site in the Palmdale Water District. Jim has extensive experience in the development of 
Project Schedule/Work Plan that are based upon the client’s Scope of Work. The 
integration of individual site needs that are identified during the initial site visit are then 
incorporated into the Project Schedule/Work Plan. 

"Playbooks" are developed for each client site that we provide janitorial, services for that 
has multiple locations. These books contain laminated pages consisting of the Scope of 
Work, Work Plans, floor plans, property maps (if needed), emergency contact numbers, 
local authority phone numbers, and any additional information we identify as necessary 
during our initial site visits. We use our "Playbook" daily, performing functions such as 
employee training, site inspections by our supervisors, ongoing monitoring of quality 
control, site visits with our clients, and performance of janitorial services. 

If EFS, Inc. is awarded this contract, the following Project Schedule/Work Plan would be 
included in our "Playbook" for each site. Planning for a short window start-up period will 
require detailed planning and implementation according to the Project Schedule/Work 
Plan. We realize that all parties will need to be flexible enough to respond to the 
challenges that may arise.

A detailed Project Schedule/Work Plan is developed for each Executive Facilities 
Services, Inc. client and location. It is a "living document" that continues to evolve based 
on client’s site-specific requirements. 

17



Palmdale Water District 
P a g e  | 6 
Annual Janitorial Services - 2023 Powered by ProcureNow 

III. SCOPE OF WORK

III.A DISTRICT OFFICE LOCATIONS

1. Main Office Building located at 2029 East Avenue Q (See the Main Office Building Layout)

• Main Office Building - 2 floors - 15 offices, 4 restrooms, Main Board Rm, Conference Rm,
Lobby, Kitchenette, Kitchen - 15,594 sq. ft.

• New-Old Building (NOB) - 7 offices, 2 restrooms, Conference Rm, Kitchen - 4,780 sq. ft.

• Fleet Office - 3 offices spaces, 1 restroom - 500 sq. ft.

• Crew Room - 1 restroom, Breakroom - 620 sq. ft.

• Warehouse Office - Office space - 276 sq. ft.

2. Leslie O. Carter Water Treatment Plant (WTP) located at 700 East Avenue S (see the Leslie O
Carter WTP Building Layout)

• WTP - 5 offices, 2 restrooms, Conference Rm, Kitchen, Laboratory - 5,840 sq. ft.

III.B DAILY TASKS for All Locations

1. Vacuum all carpets; spot clean when needed

2. Sweep and wet mop with disinfectant, all hard surface areas

3. Clean and disinfect all restrooms

A. Clean and sanitize sinks, counters, inside/outside toilets and urinals (to include toilet
handles/buttons, seats, and stall latches)

B. Sweep and mop floors with disinfectant cleaner

C. Vacuum carpeted areas

D. Wipe down fixtures

E. Clean mirrors

F. Check and refill all dispensers, to include batteries as needed (paper towels, toilet paper,
soap)

G. Damp clean tile walls, walls, and stalls as needed

H. Empty trash/sanitary receptacles; replace liners.

4. Clean Kitchen and Break Room areas:

A. Wipe down with disinfectant, exterior appliances to include handles

B. Wipe down with disinfectant, tables, chairs, and countertops

C. Sweep and wet mop floors with disinfectant cleaner

18

https://procurement.opengov.com/portal/palmdalewater/projects/28818?section=232362
https://procurement.opengov.com/portal/palmdalewater/projects/28818?section=232362
https://procurement.opengov.com/portal/palmdalewater/projects/28818?section=232362


Palmdale Water District 
P a g e  | 7 
Annual Janitorial Services - 2023 Powered by ProcureNow 

D. Clean top of stove

E. Empty trash, change liners, wipe down outside of containers and surrounding areas.

F. Clean and sanitize sinks and faucet handles

5. Clean all glass interior/exterior doors inside and out

6. Refill hand sanitizers

7. Dust and wipe down all office equipment (general cleaning avoiding any Risk Areas).

8. Empty all trash cans; wipe down outside of container and replace liners as needed.

9. Clean fingerprints on doors as needed

10. Wipe down and sanitize all countertops, tables, chairs in common areas

11. Disinfect entry way push bars, push plates, and doorknobs

12. Disinfect light switches and plates, ADA buttons

13. Sweep and spot mop stairwell; disinfect railings

14. Collect recyclables from marked cans and place in designated areas according to items

*Exception - Water Treatment Plant location - Laboratory will only need daily, wet mopped
(disinfected) floors and trash cans emptied. 

III.C WEEKLY TASKS for All Locations

1. Wipe down and clean windowsills throughout the buildings

2. High and low dusting including cleaning vent covers

3. Wipe down and disinfect inside of elevator (Main office building only)

III.D MONTHLY TASKS for All Locations

1. Wipe and disinfect inside refrigerators and microwaves

III.E BI-ANNUAL TASKS for All Locations

1. Shampoo carpets and upholstered furniture

2. Hard surface floors - strip/wax/buff

3. Window cleaning service, which includes 2nd floor of the Main office building (inside and
outside)

19



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

SAMPLE WORK PLAN 

The Palmdale Water District 

 WORK PLAN / INITIAL SITE VISITS

STEP DATE ACTION PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE

DUE
DATE STATUS

Initial site visits: develop 
building visitation schedule for 

all Palmdale Water District 
locations

Complete all site visits

Add agreed upon additional 
services requirements

Identify site specific 
additional needs 
requirements if 
needed

Identify point of contact 
at each site

Identify important dates for each 
site special events, etc.

Review scope of work with 
facility representative if needed

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

1

2

3

7

4

5

6

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

J. Ferraro / Palmdale 
Water District

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

20



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

The Palmdale Water District

 WORK PLAN / SPECIFIC FACILITY INFORMATION 

ACTION PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE

DUE
DATE STATUS

Identify location of janitorial 
and storage closets

Request alarm codes for facility,  
if needed

Identify all entry and exit 
points for each location

Determine if additional 
specialty cleaning products are 

required for each site

Discuss locked door 
and safety protocol with 

facility staff

Develop equipment needs list 
for each facility

Develop emergency contact list

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

1

2

3

8

5

6

7

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

9 TBD Develop keys / key fob 
inventory for each location M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

21



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

The Palmdale Water District

 WORK PLAN / EMPLOYEE AND LABOR

STEP DATE ACTION PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE

DUE
DATE STATUS

Identify existing EFS, Inc. 
employees to transfer to 

the Palmdale Water 
District

Recruit and train additional 
employees to fill open positions

New hire packages completed 
and new employee ID numbers 

issued 

ID badges made for all employees 
working at the Palmdale Water 

District

Train employees on 
facility safety 
procedures

Train employees on facility 
security procedures

Review scope of work for each site 
with site specific employees

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

J. Ferraro / M. Borboa

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz / 
R.  Storm-Larsen

MI.  Borboa /C. Quiroz / 
R.  Storm-Larsen

MII. Borboa /C. Quiroz/
R. Storm-Larsen / D. Soto

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz

22



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

The Palmdale Water District

 WORK PLAN / EQUIPMENT FOR EACH LOCATION

STEP DATE ACTION PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE

DUE
DATE STATUS

Secure cleaning equipment / 
materials based upon list 

developed during initial site 
visit

MSDS binders placed in all 
janitorial closets

Deliver all janitorial and 
dayporter materials to 

each facility 

Store back-up janitorial and 
dayporter materials in 

Camarillo facility

Secure  special equipment

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

1

3

4

5

2

J. Ferraro / M. Borboa

M.  Borboa / R. Storm-Larsen

M.  Borboa /  R. Storm-
Larsen /  C. Quiroz / 

D.  Soto

MI.  Borboa /R. Storm-

Larsen / C. Quiroz /D. Soto

M. Borboa / R. Storm-
Larsen / C. Quiroz / D. Soto

23



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

1. Review meetings of Scope of Work with all Key Personnel

2. Conduct facility inspections with Operation Manager and Key Personnel

3. Identify and secure replacement equipment (when necessary)

4. Train location specific employees on various entry times, locations, and security
protocols

5. Provide continuous training for employees on safety protocols so knowledge
matches state mandated requirements

6. Review meetings with site specific staff of the Scope of Work

7. Conduct facility inspections with site specific staff and/or site Supervisor

8. Review floor plans with employees to identify areas of service

TRANSITION PLAN
Ensuring a smooth and seamless transition to a new service provider requires 
coordination and clear communication. Executive Facilities Services, Inc. ’s Transition 
Plan begins well before the initiation of services. Once an award of contract occurs, EFS, 
Inc. will have already created a detailed list of items, meetings, and follow-up job-walks 
required to ensure a smooth transition on the first night of service. 

Utilizing our Transition Plan strategy, we will identify key staff members at each client 
location to gather additional site information to enable EFS, Inc. to perform beyond the 
Palmdale Water District' expectations. Our highly experienced management team 
reviews all information and develops a "start- up kit" listing equipment and chemicals 
for each location and site. EFS, Inc. supervisors use this information to provide day and 
night janitorial employees with thorough training and the right equipment.

The first week can be stressful for all parties during a transition to a new service 
provider. EFS, Inc. will provide additional supervision from all levels of the 
organization to ensure that the transition goes smoothly. Our Sample Project Schedule/
Work Plan contains each itemized step that will be used during the Transition Plan. 

Below please find some of the key elements of our Transition Plan:

24



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

The Palmdale Water District
 Transition Plan

STEP DATE ACTION PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE

DUE
DATE STATUS

Develop building visitation 
for all Palmdale Water 

District locations

Complete all site visits

Identify site specific 
additional needs and 

requirements if needed

Identify point of 
contact at each site

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

1

2

3

7

4

J. Ferraro / M. Borboa

M. Borboa / R. Storm-
Larsen / C. Quiroz / D. Soto

M.  Borboa / R. Storm-
Larsen / C. Quiroz / D. Soto 

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz 

5 TBD Identify important dates for each 
site special events, etc. 

6 TBD
Finalize agreement 
for General Services 
between the Palmdale 

Water District and EFS, 
Add agreed to additional 
services requirements to 

scope of work

M. Borboa / C. Quiroz 

8 TBD Deliver equipment kits to each site

J. Ferraro / Palmdale 

Water District

M. Borboa / R. Storm- 
Larsen /C. Quiroz / D. Soto

M. Borboa / R. Storm-
Larsen / C. Quiroz / D. Soto Start of 

service

25



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

F. PROJECT STAFFING

As a service driven organization, our primary strengths are leadership, communication, 
training, and experience. Striving to be both productive and innovative takes a team effort 
by the organization's leaders. EFS, Inc. is fortunate to have an experienced owner who has 
continued to develop a strong management team. Our goal will always be to reduce our 
clients’ costs without sacrificing service or quality. Through our 19 years of experience in 
the janitorial, building maintenance, and disinfecting services, we have found proven 
ways to exceed our clients’ expectations. Currently EFS, Inc. has over 140 full time 
employees and 55 part-time employees providing services throughout California. 

We maintain ongoing training and monitoring of our employee performance at our 
clients’ facilities to ensure that we maintain the level of service that our clients deserve. 
We offer friendly professional service, outstanding quality, and communication that is 
second to none. Each of our references will speak to our outstanding communication and 
willingness to resolve issues immediately if they do arise. 

We pride ourselves on being a progressive company and taking a proactive role when it 
comes to our environment and employees. EFS, Inc. utilizes its 19 years of experience to 
determine the correct number of employees required to perform the services listed in the 
Scope of Work. It is standard business practice to over-staff new clients to ensure that 
services are being completed thoroughly. 

We also strongly believe that our employees are our most valuable asset. Thus, all of our 
employees are offered health insurance, retirement benefits, and competitive wages to 
ensure that we maintain a quality work force and low employee turnover. These business 
practices demonstrate to our clients that valuing our employees leads to exceeding their 
expectations. 

Our Operation Managers and Night Supervisors are trained in safety procedures that 
cover a wide variety of situations that may occur while on the job. Ongoing training is 
performed regularly, or as in the case of COVID-19, in response to emergencies.

EFS, Inc. prides itself on maintaining a current safety manual that reviews: blood 
borne pathogens, CAL/OSHA’s Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP), Cal/
OSHA’s Hazard Communication standard, Emergency Action Plan, personal protective 
equipment (PPE), chemical safety, and vehicle safety which allows our employees to excel 
in their roles. 

One of the keys to success that EFS, Inc. has achieved is consistency in the following 
areas: safety, employee training, ongoing communication employee relations, and tools 
and methods of operation.

The level of consistency practiced by EFS, Inc. is what has assisted us in successfully 
growing over the last 19 years, and will enable us to continue to expand. Our 
management team believes in keeping things simple and not complicating daily service 
responsibilities. The management team recognizes that success in the janitorial, 
dayporter, and disinfecting industry is achieved through continuous employee training 
and having the same employees perform the same function each day and night. It is NOT 
the practice of EFS, Inc. to rotate employees in and out of client sites. We have learned 
that by assigning our employees to the same site, our employees gain additional building 
knowledge and develop a feeling of "ownership" in services that they provide.

26



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

CHELSEA 
STORM-LARSEN 

Dir of Corporate 
Compliance

DEBRA 
FERRARO 

Corporate Finance 
Officer

RJ 
STORM-LARSEN 

Dir of Business 
Development

JIM  
FERRARO 
Company 

Owner

Palmdale Water District

Ventura County Facility Staff

CHRISTIAN 
FERRARO 
Controller

NIGHT 
SUPERVISOR

DAVID 
SOTO

Senior Night 
Supervisor

Palmdale Water District

EFS, Inc.  W- 2 Employees

CARLOS 
QUIROZ
Operation
Supervisor

RJ
STORM-LARSEN

Dir of Business 
Development

CRYSTAL
MATA 
Client 

Relations

BRIT  
BROCK 

Executive  
Admin Assistant MARTIN

BORBOA
Operations 

Manager

Corporate Staff

F. PROJECT STAFFING

EXPERIENCE, TRAINING AND DEDICATION 

Management, staff and employees of Executive Facilities Services, Inc. are its greatest 
asset and the reason the company has earned a solid reputation for janitorial services that 
set the standard for the industry. They are the reason we are trusted to the job right with 
expertise and experience and a dedication to doing our very best for each client. We work 
to ensure that every customer service experience is an excellent one. 

Organizational Charts

Ventura County Facility Staff 

Night Supervisor

ANA
AVILA RECRUITER

27



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

JIM FERRARO
COMPANY OWNER
Since launching his career in 1984, Jim has held positions of increasing 
responsibility that equip him with the leadership, management and 
communication skills to adeptly run the corporation that he now owns. 
After graduating with a bachelor’s degree in business administration 
from Bloomsburg University located in Pennsylvania, Jim went on to 
earn his master’s in business administration from the University of 
Phoenix. He draws on his formal and continuing education and decades 
of corporate experience to lead EFS, Inc. to ever greater solidity and 
success. 

His primary responsibilities include client and employee relations, 
safety and quality control, strategic planning, management training and 
onsite evaluations to ensure compliance with all COVID-19 protocols 
and practices.

Contact Information (24/7 accessibility) 
Cell: (909) 815-0144    
Office: (844) 780-2626    
Email: jferraro@execservices.biz

DEBRA A. FERRARO
CORPORATE FINANCIAL OFFICER
Debra brings nearly 30 years of experience in financial information 
processing and reporting to her position as Corporate Financial Officer. 
She is responsible for all financial functions of EFS, Inc. Debra earned a 
bachelor of science degree in accounting from Bloomsburg University 
located in Pennsylvania in 1984 and has worked in both public and 
private sectors. She has a keen understanding of various business 
structures and accounting systems. She passionate about and actively 
involved in a variety of local nonprofit service organizations. Debra 
joined EFS, Inc. in 2004. 

Her primary responsibilities include client billing, accounts receivable 
and payable, preparation of financial statements, account analysis, 
payroll, corporate tax reporting, and human resources. 

Contact Information  
Phone: (844) 780-2626    
Email: dferraro@execservices.biz

COMPANY BIOS

Corporate Support

28



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

CHELSEA STORM-LARSEN
DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE COMPLIANCE 
Prior to joining EFS, Inc. in January 2021, Chelsea Storm-Larsen 
was director of organizational engagement for corporate affairs with 
Sharecare, Inc. In that role, she managed more than 25 worksites 
to ensure that all team members understood and complied with the 
organization’s policies and procedures. She graduated with Honors 
of Distinction from California State University, Monterey Bay with a 
bachelor’s in collaborative health and human services and went on to 
earn her master’s in public administration at California State University, 
Dominguez Hills.

Her primary responsibilities include corporate compliance, human 
resources, labor and client relations, and internal quality control.

Contact Information   
Phone: (844) 780-2626    
Email: cstorm-larsen@execservices.biz

CHRISTIAN FERRARO
CONTROLLER 
Christian joined EFS, Inc. in 2010 and learned the business from the 
ground up. He worked with a variety of clients and projects garnering 
extensive experience in operations management, financial reporting and 
the nuances of the janitorial, disinfecting, and building maintenance 
industry. He transitioned to the position of controller where he currently 
oversees financial operations for the headquarters facility in Riverside. 
He is a graduate of California State University, Chico, holding a 
bachelor’s in business finance.

His primary responsibilities include financial reporting, client 
relations, quality control, staff supervision and training, disinfecting 
training, and COVID-19 onsite evaluations.

Contact Information (24/7 accessibility) 
Cell: (951) 776-7249  
Office: (844) 780-2626  
Email: cferraro@execservices.biz

COMPANY BIOS

29



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

RJ STORM-LARSEN
DIRECTOR OF BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT / 

OPERATION MANAGER
RJ Storm-Larsen joined EFS, Inc. in January 2017 and worked alongside 
the company’s janitorial, disinfecting, and floor service teams to develop 
a thorough working knowledge of operations. Today, he serves as 
director of business development. RJ graduated from California State 
University, Monterey Bay with a bachelor’s in science and went on to 
earn a master’s in business administration from the same university. He 
continues to take a hands-on approach to hone his skills and expand his 
knowledge of the industry via his ongoing involvement with staff and 
clients.

His primary responsibilities include client relations, customer service, 
business development, quality control, and support for operations 
managers. 

Contact Information (24/7 accessibility) 
Cell: (805) 705-4195   
Office: (844) 780-2626  
Email: rjstorm-larsen@execservices.biz

BRITTANEE BROCK
EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 
Brittanee joined EFS, Inc. in 2015 and serves as the primary point of 
contact for our clients. She facilitates client requests, work orders, 
responses and follow up to ensure continuity and consistency of service. 
Her additional responsibilities include tag job scheduling, payroll 
processing and COVID-19 pre-site evaluations.

Contact Information   
Office: (844) 780-2626    
Email: bbrock@execservices.biz

COMPANY BIOS

30



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

COMPANY BIOS

DAVID SOTO
SENIOR NIGHT SUPERVISOR 

David, who joined EFS, Inc. in 2022 has been 
in the janitorial industry for more than 15 
years. David has worked throughout Southern 
California supervising both day porter and 
janitorial services. David serves as EFS, Inc. 
night supervisor in Ventura County and is 
responsible for oversight of operations and 
quality control. 

BRYANT CHICAS
CARPET AND FLOOR SPECIALIST
Bryant joined EFS, Inc. in 2019 after working 
with Martinez and Associates Management 
for seven years. There, he managed multiple 
mobile home facilities in Southern California 
and was responsible for project development 
and management, rule enforcement, rent 
collection, site maintenance, janitorial 
management, and responding to facility 
emergencies. Bryant brings his ample 
experience to EFS, Inc. where his 
responsibilities continue to expand based 
upon his excellent performance. 
Contact Information   
Cell: (805) 523-3015
Office: (844) 780-2626    
Email: bchicas@execservices.biz

Central Coast Facility Staff

MARTIN BORBOA 
OPERATIONS MANAGER 

MAIN POINT OF CONTACT

Martin joined EFS, Inc. in 2014 and devoted 
himself to gaining a keen understanding of 
janitorial, building maintenance, and disin-
fecting services by working with the company’s 
cleaning crews and trained technicians. With 
each opportunity, he quickly adapted and grew 
to meet the requirements of operations within 
EFS, Inc. 

His primary responsibilities include safety, 
supply inventory management, quality control, 
equipment maintenance, employee training, 
site inspections, disinfecting training and 
services, and COVID-19 onsite evaluations.
Contact Information (24/7 accessibility) 

Cell: (951) 776-6382
Office: (844) 780-2626
Email: mborboa@execservices.biz

CARLOS QUIROZ
DAY OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR 
Carlos, who joined EFS, Inc. in 2014 has been 
in the janitorial industry for more than 25 
years. He has worked throughout Southern 
California supervising both day porter and 
janitorial services. He serves as EFS, Inc. day 
super-visor in Ventura County and is 
responsible for oversight of operations and 
quality control departments for Ventura 
County clients. Carlos is a Certified Floor Care 
Specialist and assists in the supervision of our 
floor care teams and nightly cleaning crews.

31



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

• Every person being considered for employment undergoes an in-person interview with a 
member of our management team. Each potential employee receives a new hire packet 
containing current tax, immigration, workers compensation labor code, and health benefits 
forms. Our human resources department uses the information to perform a thorough 
background check and to verify that each of our employees is a U.S. citizen.

• EFS, Inc. is ADA compliant and an Equal Opportunity Employer. We are committed to 
diversity and inclusion in the workplace. We prohibit discrimination and harassment of any 
kind based on race, color, sex, religion, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, genetic 
information, pregnancy, or any other protected characteristic as outlined by federal, state, or 
local laws. This policy applies to all employment practices within our organization, including 
hiring, recruiting, promotion, termination, layoff, recall, leave of absence, compensation, 
benefits, training, and apprenticeship. EFS, Inc. makes hiring decisions based solely on 
qualifications, merit, and business needs at the time.

• Once a potential employee is hired, they are monitored by one of our management staff 
while working alongside an experienced employee at a current client’s job site.

• EFS, Inc. employees wear uniforms that are appropriate and identifies them as an employee 
of EFS, Inc. This includes full-length pants, a navy blue short-sleeve shirt with the EFS, Inc. 
logo on the left chest area, closed-toed shoes and all correct Personal Protective Equipment 
required while on property performing services for the Palmdale Water District.

• Training will cover the specific services, processes and scope of work for the Palmdale Water 
District

• This training method ensures that each employee understands the standards that EFS, Inc. 
expects, and the services outlined in the Scope of Work provided by the Palmdale Water 
District.

• New employees will be monitored by the Operations Manager to ensure that if any 
additional re-training is necessary, it is performed immediately onsite. This method of 
employee training has proven to be successful over our 19 years of service and demonstrates 
to our clients that EFS, Inc.’s employees that perform janitorial can exceed their 
expectations.

TRAINING PROGRAMS
To ensure consistency, accountability and competency throughout the organization, 
Executive Facilities Services, Inc. puts a high priority on recruiting, vetting, hiring 
and training our most valuable asset--our employees. Investing time in hiring 
qualified and dependable employees and equipping them with the tools they need to 
provide each client with excellent service is a hallmark of EFS, Inc.

Recruitment, Hiring and Training New Employees

32



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

TRAINING PROGRAMS

Ongoing Training is a Shared Responsibility

Training is an ongoing process at Executive Facilities Services, Inc. It’s a strategy and 
value we utilize whether in response to a change in employment law, OSHA or other 
government agency criteria, identified opportunities where we can do things even better 
or a change in processes or policies at a client’s business. It is also a way to invest in the 
future of EFS, Inc. employees, providing tools and supporting them so they can do and be 
their very best. 
Training janitorial employees is a shared responsibility within the EFS, Inc. organization. 
The owners, managers, and supervisors work together to establish training goals, identify, 
communicate and facilitate training and ensure that the related goals are met. 

Workplace safety is a top priority at EFS, Inc. Our supervisors perform nightly site 
inspections and use their observations and data to identify additional workplace safety 
training opportunities. Proper training can then be applied to ensure that employees are 
safely performing their required duties. 

EFS, Inc. documents and reports trainings for all personnel performing work under this 
contract. Trainings include refreshers in Cal/OSHA’s Injury and Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) standard, Cal/OSHA Hazard Communication standard, Emergency 
Action Plan standard, and Blood Borne Pathogen protocols. Additional on-the-job 
training is completed when a new product or procedure is to be implemented. 

Training extends to on-call staffing 

EFS, Inc. understands that emergencies, last-minute requests and special circumstances 
that require an infusion of additional staff can happen at any time. That is why EFS, Inc. 
maintains well-trained, regular and specialized on-call staff at all levels. 

EFS, Inc. has a large labor pool of established employees that are able to perform a wide 
variety of janitorial, disinfecting, and building maintenance services should the need 
arise. EFS, Inc. will utilize these experienced and trained employees should back-up 
staffing be required.  

Executive Facilities Services, Inc. has numerous resources to ensure that the services 
outlined in the Scope of Work are completed day and night. 

33



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

CAL/OSHA
Training

Emergency
Action Plan

SUPERVISORY EXPERIENCE
Executive Facilities Services, Inc. has a proven track record of client satisfaction due in 
large part to the selection, training, experience and dedication of our management team 
and supervisory staff.  

A rigorous training program ensures a thorough understanding of the industry, the 
extensive range of services provided by EFS, Inc., company policies and procedures and 
OSHA protocols for workplace safety, Injury and Illness Prevention, Hazard 
Communication standards and Emergency Action Plans. If awarded the contract, we will 
provide the Palmdale Water District with our IIPP within 30 days.

Supervisors routinely perform building inspections to review completed work as well 
as work in progress. Supervisors are authorized and equipped to respond to questions 
and requests and address any issues that require resolution. 

All EFS, Inc. supervisors are equipped with a phone to provide clients with 24-hour 
access via call, email or text. 

No more than nine employees are assigned to a single supervisor for the duration of the 
contract. All supervisors are fluent English in both verbal and written communications.

Highly-trained, vetted and professional supervisors support each employee to 
ensure their success in carrying out daily responsibilities and that they understand their 
value to the organization and our clients. 

Injury & Illness
Prevention Program

Hazard Communication 
Standard

SUPERVISOR 
EXPERIENC
E

34



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

• Monthly inspection reports summarize any reported issues and how they were 
resolved.

• Site visit schedules are developed weekly and unannounced, enabling EFS, Inc. to 
monitor and control the quality of service as well as interact with onsite employees on 
a regular basis.

• A copy of our Building Inspection form can be found on the page following this one. 
Each time a site is visited by an EFS, Inc. supervisor, whether it be a service issue, a 
supply delivery or a weekly site visit, the form is completed by the supervisor. 
Operations Managers review all Building Inspection forms daily/nightly to ensure that 
any issues are addressed and resolved.

• EFS, Inc. and its management team will ensure that each of the Palmdale Water 
District' buildings remains secure during provision of services. The EFS, Inc. 
Operations Manager will train each employee on the proper door locking etiquette 
and alarm system protocols, and verify that all protocols are being followed.

• EFS, Inc. has the responsibility of categorizing and storing highly specialized keys, 
access cards, and key fobs for clients. As can be seen from our current client list 
provided with the proposal, EFS, Inc. works with several cities, municipalities, and 
private and public entities. We store all client keys in a locked key box at our location 
in Camarillo, CA. This facility has 24-hour surveillance and an alarm system.

• EFS, Inc. will not duplicate keys to any of the Palmdale Water District locations 
without permission.

G. QUALITY CONTROL PLAN (QCP)
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND QUALITY CONTROL
Executive Facilities Services, Inc. has learned from experience that the most effective 
method in ensuring quality service to our clients is through routine site visits. All sites 
serviced by EFS, Inc. are visited by supervisors on a bi-weekly basis in addition to regular 
supplies delivery and inspections. Also, the Palmdale Water District will be visited by 
Jim Ferraro, Company Owner, Martin Borboa, Operations Managers, Carlos Quiroz, 
Day Supervisor, David Soto, Night Supervisor. All operations managers and supervisors 
carry a smart phone so they can respond quickly to requests for required or emergency 
services. 

During nightly visits to various sites, our staff members review and assess all aspects of 
the buildings included in the Scope of Work. If any issues are noticed by a staff member, 
the employee is made aware and the issues are addressed and resolved that evening. We 
believe that this is a foundational business practice between EFS, Inc. and its clients. It 
creates a fast-track line of communication between EFS, Inc. and our clients to ensure 
that they are receiving the highest of quality service.

35



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

BUSINESS FORMS

Janitorial Inspection Sheet

36



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

KEY PRINCIPLES OF CUSTOMER SERVICE
Excellent customer service is at the heart of Executive Facilities Services, Inc. Our 
guiding customer service principles--Reliability, Assurance, Responsiveness and 
Empathy -- are known and practiced at every level of the organization.

Our history of providing high-quality customer service is evidenced by the many 
longstanding client relationships we maintain and is one of the key reasons new clients 
choose to work with EFS, Inc. EFS, Inc. provides a 24-hour customer service line that 
is always answered by a team member rather than an answering machine. EFS, Inc. is 
agile and responsive to any and all requests including those for COVID-related issues, 
and other emergencies and unexpected needs. all requests including those for 
COVID-related issues, and other emergencies and unexpected needs. 

The EFS, Inc. administrative team will acknowledge all emails within two hours of 
receipt and provide a timeline for resolution expediently. Client requests, work orders, 
service challenges, or important information are quickly communicated to the 
respective operations manager who will provide updates on all requests. 

EFS, Inc. has the proven capability to handle all requests related to the COVID-19 
pandemic. Our references will demonstrate that as the pandemic continues to change 
the requirements for state and federal agencies, EFS, Inc. has continually met the 
challenge. 

37



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

EFS, Inc. Client Service Principles

• Client 
specifications are 
confirmed and 
adhered to Client 
communication, 
statements, 
reports, and 
responses are on 
time and accurate

• Consistent level of 
service and 
delivery 
importance placed 
on each and every 
client interaction

• Staff is familiar 
with procedures 
and technology 
and answers 
questions with 
accuracy

• Clients can access
executive 
management 
directly at any time

• Client 
requirements are 
met in an 
atmosphere
of calmness, 
capability, and 
enthusiasm

• Staff is well trained 
to respond to 
exceptional 
requests, and can 
think outside the 
box to provide 
answers and 
solutions

•

•

Client satisfaction 
is prioritized, 
monitored, 
measured, and 
managed
Clients can reach a 
representative by 
phone or online 24 
hours a day to get 
answers to 
questions

• Service quality 
issues are 
addressed and 
resolved quickly

• Clients will receive 
continuing updates 
on service 
challenges until the 
issue is fully 
resolved

• Staff are well
trained to listen to 
customers 
empathetically 
and professionally

• Staff can analyze 
and solve customer 
service issues

• Client issues are 
resolved fairly and 
quickly by staff 
advocating at 
higher levels

Reliability

Responsiveness 

Assurance

Empathy

KEY PRINCIPLES OF CUSTOMER SERVICE

38



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

H. USE OF SUBCONTRACTORS
Executive Facilities Services, Inc. will not utilize subcontractors to complete any of the 
services items listed within the Scope of Work. 

EFS, Inc.'s proven track record of utilizing W-2 employees over subcontractors and 
independent contractors has lead to an excellent industry reputation. 

39



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

Reference: City of Thousand Oaks 

Contact: Elizabeth Perez, Facilities Manager 
Phone Number: (805) 449-2225 
Email: edperez@toaks.org
Project Cost: $ 695,583

EFS, Inc. Staff Involved: Jim Ferraro, Christian Ferraro, RJ Storm-Larsen, Martin 
Borboa, Carlos Quiroz, David Soto

Executive Facilities Services, Inc. started services for the City of Thousand Oaks in July 
of 2020, and currently we service 11 of the City's buildings that are located throughout 
the City of Thousand Oaks. 

EFS, Inc. currently provides janitorial services to administrative, maintenance, and 
community centers throughout the City of Thousand Oaks. At each of the locations, 
EFS, Inc. is responsible for sweeping and mopping, vacuuming carpeted areas, 
horizontal surface disinfecting wipe downs, spot glass cleaning, restocking consumables, 
sanitizing all restroom fixtures, wiping down mirrors, removing trash, and replacing 
liners. 

EFS, Inc. has performed additional services such as: emergency water extraction, hot 
water extraction carpet cleaning, hard floor services, window cleaning, emergency 
disinfecting services, and power washing. 

Service Date: 
Awarded contract in May of 2020 

I. REFERENCES

40



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

Reference: City of Oxnard, Water Department

Contact: Ms. Jazmin Chatsworth
Phone Number: 805-200-5372
Email: jazmin.charlesworth@oxnard.org
Project Cost: $ 191,560
EFS, Inc. Staff Involved: Jim Ferraro, Martin Borboa, Carlos Quiroz, David Soto, RJ 
Storm-Larsen, 

Executive Facilities Services, Inc. was awarded the contract for the City of Oxnard, 
Water Department in January of 2022.  

EFS, Inc. currently provides janitorial services to numerous locations including the 
Advanced Water Treatment , Waste Water Treatment Plant, Water Campus, Del 
Norte Recycling Facility, and three blending stations for the City of Oxnard. At 
each of these City of Oxnard locations, EFS, Inc. is responsible for nightly janitorial 
services, carpet cleaning services, hard floor services, and window cleaning 
services. 

EFS, Inc. has partnered with the City of Oxnard to better provide building and 
janitorial support to each of its facilities and staff that utilizes each site.  

Service Date: 
Awarded contract in February 2022

References List

41



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

Reference: Western Municipal Water District

Contact: Ms. Maribel Herrara
Phone Number: 951-789-5137
Email: MHerrera@wmwd.com
Project Cost: $ 162,737
EFS, Inc. Staff Involved: Jim Ferraro, Christian Ferraro, Francisco Mendoza, RJ Storm-
Larsen, Vicki Rivera

Executive Facilities Services, Inc. was awarded the contract for the Western Municipal 
Water District in May of 2021. 

EFS, Inc. currently provides janitorial services to numerous locations including the 
Wastewater Recycling Facility, Operations Facility, Arlington Desalter, Western 
Riverside County Regional Wastewater Authority, and Western Municipal Water 
District Headquarters. At each of these Western Water locations, EFS, Inc. is 
responsible for nightly janitorial services, disinfecting services, carpet cleaning 
services, hard floor services, and window cleaning services. 

Service Date: 
Awarded contract in May 2021

References List

42



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

The Palmdale Water District 

SAMPLE OF SIMILAR CLIENTS

CLIENT NAME # OF 
LOCATIONS

SQ
FOOTAGE

ANNUAL
COSTS

Riverside County 
Library System

Riverside County 
Library System

Provident Bank

San Bernardino County 
Superintendent 

of Schools

City of Thousand Oaks

Conejo Recreation & 
Park District

1998

2016

2005

2010

2020

2014

2014

10/2009

Under 
contract

Under 
contract

Under 
contract

Under 
contract

Under 
contract

Under 
contract

22

26

14

34

15

10

41

226,300

326,208

885,203

495,937

296,804

136,308

$258,000

$715,645

$205,640

$1,253,686

$404,093

$286,204

$610,060

CONTRACT
START

CONTRACT
END

Dignity Health Medical 
Foundation

City of Costa Mesa 2021 Under 
Contract 24 $580,551170,013

City of Agoura Hills 2021 Under 
Contract

2 21,098 $28,065

PENNYMAC 2022 Under 
Contract 4 210,000 $907,012

43



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

J. ACCEPT THE DISTRICT'S SERVICE AGREEMENT
Executive Facilities Services, Inc. accepts the service agreement that the Palmdale 
Water District has provided. 

44



Palmdale Water District 
P a g e  | 31 
Annual Janitorial Services - 2023 Powered by ProcureNow 

XIV. PRICING PROPOSAL

ANNUAL JANITORIAL SERVIES 

Please enter the charge for services only. Do not include costs of supplies as this will vary. 

Line Item Description Quantity Unit of 
Measure 

Unit Cost Total 

1 Main Office Building (2 floors) - 
Monthly Invoice Charge for Daily tasks 

1 monthly 

2 Main Office Building (2 floors) - 
Monthly Invoice Charge for Weekly 
tasks 

1 monthly 

3 Main Office Building (2 floors) - 
Monthly Invoice Charge for Monthly 
tasks 

1 monthly 

4 Main Office Building (2 floors) - Bi-
Annual Carpet Cleaning 

1 bi-annual 

5 Main Office Building (2 floors) - Bi-
Annual Hard Surface Floors 
(strip/wax/buff) 

1 bi-annual 

6 Main Office Building (2 floors) - Bi-
Annual Window Cleaning 

1 bi-annual 

7 New-Old Building (NOB), Fleet Office, 
Warehouse Office, Crew Breakroom - 
Monthly Invoice Charge for Daily Tasks 

1 monthly 

8 New-Old Building (NOB), Fleet Office, 
Warehouse Office, Crew Breakroom - 
Monthly Invoice Charge for Weekly 
Tasks 

1 monthly 

9 New-Old Building (NOB), Fleet Office, 
Warehouse Office, Crew Breakroom - 
Monthly Invoice Charge for Monthly 
Tasks 

1 monthly 

10 New-Old Building (NOB) - Bi-Annual 
Carpet Cleaning 

1 bi-annual 

11 New-Old Building (NOB), Warehouse 
Office, Crew Breakroom - Bi-Annual 
Hard Surface Floors (strip/wax/buff) 

1 bi-annual 

45

$1,415.34

$283.07

$188.71

$873.26

$842.08

$408.00

$403.39

$80.88

$53.92

$381.28

$253.80

$1,415.34

$283.07

$188.71

$873.26

$842.08

$408.00

$403.39

$80.88

$53.92

$381.28

253.80



Palmdale Water District 
P a g e  | 32 
Annual Janitorial Services - 2023 Powered by ProcureNow 

Line Item Description Quantity Unit of 
Measure 

Unit Cost Total 

12 New-Old Building (NOB) - Bi-Annual 
Window Cleaning 

1 bi-annual 

13 Water Treatment Plant (WTP) - 
Monthly Invoice Charge for Daily Tasks 

1 monthly 

14 Water Treatment Plant (WTP) - 
Monthly Invoice Charge for Weekly 
Tasks 

1 monthly 

15 Water Treatment Plant (WTP) - 
Monthly Invoice Charge for Monthly 
Tasks 

1 monthly 

16 Water Treatment Plant (WTP) - Bi-
Annual Carpet Cleaning 

1 bi-annual 

17 Water Treatment Plant (WTP) - Bi-
Annual Hard Surface Floors 
(strip/wax/buff) 

1 bi-annual 

18 Water Treatment Plant (WTP) - Bi-
Annual Window Cleaning 

1 bi-annual 

TOTAL 

LABOR RATES 

Line Item Description Quantity Unit of 
Measure 

Unit Cost Total 

1 Janitor 1 hourly 

2 Emergency On-Call 1 hourly 

3 Window Washer 1 hourly 

4 Carpet Cleaner/Hard Surface Floor 
Cleaner 

1 hourly 

5 Upholstered furniture cleaning 1 hourly 

TOTAL 

INITIAL CLEANING FOR ALL BUILDINGS 

46

$220.00

$133.45

$26.69

$17.79

$140.16

$735.84

$408.00

$220.00

$135.45

$26.69

$17.79

$140.16

$735.84

$408.00

$6,866.66

$31.11

$31.11

$36.72

$44.81

$44.81

$31.11

$31.11

$36.72

$44.81

$44.81

$188.56



Palmdale Water District 
P a g e  | 33 
Annual Janitorial Services - 2023 Powered by ProcureNow 

Line Item Description Quantity Unit of 
Measure 

Unit Cost Total 

1 Main Office Building - Daily, Weekly, 
and Monthly tasks 

1 Lump Sum 

2 New-Old Building (NOB) - Daily, 
Weekly, and Monthly tasks 

1 Lump Sum 

3 Crew Breakroom, Fleet Office, 
Warehouse Office - Daily, Weekly, and 
Monthly tasks 

1 Lump Sum 

4 Main Office Building - Carpet cleaning 
and hard surface floors strip/wax/buff 

1 Lump Sum 

5 New-Old Building (NOB) - Carpet 
cleaning and hard surface floors 
strip/wax/buff 

1 Lump Sum 

6 Crew Breakroom, Fleet Office, 
Warehouse Office - Carpet cleaning 
and hard surface floors strip/wax/buff 

1 Lump Sum 

7 Water Treatment Plant (WTP) - Carpet 
cleaning and hard surface floors 
strip/wax/buff 

1 Lump Sum 

8 Main Office Building - Window cleaning 1 Lump Sum 

9 New-Old Building (NOB) - Window 
cleaning 

1 Lump Sum 

10 Water Treatment Plant (WTP) - 
Window cleaning 

1 Lump Sum 

TOTAL 

47

$1,023.36

$313.69

$91.61

$1,715.34

$406.30

$228.78

$876.00

$408.00

$168.00

$300.00

$1,023.36

$313.69

$91.61

$1,715.34

$406.30

$228.78

$876.00

$408.00

$168.00

$300.00

$5,531.08



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

• Secured multiple EPA approved disinfecting cleaning chemicals

• Continue to review CDC guidelines for disinfecting procedures

• Trained over 80 employees to complete disinfecting/deep cleaning services

• Set up emergency response teams to complete this service upon request
• Incorporated Electrostatic Sprayers into our disinfection protocols and made 

additional Electrostatic sprayers available at each operating facility to respond 
immediately to client request

• Achieved GBAC COVID-19 Trained Technician status with ISSA

• Had an employee become a Certified Contract Tracer through the University of 
John’s Hopkins

The management team and employees of EFS, Inc. continue to respond immediately to 
our clients’ requests to provide facility “high touch” hand disinfecting and deep cleaning 
services at our numerous medical facilities, doctors’ offices, public and private schools, 
banking institutions, commercial properties, and public agencies. 

As of July 30, 2022, we have disinfected/deep cleaned approximately 7 million square feet 
of our clients’ facilities. Our clients knowingly contact EFS, Inc. with confidence that 
their properties, cities, and schools will be disinfected and ready for the next day’s use.

EFS, Inc. continues to respond to requests for special disinfecting/deep cleaning services 
from current and new clients. These include services for various facilities including 
public parks and restrooms, public and private schools, banking institutions, commercial 
properties, public agencies and non-contract clients for assistance in battling the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 

Our current procedure for on-call disinfecting services includes a detailed pre-site review 
with client. This is then followed up with a description of the two types of disinfecting 
services that EFS, Inc. can provide for the client. Once the client has selected which 
disinfecting procedure they would like performed, our highly trained staff is then 
equipped with the correct PPE. Once on site, our team will work with the client to ensure 
that all areas that have come in contact with COVID–19 positive or suspected positive 
individuals is thoroughly disinfected. 

We know that this situation is evolving daily, and we intend to continue to respond 
quickly and efficiently to all of our client requests to battle against the COVID-19 
pandemic. 

COVID RESPONSE PLAN

COVID Experience and Disinfecting Cleaning Program 

Immediately upon COVID-19 being declared a pandemic in March 2020, Jim 
Ferraro and the management team began to research and develop our 
Disinfecting Deep Cleaning Services plan as per the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC) guidelines. EFS, Inc. monitors both CDC and 
World Health Organization (WHO) websites for updates and additional 
information to assist us in the fight against COVID-19. 

As of January 15, 2022, we have: 

48



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

• Clean and disinfect all “high touch” points

• Clean and disinfect all doors, door handles, and fixtures

• Clean and disinfect all kitchen equipment and cabinets

• Perform all high dusting and cleaning of light fixtures, air diffusers, and door 
frames

• Damp wipe all baseboards

• Thoroughly disinfect all vertical and horizontal surfaces, including but not limited 
to desks, windowsills, tables, built-in cabinets, lighting fixtures, shelves, walls, 
doors, door frames, doorknobs, door handles, light switches, telephones, handrails, 
etc.

• Vacuum all carpeted areas making sure to get underneath built-ins, into corners 

and along edges.

RESTROOMS:
• Scour and sanitize all basins, toilets, urinals, and showers

inside and out

• Clean and disinfect all bright work

• Clean and disinfect all partitions

• Wash and disinfect all tile throughout restrooms with
disinfectant

• Disinfect and polish mirrors in restrooms
WINDOWS:

• Clean and disinfect inside window ledges

• Clean and disinfect all window frames

COVID RESPONSE PLAN

Hand Touch Disinfecting Specifications
Facility Disinfecting Deep Cleaning Specifications for offices, 
hallways, common areas, restrooms, break rooms and kitchens:

49



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

COVID RESPONSE PLAN

Hand Touch Disinfecting Deep Cleaning Specifications

1. Spray or apply with a towel hospital grade disinfectant to all touch points.

2. Let disinfectant dwell on the surface for the required kill time, usually one minute

3. After the disinfectant is on the surface for the required dwell time, wipe the surface 
clean and remove any streaks

The major touchpoints that need to be disinfected in offices or cubicles are 

as follows: 

• Cabinet handles

• Door handles

• Desks or cubicle tops

• Light switches

• Phones

• Computer keyboards and 
mouse’s

• Copiers and shredders

• Appliance buttons

• Grab rails

• Push plates

• Conference room tables and 
chairs

• Restroom partitions

• Restroom fixtures

• Switch plates

• File cabinets

• Opening edges of entry points

• Elevator buttons

• Door jambs

• Coffee stations

• Changing tables

• TP, towel and soap dispensers

50



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

DISINFECTING PRODUCT INFORMA TION

COVID-19 Electrostatic Disinfecting Spraying Solution 
Protexus Electrostatic Sprayer System

EFS, Inc. implements a research-driven technique of disinfecting that will reduce 
disinfecting expenses and increase our efficiency, known as the Protexus Electrostatic 
Sprayer System. By using the Protexus Electrostatic Sprayer System paired with the 
hospital grade PurTab disinfecting chemical, we have reduced the kill time of the  
disinfectant to one minute. We have found that in utilizing this system, we can drastically 
increase our efficiency of disinfecting services to approximately 10,000 square feet per 
hour. 

We understand the safety and health of our clients’ staff members is key, so EFS, Inc. 
selected the PurTab chemical for its non-toxic, non-corrosive characteristics as an EPA-
registered disinfectant. The PurTab chemical can be applied at any time throughout the 
day and left on high touch surfaces with little to no residue. Depending on the saturation 
of the surface the PurTab disinfectant dries completely within minutes. 

By utilizing these two disinfecting tools, we can dramatically increase the productivity of 
our staff and increase the frequency of disinfecting that can occur during a standard 
workday. EFS, Inc. believes that using this method of disinfecting services will greatly 
benefit the Palmdale Water District as it will increase the frequency of disinfection and 
provide peace of mind to residents, staff, and visitors to all of the buildings within the 
Palmdale Water District.

Link to Protexus Electrostatic Sprayer System
https/www.youtube.com/watch??v=k1agZEwcfLQ&feature=youtu.be

51



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

DISINFECTING PRODUCT INFORMA TION

Protexus Electrostatic Sprayer System

52



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

DISINFECTING PRODUCT INFORMATION

Evaclean

53



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

DISINFECTING PRODUCT INFORMATION

EPA Certified Disinfectant

54



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

DISINFECTING PRODUCT INFORMATION

EPA Certified Disinfectant

55



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

56



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

WAXIE Letter of Recommendation

November 27, 2022

To whom it may concern, 

WAXIE Sanitary Supply has had a long term partnership with Executive Facilities 
Services Inc. with both companies having like goals of helping customers keep 
buildings cleaner, safer and healthier.  WAXIE provides multiple training classes on 
restroom care, Green Cleaning Practices, floor care, carpet care and COVID – 19 to 
our customers of which EFS Inc. participates in.  Along with that, WAXIE prides 
itself on finding solutions for customers to meet all of their cleaning needs.  
Together with EFS Inc. we have been able to create cleaning protocols during the 
pandemic using electro-static sprayers, EPA N-List approved disinfectants and PPE, 
all while providing the other necessary products in a timely manner.  I know if EFS 
Inc. is chosen for your facility, they will provide the same level of excellent service 
that other customers like yourself are receiving.  

Sincerely, 

Theresa Cummins  
Regional Sales Manager 
WAXIE – Ontario, CA 
tcummins@waxie.com 
Cell # 702-768-5696  
www.waxie.com 

Regional Inventory Center  905 N. Wineville Avenue  Ontario, CA 91764-5595 
(800) 443-3469  (909)942-4100  FAX (909) 942-3199  www.waxie.com

57



EXECUTIVE FACILITIES SERVICES, INC.

BUSINESS ATTIRE

EFS, Inc. Uniform: apron, employee badge, and t-shirt

58







P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M

DATE: February 7, 2023 February 13, 2023 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Adam Ly, Assistant General Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1 – REVIEW AND DISCUSSION OF EVALUATION 
CRITERIA FOR STRATEGIC WATER RESOURCES PLAN. (NO BUDGET 
IMPACT– ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER LY/ WOODARD & CURRAN)   

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board review and discuss the evaluation criteria for the Strategic Water 
Resources Plan. 

Alternative Options: 

There are no alternative options.  

Impact of Taking No Action: 

The Strategic Water Resources Plan will be delayed.  

Background: 

The Board approved a contract with Woodard & Curran on May 23, 2022, to update the Strategic 
Water Resources Plan. The process includes solicitating feedback from the public and the Board 
of Directors. A presentation on the Strategic Water Resources Plan update was provided by staff 
and Woodard & Curran Consultants at the Resource and Facilities Committee on October 13, 
2022. As part of the next step in the process, staff would like the Board to review and discuss the 
evaluation criteria and provide feedback. 

Strategic Plan Initiative/Mission Statement: 

This item is covered under all six Strategic Initiatives. 

This item directly relates to the District’s Mission Statement. 

Budget: 

No Budget Impact. 

Supporting Documents: 

 Strategic Water Resources Plan Stakeholder Meeting #2 by Woodard & Curran

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1





Palmdale Water District 
Strategic Water Resources Plan 

Stakeholder Meeting #2
February 13, 2023



Meeting Agenda

Provide SWRP overview and schedule 

Present alternative portfolio options

Discuss evaluation criteria 



Meeting Objectives

Review potential alternative portfolio options

Solicit input on evaluation criteria



SWRP Overview and Schedule

October 2022 4



SWRP Overview

Provide a future vision 
for how PWD will meet 
its water supply 
through 2050

Facilitate meaningful 
engagement

Create a flexible, 
dynamic planning 
process

Build a strong technical 
foundation



Stakeholder Meetings

1. Demand and
Supply and
Estimated
Supply Gaps

2. Evaluation
Criteria and
Alternative
Portfolios

3. Preferred
Alternatives
and Evaluation



SWRP Progress Update

Supply and Demand Management Options and Alternatives

Supply Gaps

Baseline Supply Analysis and Forecast

Demand Analysis and Forecast



Alternative Portfolio Options



Alternative 
Portfolio Options

Imported Water Recycled Water Hybrid

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
To build these three types of alternatives…



Water Supply Options

Local surface 
water

Imported 
water 

(storage)

Imported 
water 

(transfers)
Groundwater

Recycled 
water

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
We have taken different combinations of these five option. We went through these categories with the committee on a project by project level. 



Imported Water Portfolio Options

‣ Includes:
 Imported water banking (existing and new)
 Imported water tiers
 Well rehabilitations and replacement (existing)
 Conservation (varies)

Water Supply

Local Surface Water Imported Water (Existing) Imported Water Transfers

Groundwater Recycled water



Recycled Water Portfolio Options

‣ Includes:
 Imported water banking (existing and new)
 Imported water tiers
 Well rehabilitations and replacement (existing)
 Recycled water
 Conservation (varies)

Water Supply

Local Surface Water Imported Water (Existing) Imported Water Transfers

Groundwater Recycled water



Hybrid Portfolio Options

Water Supply – Imported and Recycled Water 
Hybrid

Local Surface Water Imported Water (Existing)

Imported Water Transfers Groundwater

Recycled water

Water Supply – Local Source and Recycled 
Water Hybrid

Local Surface Water Imported Water (Existing)

Imported Water Transfers Groundwater

Recycled water



Summary of Alternative Portfolio Options
Alt 1

IW: Internal 
Bank

Alt 2

IW: External 
Bank

Alt 3

RW Supply: 
GW Injection

Alt 4

RW Supply: 
Lake 

Augmentation

Alt 5

Hybrid 
IW/RW: RW

Injection + IW 
External Bank

Alt 6

Hybrid 
IW/RW: RW

Lake 
Augmentation 
+ IW Internal 

Bank

Alt 7

Hybrid 
SW/RW: SW 

Enhancement+ 
RW Injection

Alt 8

Hybrid 
GW/RW: GW 
Rights + RW

Injection

1. External Imported Water Storage 
2. Internal Imported Water Storage via AVEK 
3. Amargosa Water Bank + new wells
4. Imported Water, Tier 1
5. Imported Water, Tier 2
6. Purchase of Antelope Valley Basin Rights
7. Well rehabilitation/replacements of existing wells
8. Palmdale Ditch Enhancements
9. Sediment Removal at Littlerock Dam
10. Recycled Water Augmentation at Palmdale Lake
11. Recycled Water Injection
12. Conservation

GW: groundwater  |  IW: imported water  |  SW: surface water  |  RW: recycled water



Evaluation Criteria



Summary of Potential Evaluation Criteria

Drought 
Reliability

Emergency 
Imported Water 

Outage Reliability
Cost Efficiency Water Quality

Sustainability Fundability Implementability Adaptability



Discussion on Potential Evaluation Criteria

1. Is there anything else that should be considered that is not already in 
the evaluation criteria?

2. Is there anything in the evaluation criteria that should not be 
included?

3. Would you define any of these evaluation criteria differently?

4. What are your top priorities and concerns? 



Summary of Potential Evaluation Criteria -
Quantitative



Summary of Potential Evaluation Criteria –
Qualitative 



Summary of Potential Evaluation Criteria
• Shortage depth during 

single year and multiple 
year droughts 

Drought Reliability

• Shortage depth during a 
6-to 12-month SWP 
water outage 

Emergency Imported 
Water Outage 
Reliability

• Present value unit cost, 
including capital, O&M 
and water purchase cost

Cost Efficiency

• Loading of TDS applied 
to the groundwater basin 
or surface water
• Antelope Valley 

Groundwater Basin 
• Lake Palmdale

Water Quality

• Institutional 
independence

• Local resource 
management

Sustainability

• Eligibility for funding 
programs

Funding potential

• Stakeholder support, 
environmental and 
permitting compliance 
and operational ease

Implementability

• Ability to adapt to 
potential changes within 
and outside PWD

• Some options increase 
constraints while others 
increase flexibility

Adaptability

Quantitative

Qualitative



Discussion on Potential Evaluation Criteria

1. Is there anything else that should be considered that is not already in 
the evaluation criteria?

2. Is there anything in the evaluation criteria that should not be 
included?

3. Would you define any of these evaluation criteria differently?

4. What are your top priorities and concerns? 



Next Steps

‣ Please send additional thoughts by February 27
‣ Woodard & Curran will perform technical analysis on the alternatives 

based on your feedback today
‣ Next meeting: Preferred Alternatives and Evaluation



Thank you!



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M

DATE: February 6, 2023 February 13, 2023 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Ms. Angelica Barragan-Garcia, Human Resources Director 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A 
RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE THE 2022 SALARY SURVEY. 
(BUDGETED 2023 – HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR BARRAGAN-
GARCIA/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE) 

Recommendation: 

Staff and the Personnel Committee recommend that the Board approve the recommended salary range 
changes from our 2022 Salary Survey.  

Alternative Options: 

The alternative is to leave the salary ranges unchanged. 

Impact of Taking No Action: 

As higher than normal changes in jobs and retirements continue to occur, the job market remains 
extremely competitive. If the District does not come to market with wages, it will have an impact in 
recruitment and may lead to increased turnover. 

Background: 

The District decided to perform a market survey every three years to remain competitive in the 
marketplace thereby reducing costly turnover. Twelve water districts were chosen to compare over time 
to create stability in the data and allow our District to remain competitive in the marketplace.  

The 2022 Salary Survey uses the same twelve water districts, all of which are located in Southern 
California, and are similar to the District in either facilities, organization size, or number of service 
connections. 

Strategic Plan Initiative/Mission Statement: 

This work is part of Strategic Plan Initiative No. 2 – Organizational Excellence. 

This item directly relates to the District’s Mission Statement. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2



 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager -2-    February 6, 2023 
 
 
Budget: 
 
This update is included in the 2023 Budget. 
 
Supporting Documents: 
 
 2022 Salary Survey 



Job Titles without a current range Salary Survey Summary 

Position
Current Exemption 

Status Current Range Salary Survey Recommended Notes
Customer Care Representative I N 20 20
Field Customer Care Representative I N 21 21
Maintenance Worker I N 21
Service Worker I N 21 22 23
Customer Care Representative II N 23 23
Accounts Payable Technician N 23 23
Maintenance Worker II N 24 23
Customer Account Technician N 24 23
Field Customer Care Representative II N 23 24 24
Operations Technician I N 25 24
Engineering Technician I N 26 24 25
Service Worker II N 25 24 26
Plant Operator I N 26 25
Construction Inspector I N 27 25
Senior Customer Care Representative N 29 25
Electrician I N 26 26
Purchasing Technician N 27 26
Information Technician I N 27 26
Water Use Efficiency Technician I N 27 26
Senior Field Customer Care Representative N 28 26
Lab Analyst I N 26 27
Public Affairs Specialist I N 27 27
SCADA/Instrumentation Technician I N 27 27
HR & Safety Coordinator N 27 27
Engineering Technician II N 27 27 28
Operations Technician II N 28 27
Service Worker III - Foreman N 29 27
Safety and Training Technician I N 29 27
Electrician II N 29 28
Plant Operator II N 29 28
Construction Inspector II N 29 28 30
Engineering Analyst N 33 28
Lab Analyst II N 29 29
Information Technician II N 29 30
Water Use Efficiency Technician II N 29 30
Engineering Technician III N 29 29 31



Position
Current Exemption 

Status Current Range Salary Survey Recommended Notes
Management Analyst N 31 29
Operations Technician III - Fleet/Mechanical N 31 29
SCADA/Instrumentation Technician II N 30 30
Electrician III N 32 30
Public Affairs Specialist II N 30 31
Human Resource Analyst N 30 31 31
GIS Coordinator N 32 31
Plant Operator III N 32 31
Construction Inspector III N 31 33

SCADA/Instrumentation Technician III N 31 33
Junior Engineer N 31 32

Safety and Training Technician II N 32 32
Change in Title: Risk and Emergency Management 
Administrator, and convert to Exempt

Assistant Engineer N 32 32 33
Customer Care Supervisor E 36 32
Executive Assistant N 34 33 change to exempt
Customer Finance Supervisor E 35 33
Network Administrator N 34 34
Operation Supervisor - Construction E 34 34 35
Operations Supervisor - Mechanical E 34 34 35
Operations Supervisor - Engineering E 34 35 35
Associate Engineer N 35 35 change to exempt
Water Quality/Regulatory Affairs Supervisor E 35 36
Accounting Supervisor E 36 36
Customer Care Manager E 37 37
Resource and Analytics Supervisor E 35 38 36
Senior Engineer N 38 38 change to Exempt 
Public Affairs Director E 38 39 40
Operations Manager E 41 39
Facilities Manager E 41 40
Information Technology Manager E 41 40
Human Resources Director E 41 42
Engineering Manager E 44 42
Finance Manager/CFO E 45 43
Resource and Analytics Director E 45 45
Assist. General Manager E 48 48
Construction Inspector Trainee N 25 NA



List of Districts 

Palmdale Water District
Cucamonga Valley Water District
Las Virgenes Municipal Water District 
Yorba Linda Water District
Olivenhain Municipal Water District
Western Municipal Water District
Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Desert Water Agency
Eastern Municipal Water District
Mesa Consolidated Water District
Rancho California Water District
Walnut Valley Water District
Padre Dam Municipal Water District



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40
0.215505174 $19.90 $20.90 $21.94 $23.04 $24.19 $25.40 $26.67 $28.00 $29.40 $30.87 $32.42 $34.04 $35.74 $37.53 $39.40 $41.38 $43.44 $45.62 $47.90 $50.29 $52.81 $55.45 $58.22 $61.13 $64.19 $67.40 $70.77

Customer Care Representative I 20 26.67$ 32.42$   Palmdale Water District $26.6708-$32.4185
Customer Care Representative I 23.78$   30.90$   Cucamonga Valley Water District $23.78-$30.9
Customer Service Representative 26.97$   37.18$   Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $26.97-$37.18
Customer Service Representative I 21.98$   28.15$   Yorba Linda Water District $21.98-$28.15
Customer Care Representative I 23.20$   32.44$   Olivenhain Municipal Water District $23.2-$32.44
Customer Service Representative I 25.60$   36.37$   Western Municipal Water District $25.6-$36.37
Customer Service Representative I 27.46$   33.47$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $27.46-$33.47
No equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Assistant Customer  Service  Advisor 27.27$   33.97$   Eastern Municipal Water District $27.27-$33.97
Customer Service Representative I 24.18$   33.34$   Mesa Consolidated Water District $24.18-$33.34
Customer Service Representative I – Office & Field 25.27$   30.32$   Rancho CA Water District $25.27-$30.32
Customer Service Representative I 24.05$   37.56$   Walnut Valley Water District $24.05-$37.56
Customer Service Representative-11 21.25$   30.05$   Padre Dam Municipal Water District $21.25-$30.05

24.64$   33.07$   
Mid 28.85$   

Min|Max 26.04$   31.67$   
Closest PWD Range 20

Customer Care Representative II 23 30.87$ 37.53$   Palmdale Water District $30.8747-$37.5284
Customer Care Representative II 27.84$   36.20$   Cucamonga Valley Water District $27.84-$36.2
Customer Service Representative 26.97$   37.18$   Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $26.97-$37.18
Customer Service Representative II 24.25$   31.02$   Yorba Linda Water District $24.25-$31.02
Customer Care Representative II 26.20$   36.68$   Olivenhain Municipal Water District $26.2-$36.68
Customer Service Representative III 32.67$   46.43$   Western Municipal Water District $32.67-$46.43
Customer Service Representative II 31.78$   38.71$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $31.78-$38.71
No equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Customer Service Advisor 30.08$   37.45$   Eastern Municipal Water District $30.08-$37.45
Customer Service Representative II 28.04$   38.66$   Mesa Consolidated Water District $28.04-$38.66
Customer Service Representative  II – Office & Field 29.25$   35.10$   Rancho CA Water District $29.25-$35.1
Customer Service Representative II 25.60$   40.00$   Walnut Valley Water District $25.6-$40
Customer Service Representative-13 23.55$   28.43$   Padre Dam Municipal Water District $23.55-$28.43

27.84$   36.90$   
Mid 32.37$   

Min|Max 29.21$   35.52$   
Closest PWD Range 23

Senior Customer Care Representative 29 41.38$ 50.29$   Palmdale Water District $41.375-$50.2915
Lead Customer Service Representative 31.99$   41.59$   Cucamonga Valley Water District $31.99-$41.59
No equivalent Position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
Customer Service Representative III 26.72$   34.20$   Yorba Linda Water District $26.72-$34.2
No equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Senior Customer Service Representative-IV 37.83$   53.75$   Western Municipal Water District $37.83-$53.75
Senior Customer Service Representative 36.79$   44.83$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $36.79-$44.83
No equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Senior Customer Service Advisor 33.15$   41.29$   Eastern Municipal Water District $33.15-$41.29
No equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Senior Customer Service Representative-Office & Field $32.24 38.69$   Rancho California Water District $32.24-$38.69
Senior Customer Service Representative 28.26$   44.13$   Walnut Valley Water District $28.26-$44.13
Customer Service Representative-15L 27.52$   38.93$   Padre Dam Municipal Water District $27.52-$38.93

31.81$   42.18$   
Mid 36.99$   

Min|Max 33.39$   40.60$   



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40
0.215505174 $19.90 $20.90 $21.94 $23.04 $24.19 $25.40 $26.67 $28.00 $29.40 $30.87 $32.42 $34.04 $35.74 $37.53 $39.40 $41.38 $43.44 $45.62 $47.90 $50.29 $52.81 $55.45 $58.22 $61.13 $64.19 $67.40 $70.77

Closest PWD Range 25

Field Customer Care Representative I 21 28.00$ 34.04$   Palmdale Water District $28.0043-$34.0394
Field Service Technician I 26.78$   34.80$   Cucamonga Valley Water District $26.78-$34.8
Field Customer Service Representative I 24.17$   33.32$   Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $24.17-$33.32
Meter Reader I 23.08$   29.55$   Yorba Linda Water District $23.08-$29.55
Field Services Technician I 23.20$   32.44$   Olivenhain Municipal Water District $23.2-$32.44
Meter Service Operations Technician II 31.12$   44.21$   Western Municipal Water District $31.12-$44.21
Field Services Worker I 28.82$   35.14$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $28.82-$35.14
Field  Service Representative I 31.71$   38.64$   Desert Water Agency $31.71-$38.64
Meter Services Technician I 25.97$   32.35$   Eastern Municipal Water District $25.97-$32.35
Field Customer Care Representative I 25.41$   35.02$   Mesa Consolidated Water District $25.41-$35.02
Customer Service Representative I  – Office & Field 25.27$   30.32$   Rancho California Water District $25.27-$30.32
Customer Service Rep I 24.05$   37.56$   Walnut Valley Water District $24.05-$37.56
Field Service Technician-14 24.82$   35.09$   Padre Dam Municipal Water District $24.82-$35.09

26.20$   34.87$   
Mid 30.54$   

Min|Max 27.56$   33.51$   
Closest PWD Range 21

Field Customer Care Representative II 23 30.87$ 37.53$   Palmdale Water District $30.8747-$37.5284
PWD Recommendation 24 32.42$ 39.40$   24 PWD-Recommendation $32.4184-$39.4047
Field Service Technician II 31.37$   40.78$   Cucamonga Valley Water District $31.37-$40.78
Field Customer Service Representative II 26.70$   36.81$   Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $26.7-$36.81
Field Customer Service Representative/Meters II 28.05$   35.91$   Yorba Linda Water District $28.05-$35.91
Field Services Technician II 26.21$   36.68$   Olivenhain Municipal Water District $26.21-$36.68
Meter Service Operations Technician III 34.32$   48.75$   Western Municipal Water District $34.32-$48.75
Field Services Worker II 33.37$   40.66$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $33.37-$40.66
Field  Service Representative II 34.17$   41.58$   Desert Water Agency $34.17-$41.58
Meter Services Technician II 28.64$   35.66$   Eastern Municipal Water District $28.64-$35.66
Field Customer Care Representative II Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Customer Service Representative  II – Office & Field 29.25$   35.10$   Rancho California Water District $29.25-$35.1
Customer Service Representative II 25.60$   40.00$   Walnut Valley Water District $25.6-$40
Field Service Technician-16 27.10$   38.33$   Padre Dam Municipal Water District $27.1-$38.33

29.53$   39.11$   
Mid 34.32$   

Min|Max 30.97$   37.67$   
Closest PWD Range 24

Senior Field Customer Care Representative 28 39.40$ 47.90$   Palmdale Water District $39.4048-$47.8967
Lead Field Service Technician 36.75$   47.77$   Cucamonga Valley Water District $36.75-$47.77
Senior Field Customer Service Representative 33.22$   45.82$   Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $33.22-$45.82
Sr. Field Customer Service Representative/Meters 34.13$   43.68$   Yorba Linda Water District $34.13-$43.68
Field Services Technician III 29.86$   41.77$   Olivenhain Municipal Water District $29.86-$41.77
Meter Service Operations Technician IV 37.83$   53.75$   Western Municipal Water District $37.83-$53.75
Senior Field Services Worker 38.62$   47.06$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $38.62-$47.06
No equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Senior Meter Services Technician 31.58$   39.33$   Eastern Municipal Water District $31.58-$39.33
Lead  Field Customer Care Representative 33.34$   45.96$   Mesa Consolidated Water District $33.34-$45.96
Senior Customer Service Representative-Office & Field $32.24 38.69$   Rancho California Water District $32.24-$38.69
Senior Customer Service Representative 28.26$   44.13$   Walnut Valley Water District $28.26-$44.13
Field Service Technician-18L 31.22$   44.16$   Padre Dam Municipal Water District $31.22-$44.16



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40
0.215505174 $19.90 $20.90 $21.94 $23.04 $24.19 $25.40 $26.67 $28.00 $29.40 $30.87 $32.42 $34.04 $35.74 $37.53 $39.40 $41.38 $43.44 $45.62 $47.90 $50.29 $52.81 $55.45 $58.22 $61.13 $64.19 $67.40 $70.77

33.37$   44.74$   
Mid 39.05$   

Min|Max 35.25$   42.86$   
Closest PWD Range 26

Account Payable Technician 23 30.87$ 39.37$ Palmdale Water District $30.8747-$39.3666
Account Clerk II 27.84$ 36.20$ Cucamonga Valley Water District $27.84-$36.2
Accounting Technician 28.91$ 39.85$ Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $28.91-$39.85
Accounting Assistant II 30.96$ 39.62$ Yorba Linda Water District $30.96-$39.62
Accountant 29.86$   41.77$   Olivenhain Municipal Water District $29.86-$41.77
Accounting Technician III 32.67$ 53.75$ Western Municipal Water District $32.67-$53.75
Accounting Technician II 30.27$   36.91$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $30.27-$36.91
Accounting Clerk II 29.43$ 35.87$ Desert Water Agency $29.43-$35.87
Finance Tech II 25.97$ 32.35$ Eastern Municipal Water District $25.97-$32.35
Accounting Tech II 27.36$ 37.72$ Mesa Consolidated Water District $27.36-$37.72
Account Clerk II 25.90$ 31.08$ Rancho California Water District $25.9-$31.08
Accounting Technician II 25.60$ 40.00$ Walnut Valley Water District $25.6-$40
Accounting Specialist-15 26.21$ 37.08$ Padre Dam Municipal Water District $26.21-$37.08

28.42$ 38.52$ 
Mid 33.47$ 

Min|Max 30.20$ 36.73$ 
Closest PWD Range 23

Customer Account Technician 24 32.42$ 32.42$   Palmdale Water District $32.4184-$32.4184
Account Clerk II 27.84$   36.20$   Cucamonga Valley Water District $27.84-$36.2
Accounting Technician 28.91$   39.85$   Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $28.91-$39.85
Customer Service Representative III 26.72$   34.20$   Yorba Linda Water District $26.72-$34.2
Customer Care Representative II 26.21$   36.68$   Olivenhain Municipal Water District $26.21-$36.68
Customer Care Representative II 29.63$   42.11$   Western Municipal Water District $29.63-$42.11
Customer Care Representative II 31.78$   38.71$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $31.78-$38.71
No equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Collections Representative I 30.08$   37.45$   Eastern Municipal Water District $30.08-$37.45
Customer Service Representative II 28.04$   38.66$   Mesa Consolidated Water District $28.04-$38.66
Account Clerk II 25.90$ 31.08$   Rancho California Water District $25.9-$31.08
Accounting Technician II 25.60$   40.00$   Walnut Valley Water District $25.6-$40
Customer Service Rep-15 26.21$   37.08$   Padre Dam Municipal Water District $26.21-$37.08

27.90$   37.46$   
Mid 32.68$   

Min|Max 29.49$   35.86$   
Closest PWD Range 23

Purchasing Technician 27 37.53$ 37.53$   Palmdale Water District $37.5284-$37.5284
Warehouse and Supply Coordinator 37.48$   48.73$   Cucamonga Valley Water District $37.48-$48.73
Purchasing/Warehouse Specialist 30.69$   42.32$   Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $30.69-$42.32
Operations Assistant 29.47$   37.72$   Yorba Linda Water District $29.47-$37.72
Purchasing/Warehouse Clerk 26.21$   36.68$   Olivenhain Municipal Water District $26.21-$36.68
Purchasing Specialist 41.71$   62.08$   Western Municipal Water District $41.71-$62.08
Purchasing and Warehouse Technician 30.27$   36.91$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $30.27-$36.91
No equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Buyer 40.30$   50.19$   Eastern Municipal Water District $40.3-$50.19



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40
0.215505174 $19.90 $20.90 $21.94 $23.04 $24.19 $25.40 $26.67 $28.00 $29.40 $30.87 $32.42 $34.04 $35.74 $37.53 $39.40 $41.38 $43.44 $45.62 $47.90 $50.29 $52.81 $55.45 $58.22 $61.13 $64.19 $67.40 $70.77

Buyer 35.90$   49.49$   Mesa Consolidated Water District $35.9-$49.49
Warehouse Technician II $25.27 30.32$   Rancho California Water District $25.27-$30.32
No equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
Warehouse Specialist-20 32.10$   45.40$   Padre Dam Municipal Water District $32.1-$45.4

32.94$   43.98$   
Mid 38.46$   

Min|Max 34.71$   42.21$   
Closest PWD Range 26



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52
0.215505836 $6,195.16 $6,504.92 $6,830.17 $7,171.67 $7,530.26 $7,906.77 $8,302.11 $8,717.21 $9,153.07 $9,610.73 $10,091.26 $10,595.81 $11,125.61 $11,681.89 $12,265.99 $12,879.29 $13,523.26 $14,199.41 $14,909.39 $15,654.86 $16,437.60 $17,259.48 $18,122.45 $19,028.57 $19,979.99 $20,979.00 $22,027.95

Customer Care Supervisor 36 10,091.26$    12,265.99$ Palmdale Water District $10091.26-$12265.9854
Customer Service Supervisor 7,921.00$      10,297.00$ Cucamonga Valley Water District $7921-$10297
Customer Service  Operations Supervisor 8,878.13$      11,540.67$ Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $8878.13-$11540.67
No equivalent position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
Customer service and public affairs supervisor 7,868.51$      11,796.87$ Olivenhain Municipal Water District $7868.51-$11796.87
No equivalent position Western Municipal Water District $-$
Customer Service Supervisor 8,140.00$      9,916.00$    Santa Clarita Valley Water  $8140-$9916
No equivalent position Desert Water Agency $-$
Customer Service Supervisor 6,650.80$      8,283.60$    Eastern Municipal Water District $6650.8-$8283.6
Field Service Sup 7,965.00$      10,980.00$ Mesa Consolidated Water District $7965-$10980
Customer Service Supervisor 6,793.28$      8,151.87$    Rancho California Water District $6793.28-$8151.87
Customer Service Supervisor 6,970.00$    10,846.00$ Walnut Valley Water District $6970-$10846
Customer Service Manager 9,051.00$      12,804.00$ Padre Dam Municipal Water District $9051-$12804

7,804.19$      10,512.89$ 
Mid 9,158.54$      

Min|Max 8,265.83$      10,051.25$ 
Closest PWD Range 32

Customer Care Manager  Palmdale Water District $ -$
PWD Recommendation 37 10,595.81$    12,879.27$ 37 PWD-Recommendation $10595.81-$12879.2689
Customer Service Mgr 10,659.00$    13,857.00$ Cucamonga Valley Water District $10659-$13857
Customer Service Mgr 10,936.71$    15,313.65$ Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $10936.71-$15313.65
No equivalent position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
Customer Care Manager 10,815.46$    17,289.91$ Olivenhain Municipal Water District $10815.46-$17289.91
Customer Service Manager 9,654.33$      14,368.67$ Western Municipal Water District $9654.33-$14368.67
Customer Service Manager 12,024.00$ 14,648.00$ Santa Clarita Valley Water  $12024-$14648
No equivalent position Desert Water Agency $-$
Customer Service Operations Manager 8,914.53$      11,102.00$ Eastern Municipal Water District $8914.53-$11102
Customer Service Mgr 9,947.00$      13,712.00$ Mesa Consolidated Water District $9947-$13712
Customer and Support Services Manager 11,019.67$    13,223.60$ Rancho California Water District $11019.67-$13223.6
Customer Service Manager 8,059.00$      12,542.00$ Walnut Valley Water District $8059-$12542
Customer Service Manager 9,051.00$      12,804.00$ Padre Dam Municipal Water District $9051-$12804

10,108.07$    13,886.08$ 
Mid 11,997.08$    
Min|Max 10,827.69$    13,166.47$ 
Closest PWD Range 37

Accounting Supervisor 36 10,091.26$    12,879.27$ Palmdale Water District $10091.26-$12879.2689
Accounting Supervisor 8,744.00$      11,367.00$ Cucamonga Valley Water District 8744-11367
Accounting Supervisor 9,860.59$      12,820.57$ Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  9860.59-12820.57
Accounting Supervisor 8,323.50$      10,656.50$ Yorba Linda Water District 8323.5-10656.5
Accounting Supervisor 7,311.70$      10,972.80$ Olivenhain Municipal Water District 7311.7-10972.8
Accounting Supervisor 8,981.25$      13,366.83$ Western Municipal Water District 8981.25-13366.83
Senior Financial Analyst 9,422.00$      11,482.00$ Santa Clarita Valley Water  9422-11482
Accounting Supervisor 9,222.00$      11,217.00$ Desert Water Agency 9222-11217
Finance Manager 9,363.47$      11,654.93$ Eastern Municipal Water District 9363.47-11654.93
Controller 9,947.00$      13,712.00$ Mesa Consolidated Water District 9947-13712
Accounting Supervisor 9,519.81$      12,566.15$ Rancho California Water District 9519.81-12566.15
Accounting Supervisor 6,970.00$    10,846.00$ Walnut Valley Water District 6970-10846
Accounting Manager 9,051.00$      12,804.00$ Padre Dam Municipal Water District 9051-12804

8,893.03$      11,955.48$ 
Mid 10,424.25$    

Min|Max 9,408.17$      11,440.34$ 
Closest PWD Range 35

Customer Finance Supervisor 35 9,610.73$      9,610.73$    Palmdale Water District 9610.73-9610.73
Accounting Supervisor 8,744.00$      11,367.00$ Cucamonga Valley Water District 8744-11367
Finance Analyst II 8,032.68$      10,446.45$ Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  8032.68-10446.45
Sr. Accountant 8,323.50$      10,656.50$ Yorba Linda Water District 8323.5-10656.5
Customer service and public affairs 
supervisor 7,868.51$      11,796.87$ Olivenhain Municipal Water District 7868.51-11796.87
Senior Financial Analyst 8,354.92$      12,426.83$ Western Municipal Water District 8354.92-12426.83
Customer Service Supervisor 8,140.00$      9,916.00$    Santa Clarita Valley Water  8140-9916
No equivalent position Desert Water Agency -
Customer Service Billing mgr 8,914.53$      11,102.00$ Eastern Municipal Water District 8914.53-11102
No equivalent position Mesa Consolidated Water District -
Customer Service Supervisor 6,793.28$      8,151.87$    Rancho California Water District 6793.28-8151.87
No equivalent position Walnut Valley Water District -
Customer Service Manager 9,051.00$      12,804.00$ Padre Dam Municipal Water District 9051-12804

8,246.94$      10,963.06$ 
Mid 9,605.00$      

Min|Max 8,668.77$      10,541.22$ 
Closest PWD Range 33



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52
0.215505836 $6,195.16 $6,504.92 $6,830.17 $7,171.67 $7,530.26 $7,906.77 $8,302.11 $8,717.21 $9,153.07 $9,610.73 $10,091.26 $10,595.81 $11,125.61 $11,681.89 $12,265.99 $12,879.29 $13,523.26 $14,199.41 $14,909.39 $15,654.86 $16,437.60 $17,259.48 $18,122.45 $19,028.57 $19,979.99 $20,979.00 $22,027.95

Finance Manager/CFO 45 15,654.86$    15,654.86$ Palmdale Water District $15654.86-$15654.86
Finance Manager 11,312.00$    14,705.00$ Cucamonga Valley Water District $11312-$14705
Finance Manager 10,936.71$    16,580.95$ Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $10936.71-$16580.95
Finance Manager 12,911.58$    16,532.50$ Yorba Linda Water District $12911.58-$16532.5
Finance Manager 11,654.46$    18,588.72$ Olivenhain Municipal Water District $11654.46-$18588.72
Director of Finance 13,500.83$    20,093.83$ Western Municipal Water District $13500.83-$20093.83
Finance Manager 12,024.00$    14,648.00$ Santa Clarita Valley Water  $12024-$14648
Finance Director 17,457.00$    21,216.00$ Desert Water Agency $17457-$21216
Finance Manager 13,830.27$    17,222.40$ Eastern Municipal Water District $13830.27-$17222.4
Chief Financial Officer 14,407.00$    19,860.00$ Mesa Consolidated Water District $14407-$19860
Chief Financial Officer 14,463.28$    18,802.35$ Rancho California Water District $14463.28-$18802.35
Director of Finance 12,069.00$    18,782.00$ Walnut Valley Water District $12069-$18782
CFO/Director of Finance 13,188.00$    18,308.00$ Padre Dam Municipal Water District $13188-$18308

13,146.18$    17,944.98$ 
Mid 15,545.58$    

Min|Max 14,030.31$    17,060.85$ 
Closest PWD Range 43



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
0.215505174 $20.90 $21.94 $23.04 $24.19 $25.40 $26.67 $28.00 $29.40 $30.87 $32.42 $34.04 $35.74 $37.53 $39.40 $41.38 $43.44 $45.62 $47.90 $50.29 $52.81 $55.45 $58.22 $61.13

Electrician I Palmdale Water District $-$
PWD Recommendation 26 35.74$  43.44$  26 PWD-Recommendation $35.7413-$43.4437
Instrumentation/Electrical Technician I 32.63$    42.42$  Cucamonga Valley Water District $32.63-$42.42
Instrumentation/Electrical Technician I 32.25$    44.47$  Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $32.25-$44.47
No equivalent position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
Instrument Control Tech I 29.86$    41.77$  Olivenhain Municipal Water District $29.86-$41.77
Operations Technician- Electrical Services II 31.12$    44.21$  Western Municipal Water District $31.12-$44.21
Electrical/Instrumentation 38.62$    47.06$  Santa Clarita Valley Water  $38.62-$47.06
No equivalent position Desert Water Agency $-$
Electrician 34.82$    43.36$  Eastern Municipal Water District $34.82-$43.36
No equivalent position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Instrumentation/Electrical Technician I 36.44$    43.73$  Rancho CA Water District $36.44-$43.73
No equivalent position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
Electrician/Instrumentation & Control Tech-18 29.73$    42.06$  Padre Dam Municipal Water District $29.73-$42.06

33.18$    43.64$  
Mid 38.41$    

Min|Max 34.67$    42.15$  
Closest PWD Range 26

Electrician II 29 41.38$    50.29$  Palmdale Water District $41.375-$50.29
Instrumentation/Electrical Technician II 38.24$    49.70$  Cucamonga Valley Water District $38.24-$49.7
Electrician 33.87$    44.28$  Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $33.87-$44.28
No equivalent position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
No equivalent position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Operations Technician- Electrical Services III 34.32$    48.75$  Western Municipal Water District $34.32-$48.75
No equivalent position Santa Clarita Valley Water  $42.58-$51.88
No equivalent position Desert Water Agency $-$
No equivalent position Eastern Municipal Water District $-$
No equivalent position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Instrumentation/Electrical Technician II 42.18$    50.61$  Rancho CA Water District $42.18-$50.61
Instrumentation/Electrical System Tech 38.07$    59.43$  Walnut Valley Water District $38.07-$59.43
Electrician/Instrumentation & Control Tech-22 33.44$    47.29$  Padre Dam Municipal Water District $33.44-$47.29

36.69$    50.01$  
Mid 43.35$    

Min|Max 39.12$    47.57$  
Closest PWD Range 28

Electrician III 32 47.90$    58.22$  Palmdale Water District $47.8968-$58.22
Lead Instrumentation/Electrical Technician 44.80$    58.25$  Cucamonga Valley Water District $44.8-$58.25
Instrumentation/Electrical Technician II 37.45$    51.63$  Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $37.45-$51.63
No equivalent position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
Instrument Control Tech II 39.83$    55.76$  Olivenhain Municipal Water District $39.83-$55.76
Operations Technician- Electrical Services IV 37.83$    53.75$  Western Municipal Water District $37.83-$53.75
Senior Electrical Tech 42.58$    51.88$  Santa Clarita Valley Water  $42.58-$51.88
No equivalent position Desert Water Agency $-$
No equivalent position Eastern Municipal Water District $-$
No equivalent position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Senior Electrical/instrumentation Tech 46.51$    55.80$  Rancho California Water District $46.51-$55.8
No equivalent position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
Electrician/Instrumentation & Control Tech-26 38.48$    54.42$  Padre Dam Municipal Water District $38.48-$54.42

41.07$    54.50$  
Mid 47.78$    

Min|Max 43.13$    52.44$  
Closest PWD Range 30



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
0.215505174 $20.90 $21.94 $23.04 $24.19 $25.40 $26.67 $28.00 $29.40 $30.87 $32.42 $34.04 $35.74 $37.53 $39.40 $41.38 $43.44 $45.62 $47.90 $50.29 $52.81 $55.45 $58.22 $61.13

Maintenance Worker I Palmdale Water District $-$
PWD Recommendation 21 28.00$    34.04$  21 PWD-Recommendation $28.0043-$34.04
Facilities Maintenance Specialist I 26.24$    34.12$  Cucamonga Valley Water District $26.24-$34.12
Facilities Maintenance Worker 28.91$    39.85$  Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $28.91-$39.85
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
No equivalent position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
No equivalent position Western Municipal Water District $-$
Facilities Maintenance Technician I 27.46$    33.47$  Santa Clarita Valley Water  $27.46-$33.47
No equivalent position Desert Water Agency $-$
Building and Facilities Technician I 27.27$    33.97$  Eastern Municipal Water District $27.27-$33.97
Facilities Maintenance Worker I 26.04$    35.90$  Mesa Consolidated Water District $26.04-$35.9
Building and Grounds Worker I 24.67$    29.60$  Rancho CA Water District $24.67-$29.6
Facilities Maintenance Worker I 24.05$    37.56$  Walnut Valley Water District $24.05-$37.56
Facilities Maintenance Worker I-12 22.59$    31.95$  Padre Dam Municipal Water District $22.59-$31.95

25.90$    34.55$  
Mid 30.23$    

Min|Max 27.28$    33.17$  
Closest PWD Range 21

Maintenance Worker II 24 32.42$    39.40$  Palmdale Water District $32.4184-$39.4047
Facilities Maintenance Specialist II 30.76$    39.98$  Cucamonga Valley Water District $30.76-$39.98
No Equivalent Position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
Facilities Maintenance Worker 32.49$    41.58$  Yorba Linda Water District $32.49-$41.58
No equivalent position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
No equivalent position Western Municipal Water District $-$
Facilities Maintenance Technician II 31.78$    38.71$  Santa Clarita Valley Water  $31.78-$38.71
No equivalent position Desert Water Agency $-$
Building and Facilities Technician II 30.08$    37.45$  Eastern Municipal Water District $30.08-$37.45
Facilities Maintenance Worker II 28.75$    39.63$  Mesa Consolidated Water District $28.75-$39.63
Building and Grounds Worker II 28.55$    34.25$  Rancho California Water District $28.55-$34.25
Facilities Maintenance Worker II 25.60$    39.99$  Walnut Valley Water District $25.6-$39.99
Facilities Maintenance Worker II-14 24.82$    35.09$  Padre Dam Municipal Water District $24.82-$35.09

29.10$    38.34$  
Mid 33.72$    

Min|Max 30.43$    37.01$  
Closest PWD Range 23

Operations Technician I 25 34.04$    41.37$  Palmdale Water District $34.0393-$41.3749
Fleet and Equipment Mechanic I 28.41$    36.92$  Cucamonga Valley Water District $28.41-$36.92
Maintenance Mechanic I 29.79$    41.06$  Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $29.79-$41.06
Mechanic I 24.25$    31.02$  Yorba Linda Water District $24.25-$31.02
Pump/Motor Tech I 29.86$    41.77$  Olivenhain Municipal Water District $29.86-$41.77
Operations Technician -Mechanical II 31.12$    44.21$  Western Municipal Water District $31.12-$44.21
No equivalent position Santa Clarita Valley Water  $-$
Operations Technician I 34.17$    41.58$  Desert Water Agency $34.17-$41.58
Mechanical Maintenance Technician I 31.58$    39.33$  Eastern Municipal Water District $31.58-$39.33
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Mechanic I 29.25$    35.10$  Rancho California Water District $29.25-$35.1
Pump Operator I 28.26$    44.13$  Walnut Valley Water District $28.26-$44.13
System Operator/Technician I-19 30.45$    43.06$  Padre Dam Municipal Water District $30.45-$43.06

29.71$    39.82$  
Mid 34.77$    

Min|Max 31.38$    38.15$  
Closest PWD Range 24



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
0.215505174 $20.90 $21.94 $23.04 $24.19 $25.40 $26.67 $28.00 $29.40 $30.87 $32.42 $34.04 $35.74 $37.53 $39.40 $41.38 $43.44 $45.62 $47.90 $50.29 $52.81 $55.45 $58.22 $61.13

Operations Technician II 28 39.40$    47.90$  Palmdale Water District $39.4048-$47.8967
Fleet and Equipment Mechanic II 33.29$    43.27$  Cucamonga Valley Water District $33.29-$43.27
Maintenance Mechanic II 34.58$    47.68$  Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $34.58-$47.68
Mechanic II 29.47$    37.72$  Yorba Linda Water District $29.47-$37.72
Pump/Motor Tech II 39.83$    55.76$  Olivenhain Municipal Water District $39.83-$55.76
Operations Technician -Mechanical III 34.32$    48.75$  Western Municipal Water District $34.32-$48.75
No equivalent position Santa Clarita Valley Water  $-$
Operations Technician II 37.68$    45.91$  Desert Water Agency $37.68-$45.91
Mechanical Maintenance Technician II 34.82$    43.36$  Eastern Municipal Water District $34.82-$43.36
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Mechanic II 33.86$    40.63$  Rancho California Water District $33.86-$40.63
Pump Operator II 29.41$    45.92$  Walnut Valley Water District $29.41-$45.92
System Operator/Technician II-21 32.80$    46.38$  Padre Dam Municipal Water District $32.8-$46.38

34.01$    45.54$  
Mid 39.77$    

Min|Max 35.90$    43.65$  
Closest PWD Range 27

Operations Technician III- Foreman 31 45.62$    55.45$  Palmdale Water District $45.616-$55.45
Lead Fleet and Equipment Mechanic 38.24$    49.70$  Cucamonga Valley Water District $38.24-$49.7
Senior Maintenance Mechanic 37.45$    51.63$  Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $37.45-$51.63
Mechanic III 32.49$    41.58$  Yorba Linda Water District $32.49-$41.58
No equivalent position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Operations Technician -Mechanical IV 37.83$    53.75$  Western Municipal Water District $37.83-$53.75
No equivalent position Santa Clarita Valley Water  $-$
Operations Technician Foreman 48.24$    58.64$  Desert Water Agency $48.24-$58.64
No equivalent position Eastern Municipal Water District $-$
No equivalent position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Senior Mechanic 37.32$    44.79$  Rancho California Water District $37.32-$44.79
Senior Pump Operator 33.30$    51.99$  Walnut Valley Water District $33.3-$51.99
System Operator/Technician III-23L 37.03$    52.37$  Padre Dam Municipal Water District $37.03-$52.37

37.74$    50.56$  
Mid 44.15$    

Min|Max 39.84$    48.45$  
Closest PWD Range 29

Service Worker I 21 28.00$  34.04$  Palmdale Water District $28.0043-$34.0394
PWD Recommendation 23 30.87$    37.53$  23 PWD-Recommendation $30.8747-$37.5284
Water Utility Worker I 26.78$    34.80$  Cucamonga Valley Water District $26.78-$34.8
No equivalent position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
Maintenance Worker I 24.25$    31.02$  Yorba Linda Water District $24.25-$31.02
Utility I 23.20$    32.44$  Olivenhain Municipal Water District $23.2-$32.44
Operations Technician -Construction II 31.12$    44.21$  Western Municipal Water District $31.12-$44.21
Utility Worker I 28.82$    35.14$  Santa Clarita Valley Water  $28.82-$35.14
Water Service Worker I 27.29$    33.29$  Desert Water Agency $27.29-$33.29
Pipeline Construction Utility Worker I 28.64$    35.66$  Eastern Municipal Water District $28.64-$35.66
Operator I 28.75$    39.63$  Mesa Consolidated Water District $28.75-$39.63
Field Distribution Operator I-Construction 27.85$    33.42$  Rancho California Water District $27.85-$33.42
Utility  Service Worker I 25.60$    39.99$  Walnut Valley Water District $25.6-$39.99
Utility  Service Worker I 24.82$    35.09$  Padre Dam Municipal Water District $24.82-$35.09

27.01$    35.88$  
Mid 31.45$    

Min|Max 28.38$  34.51$  
Closest PWD Range 22



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
0.215505174 $20.90 $21.94 $23.04 $24.19 $25.40 $26.67 $28.00 $29.40 $30.87 $32.42 $34.04 $35.74 $37.53 $39.40 $41.38 $43.44 $45.62 $47.90 $50.29 $52.81 $55.45 $58.22 $61.13

Service Worker II 25 34.04$    41.37$  Palmdale Water District $34.0393-$41.3749
PWD Recommendation 26 35.74$    43.44$  26 PWD-Recommendation $35.7413-$43.4437
Water Utility Worker II 31.37$    40.78$  Cucamonga Valley Water District $31.37-$40.78
No equivalent position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
Maintenance Worker II 28.05$    35.91$  Yorba Linda Water District $28.05-$35.91
Utility II 23.20$    32.44$  Olivenhain Municipal Water District $23.2-$32.44
Operations Technician -Construction III 34.32$    48.75$  Western Municipal Water District $34.32-$48.75
Utility Worker II 33.37$    40.66$  Santa Clarita Valley Water  $33.37-$40.66
Water Service Worker II 30.94$    37.68$  Desert Water Agency $30.94-$37.68
Pipeline Construction Utility Worker II 31.58$    39.33$  Eastern Municipal Water District $31.58-$39.33
Operator II 34.17$    47.10$  Mesa Consolidated Water District $34.17-$47.1
Field Distribution Operator II-Construction 32.24$    38.69$  Rancho California Water District $32.24-$38.69
Utility  Service Worker II 26.44$    41.28$  Walnut Valley Water District $26.44-$41.28
Utility  Service Worker II 28.46$    40.29$  Padre Dam Municipal Water District $28.46-$40.29

30.38$    40.26$  
Mid 35.32$    

Min|Max 31.88$    38.76$  
Closest PWD Range 24

Service Worker III 29 41.38$    50.29$  Palmdale Water District $41.375-$50.2915
Lead Water Utility Worker 36.75$    47.77$  Cucamonga Valley Water District $36.75-$47.77
No equivalent position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
Maintenance Worker III 32.49$    41.58$  Yorba Linda Water District $32.49-$41.58
Utility III 29.86$    41.77$  Olivenhain Municipal Water District $29.86-$41.77
Operations Technician -Construction IV 37.83$    53.75$  Western Municipal Water District $37.83-$53.75
Senior Utility Worker 38.62$    47.06$  Santa Clarita Valley Water  $38.62-$47.06
Water Service Worker III 34.17$    41.58$  Desert Water Agency $34.17-$41.58
Pipeline Construction Utility Worker III 34.82$    43.36$  Eastern Municipal Water District $34.82-$43.36
Senior Operator 39.63$    54.63$  Mesa Consolidated Water District $39.63-$54.63
Sr. Field Distribution Operator -Construction 35.55$    42.66$  Rancho California Water District $35.55-$42.66
Utility  Service Lead 31.48$    49.14$  Walnut Valley Water District $31.48-$49.14
No equivalent position Padre Dam Municipal Water District $-$

35.12$    46.33$  
Mid 40.73$    

Min|Max 36.76$    44.69$  
Closest PWD Range 27



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49
0.215505836 $6,504.92 $6,830.17 $7,171.67 $7,530.26 $7,906.77 $8,302.11 $8,717.21 $9,153.07 $9,610.73 $10,091.26 $10,595.81 $11,125.61 $11,681.89 $12,265.99 $12,879.29 $13,523.26 $14,199.41 $14,909.39 $15,654.86 $16,437.60 $17,259.48 $18,122.45 $19,028.57

Operations Supervisor-Construction & 
Mechanical 34 9,153.07$     11,125.61$   Palmdale Water District $9153.07-$11125.61
PWD Recommendation 35 9,610.73$     11,681.90$   35 PWD-Recommendation $9610.73-$11681.8984
Water Utility Supervisor 7,921.00$     10,297.00$   Cucamonga Valley Water District $7921-$10297
Facilitie Maintenance Supervisor 8,878.13$     11,540.67$   Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $8878.13-$11540.67
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
Operations Supervisor 7,311.70$     10,972.80$   Olivenhain Municipal Water District $7311.7-$10972.8
Operations Supervisor 8,981.25$     13,366.83$   Western Municipal Water District $8981.25-$13366.83
Utility Supervisor 9,422.00$     11,482.00$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $9422-$11482
Assistant Construction Superintendent 8,787.00$     10,681.00$   Desert Water Agency $8787-$10681
Mechanical Maintenance Supervisor 8,493.33$     10,573.33$   Eastern Municipal Water District $8493.33-$10573.33
Water Operation Supervisor 8,792.00$     12,120.00$   Mesa Consolidated Water District $8792-$12120
Field Services Supervisor 9,343.36$     11,212.07$   Rancho California Water District $9343.36-$11212.07
Field Supervisor 6,970.00$     10,846.00$   Walnut Valley Water District $6970-$10846
Distribution Maintenance Supervisor 6,954.00$     9,844.00$     Padre Dam Municipal Water District $6954-$9844

8,350.34$     11,175.97$   
Mid 9,763.16$     

Min|Max 8,811.51$     10,714.80$   
Closest PWD Range 34

Facilities Manager 41 12,879.29$   15,654.85$   Palmdale Water District 12879.29-15654.8522
Construction and Maintenance Manager 10,659.00$   13,857.00$   Cucamonga Valley Water District 10659-13857
Facilities Manager 10,936.71$   15,313.65$   Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  10936.71-15313.65
Maintenance Superintendent 9,176.25$     11,748.50$   Yorba Linda Water District 9176.25-11748.5
Operations Manager 11,654.46$   18,588.72$   Olivenhain Municipal Water District 11654.46-18588.72
Operations Field Manager 11,157.83$   16,605.92$   Western Municipal Water District 11157.83-16605.92
Water Distribution Manager 12,024.00$   14,648.00$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  12024-14648
Construction Superintendent 11,781.00$   14,349.00$   Desert Water Agency 11781-14349
Director of Maintenance 13,171.60$   16,404.27$   Eastern Municipal Water District 13171.6-16404.27
Water Operations Manager 13,712.00$   18,903.00$   Mesa Consolidated Water District 13712-18903
Field Service Manager 12,452.79$   16,437.72$   Rancho California Water District 12452.79-16437.72
Field Superintendent 8,467.00$     13,176.00$   Walnut Valley Water District 8467-13176
Distribution Maintenance Manager 8,497.00$     12,015.00$   Padre Dam Municipal Water District 8497-12015

11,140.80$   15,170.57$   
Mid 13,155.68$   

Min|Max 11,873.36$   14,438.01$   
Closest PWD Range 40



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38
0.215505836 $23.04 $24.19 $25.40 $26.67 $28.00 $29.40 $30.87 $32.42 $34.04 $35.74 $37.53 $39.40 $41.38 $43.44 $45.62 $47.90 $50.29 $52.81 $55.45 $58.22 $61.13 $64.19

Lab Analyst I 26 35.74$   43.44$   Palmdale Water District $35.7413-$43.4438
No Equivalent Position Cucamonga Valley Water District $-$
Laboratory Technician 1 32.90$   45.35$   Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $32.9-$45.35
Water Quality Technician I 28.05$   35.91$   Yorba Linda Water District $28.05-$35.91
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Operations Technician II-Water Quality 31.12$   44.21$   Western Municipal Water District $31.12-$44.21
Water Quality Scientist I 40.55$   49.43$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $40.55-$49.43
No Equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Scientist I 31.58$   39.33$   Eastern Municipal Water District $31.58-$39.33
Water Quality Technician I 31.73$   43.74$   Mesa Consolidated Water District $31.73-$43.74
No Equivalent Position Rancho California Water District $-$
Water Quality Technician I 30.28$   47.27$   Walnut Valley Water District $30.28-$47.27
Laboratory Analyst 1 24.82$   35.09$   Padre Dam Municipal Water District $24.82-$35.09

31.38$   42.54$   
Mid 36.96$   

Min|Max 33.36$   40.56$   
Closest PWD Range 25

Lab Analyst II 29 41.38$   50.29$   Palmdale Water District $41.375-$50.2916
Water Quality Coordinator 41.37$   53.80$   Cucamonga Valley Water District $41.37-$53.8
Laboratory Technician II 38.19$   52.67$   Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $38.19-$52.67
Water Quality Technician II 30.94$   39.59$   Yorba Linda Water District $30.94-$39.59
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Operations Technician III-Water Quality 34.32$   48.75$   Western Municipal Water District $34.32-$48.75
Water Quality Scientist II 46.96$   57.20$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $46.96-$57.2
No Equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Scientist II 34.82$   43.36$   Eastern Municipal Water District $34.82-$43.36
Water Quality Technician II 36.80$   50.72$   Mesa Consolidated Water District $36.8-$50.72
No Equivalent Position Rancho California Water District $-$
Water Quality Specialist 36.38$   56.79$   Walnut Valley Water District $36.38-$56.79
Laboratory Analyst II 32.10$   45.40$   Padre Dam Municipal Water District $32.1-$45.4

36.88$   49.81$   
Mid 43.34$   

Min|Max 39.12$   47.57$   
Closest PWD Range 28

Plant Operator I 26 35.74$   43.44$   Palmdale Water District $35.7413-$43.4438
Water Treatment Plant Operator I 31.99$   41.59$   Cucamonga Valley Water District $31.99-$41.59
Water Treatment Plant Operator II 29.49$   40.66$   Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $29.49-$40.66
Plant Operator I 29.47$   37.72$   Yorba Linda Water District $29.47-$37.72
Water Treatment Plant Operator II 29.86$   41.77$   Olivenhain Municipal Water District $29.86-$41.77
Operations Technician-Prd/Dist II 31.12$   44.21$   Western Municipal Water District $31.12-$44.21
Treatment Plant Operator I 40.55$   49.41$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $40.55-$49.41
System Operator II 34.98$   40.58$   Desert Water Agency $34.98-$40.58
Potable Water Treatment Operator II 31.58$   39.33$   Eastern Municipal Water District $31.58-$39.33
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Water Treatment Operator II 38.26$   45.91$   Rancho California Water District $38.26-$45.91
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
Systems Operator/Technician 30.45$   43.06$   

32.78$   42.42$   
Mid 37.60$   

Min|Max 33.93$   41.26$   
Closest PWD Range 25

Plant Operator II 29 41.38$   50.29$   Palmdale Water District $41.375-$50.2916
Water Treatment Plant Operator II 37.48$   48.73$   Cucamonga Valley Water District $37.48-$48.73
Water Treatment Plant Operator III 36.70$   50.61$   Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $36.7-$50.61
Plant Operator II 32.49$   41.58$   Yorba Linda Water District $32.49-$41.58
Water Treatment Plant Operator III 34.34$   48.07$   Olivenhain Municipal Water District $34.34-$48.07



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38
0.215505836 $23.04 $24.19 $25.40 $26.67 $28.00 $29.40 $30.87 $32.42 $34.04 $35.74 $37.53 $39.40 $41.38 $43.44 $45.62 $47.90 $50.29 $52.81 $55.45 $58.22 $61.13 $64.19

Operations Technician-Prd/Dist IV 34.32$   48.75$   Western Municipal Water District $34.32-$48.75
Treatment Plant Operator II 46.94$   57.20$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $46.94-$57.2
System Operator III 37.68$   45.91$   Desert Water Agency $37.68-$45.91
Potable Water Treatment Operator III 36.56$   39.33$   Eastern Municipal Water District $36.56-$39.33
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Sr. Water Treatment Operator 42.18$   50.61$   Rancho California Water District $42.18-$50.61
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
Systems Operator/Technician 32.80$   46.38$   Padre Dam Municipal Water District $32.8-$46.38

37.15$   47.72$   
Mid 42.43$   

Min|Max 38.30$   46.57$   
Closest PWD Range 28

Plant Operator III 32 47.90$   58.22$   Palmdale Water District $47.8968-$58.2188
Lead Water Treatment Plant Operator 43.92$   57.10$   Cucamonga Valley Water District $43.92-$57.1
Sr Water Treatment Plant Operator 40.54$   55.91$   Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $40.54-$55.91
Chief Water System Operator (exempt) 48.02$   61.48$   Yorba Linda Water District $48.02-$61.48
Water Treatment Plant Operator IV 39.83$   55.76$   Olivenhain Municipal Water District $39.83-$55.76
Senior Operations Technician I 39.72$   56.44$   Western Municipal Water District $39.72-$56.44
Senior Treatment Plant Operator 51.77$   63.08$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $51.77-$63.08
No Equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Potable Water Treatment Operator V 44.43$   55.33$   Eastern Municipal Water District $44.43-$55.33
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Rancho California Water District $-$
Production and Storage Lead 38.07$   59.43$   Walnut Valley Water District $38.07-$59.43
Systems Operator/Technician 35.27$   49.88$   Padre Dam Municipal Water District $35.27-$49.88

42.40$   57.16$   
Mid 49.78$   

Min|Max 44.92$   54.63$   
Closest PWD Range 31



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49
0.215505836 $6,830.17 $7,171.67 $7,530.26 $7,906.77 $8,302.11 $8,717.21 $9,153.07 $9,610.73 $10,091.26 $10,595.81 $11,125.61 $11,681.89 $12,265.99 $12,879.29 $13,523.26 $14,199.41 $14,909.39 $15,654.86 $16,437.60 $17,259.48 $18,122.45 $19,028.57

Operations Manager 41 12,879.29$   15,654.85$   Palmdale Water District $12879.29-$15654.8522
Water Treatment Plant Manager 11,312.00$   14,705.00$   Cucamonga Valley Water District $11312-$14705
No Equivalent Position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
Water Production Superintendent 12,911.58$   16,532.50$   Yorba Linda Water District $12911.58-$16532.5
Water Treatment Facilities Supervisor 8,463.69$     12,683.02$   Olivenhain Municipal Water District $8463.69-$12683.02
No Equivalent Position Western Municipal Water District $-$
Water Treatment Manager 12,024.00$   14,648.00$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $12024-$14648
Water Operations Supervisor 10,430.00$   12,674.00$   Desert Water Agency $10430-$12674
Water Operations Manager 9,363.47$     11,654.93$   Eastern Municipal Water District $9363.47-$11654.93
Water Operations Manager 13,712.00$   18,903.00$ Mesa Consolidated Water District $13712-$18903
Water Operations Manager 14,080.91$ 18,586.71$ Rancho California Water District $14080.91-$18586.71
Production Manager 7,525.00$   11,709.00$ Walnut Valley Water District $7525-$11709
Plant Manager 8,497.00$   12,015.00$ Padre Dam Municipal Water District $8497-$12015

10,831.97$   14,411.12$   
Mid 12,621.54$   

Min|Max 11,391.28$   13,851.80$   
Closest PWD Range 39

Water Quality/Regulatory Affairs Superv 35 9,610.73$     11,681.90$   Palmdale Water District $9610.73-$11681.8984
No Equivalent Position Cucamonga Valley Water District $-$
Water Quality Supervisor 8,878.13$     11,540.67$   Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $8878.13-$11540.67
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Western Municipal Water District $-$
Water Quality Supervisor 9,422.00$     11,482.00$   Santa Clarita Valley Water  $9422-$11482
Laboratory Director 8,787.00$   10,681.00$ Desert Water Agency $8787-$10681
Manager of Laboratory and Water Quality Services 11,379.33$   14,170.00$   Eastern Municipal Water District $11379.33-$14170
Water Quality and Compliance Supervisor 8,368.00$   11,536.00$ Mesa Consolidated Water District $8368-$11536
Water Quality Supervisor 9,343.36$   11,212.07$ Rancho California Water District $9343.36-$11212.07
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
Laboratory Analyst Senior 8,039.00$   11,378.00$ Padre Dam Municipal Water District $8039-$11378

9,173.83$     11,714.25$   
Mid 10,444.04$   

Min|Max 9,426.03$     11,462.05$   
Closest PWD Range 35



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46
0.215505174 $24.1912 $25.4008 $26.6708 $28.0043 $29.4045 $30.8747 $32.4184 $34.0393 $35.7413 $37.5284 $39.4048 $41.3750 $43.4438 $45.6160 $47.8968 $50.2916 $52.8062 $55.4465 $58.2188 $61.1297 $64.1862 $67.3955 $70.7653 $74.3036 $78.0188 $81.9197 $86.0157 $90.3165 $94.8323

Construction Inspector Trainee 25 34.04$            41.38$            Palmdale Water District $34.04-$41.38
No Equivalent Position Cucamonga Valley Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Western Municipal Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Santa Clarita Valley Water  $-$
No Equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
No Equivalent Position Eastern Municipal Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Rancho California Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$

Engineering Technician I 26 35.74$            43.44$            Palmdale Water District $35.74-$43.44
25 34.04$            41.38$            25 Palmdale Water District $34.04-$41.38

Engineering Technician 1 30.14$            39.20$            Cucamonga Valley Water District $30.14-$39.2
No Equivalent Position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
Engineering Technician I 29.86$            41.77$            Olivenhain Municipal Water District $29.86-$41.77
Engineering Technician I 32.67$            46.43$            Western Municipal Water District $32.67-$46.43
Engineering Technician I 31.78$            38.71$            Santa Clarita Valley Water  $31.78-$38.71
Engineering Technician I 31.71$            38.64$            Desert Water Agency $31.71-$38.64
Engineering Technician I 31.58$            39.33$            Eastern Municipal Water District $31.58-$39.33
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Engineering Technician I 30.71$            36.85$            Rancho California Water District $30.71-$36.85
Engineering Technician I 26.44$            41.28$            Walnut Valley Water District $26.44-$41.28
Engineering Technician-18 29.73$            42.06$            Padre Dam Municipal Water District $29.73-$42.06

30.51$            40.47$            
Mid 35.49$            

Min|Max 32.03$            38.95$            
Closest PWD Range 24

Construction Inspector I 27 37.53$            45.62$            Palmdale Water District $37.53-$45.62
Engineering Inspector I 32.63$            42.42$            Cucamonga Valley Water District $32.63-$42.42
No Equivalent Position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
Inspector I 29.86$            41.77$            Olivenhain Municipal Water District $29.86-$41.77
No Equivalent Position Western Municipal Water District $-$
Inspector I 38.62$            47.06$            Santa Clarita Valley Water  $38.62-$47.06
Construction Inspector I 36.74$            44.80$            Desert Water Agency $36.74-$44.8
Construction and Safety Inspector I 34.82$            43.36$            Eastern Municipal Water District $34.82-$43.36
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Construction Inspector I 33.86$            40.62$            Rancho California Water District $33.86-$40.62
Construction Inspector I 26.44$            41.28$            Walnut Valley Water District $26.44-$41.28
Construction Inspector-18 29.73$            42.06$            Padre Dam Municipal Water District $29.73-$42.06

32.84$            42.92$            
Mid 37.88$            

Min|Max 34.19$            41.57$            
Closest PWD Range 25

Engineering Technician II 27 37.53$            45.62$            Palmdale Water District $37.5284-$45.62
PWD-Recommendation 28 39.40$            47.90$            28 PWD-Recommndation $39.4048-$47.8967
Engineering Technician II 35.33$            45.92$            Cucamonga Valley Water District $35.33-$45.92
No Equivalent Position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
Engineering Technician II 34.34$            48.07$            Olivenhain Municipal Water District $34.34-$48.07
Engineering Technician II 36.03$            51.19$            Western Municipal Water District $36.03-$51.19
Engineering Technician II 36.79$            44.83$            Santa Clarita Valley Water  $36.79-$44.83
Engineering Technician II 35.87$            43.69$            Desert Water Agency $35.87-$43.69
Engineering Technician II 34.82$            43.36$            Eastern Municipal Water District $34.82-$43.36
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Engineering Technician II 35.55$            42.66$            Rancho California Water District $35.55-$42.66
Engineering Technician II 28.26$            44.13$            Walnut Valley Water District $28.26-$44.13
Engineering Technician-23 35.27$            49.88$            Padre Dam Municipal Water District $35.27-$49.88

34.70$            45.97$            
Mid 40.33$            

Min|Max 36.40$            44.26$            
Closest PWD Range 27

Assistant Engineer 32 47.90$            58.22$            Palmdale Water District $47.9-$58.22
PWD-Recommendation 34 52.81$            64.19$            33 PWD-Recommendation $52.8062-$64.1862
Assistant Engineer 42.22$            54.87$            Cucamonga Valley Water District $42.22-$54.87
Assistant Engineer 47.29$            61.47$            Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $47.29-$61.47



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46
0.215505174 $24.1912 $25.4008 $26.6708 $28.0043 $29.4045 $30.8747 $32.4184 $34.0393 $35.7413 $37.5284 $39.4048 $41.3750 $43.4438 $45.6160 $47.8968 $50.2916 $52.8062 $55.4465 $58.2188 $61.1297 $64.1862 $67.3955 $70.7653 $74.3036 $78.0188 $81.9197 $86.0157 $90.3165 $94.8323

Assistant Engineer II 34.10$            43.65$            Yorba Linda Water District $34.1-$43.65
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Western Municipal Water District $-$
Assistant Engineer 46.96$            57.21$            Santa Clarita Valley Water  $46.96-$57.21
No Equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Assistant Engineer 46.66$            58.10$            Eastern Municipal Water District $46.66-$58.1
Associate Engineer I 43.74$            60.29$            Mesa Consolidated Water District $43.74-$60.29
Assistant Engineer 52.30$            69.04$            Rancho California Water District $52.3-$69.04
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
Assistant Engineer-29 42.12$            59.56$            

44.42$            58.02$            
Mid 51.22$            

Min|Max 46.23$            56.22$            
Closest PWD Range 32

Construction Inspector III Palmdale Water District $-$
PWD-Recommendation 33 50.29$            61.13$            33 PWD-Recommendation $50.2916-$61.1297
Lead Engineering Inspector 44.80$            58.25$            Cucamonga Valley Water District $44.8-$58.25
Technical Services Support Supervisor 51.22$            66.58$            Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $51.22-$66.58
Senior Construction Inspector 37.61$            48.13$            Yorba Linda Water District $37.61-$48.13
Inspector III 39.83$            55.76$            Olivenhain Municipal Water District $39.83-$55.76
No Equivalent Position Western Municipal Water District $-$
Senior Inspector 51.76$            63.06$            Santa Clarita Valley Water  $51.76-$63.06
No Equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Construction and Safety Inspector III 44.43$            55.33$            Eastern Municipal Water District $44.43-$55.33
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Senior Construction Inspector 43.21$            51.85$            Rancho CA Water District $43.21-$51.85
Senior Construction Inspector 32.49$            50.71$            Walnut Valley Water District $32.49-$50.71
Construction Inspector-25 37.65$            53.29$            Padre Dam Municipal Water District $37.65-$53.29

42.56$            55.88$            
Mid 49.22$            

Min|Max 44.42$            54.02$            
Closest PWD Range 31

Construction Inspector II 29 41.38$            50.29$            Palmdale Water District $41.375-$50.2915
PWD-Recommendation 30 43.44$            52.81$            30 PWD-Recommendation $43.4438-$52.8062
Engineering Inspector II 38.24$            49.70$            Cucamonga Valley Water District $38.24-$49.7(Engineering Inspector II)
Compliance Inspector 34.92$            48.15$            Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $34.92-$48.15(Compliance Inspector)
Construction Inspector 34.10$            43.65$            Yorba Linda Water District $34.1-$43.65(Construction Inspector)
Inspector II 34.34$            48.07$            Olivenhain Municipal Water District $34.34-$48.07(Inspector II)
No Equivalent Position Western Municipal Water District $-$
Inspector II 40.56$            49.43$            Santa Clarita Valley Water  $40.56-$49.43
Construction Inspector II 40.58$            47.07$            Desert Water Agency $40.58-$47.07
Construction and Safety Inspector II 38.37$            47.79$            Eastern Municipal Water District $38.37-$47.79
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Construction Inspector II 39.19$            47.03$            Rancho California Water District $39.19-$47.03
Construction Inspector II 29.41$            45.92$            Walnut Valley Water District $29.41-$45.92
Construction Inspector-23 35.27$            49.88$            Padre Dam Municipal Water District $35.27-$49.88

36.50$            47.67$            
Mid 42.08$            

Min|Max 37.98$            46.19$            
Closest PWD Range 28

Engineering Analyst 33 50.29$            61.13$            Palmdale Water District $50.2916-$61.1297
No Equivalent Position Cucamonga Valley Water District $-$
Technical Services Support Specialist 32.90$            45.36$            Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $32.9-$45.36
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
Cathodic Protection Technician 29.86$            41.77$            Olivenhain Municipal Water District $29.86-$41.77
No Equivalent Position Western Municipal Water District $-$
Recycled Water Coordinator Tech 33.37$            40.66$            Santa Clarita Valley Water  $33.37-$40.66
No Equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Environmental Compliance Analyst I 38.37$            47.79$            Eastern Municipal Water District $38.37-$47.79
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Engineering Project Cooordinator 45.37$            54.44$            Rancho California Water District $45.37-$54.44
Senior Civil Engineering Assistant 38.07$            59.43$            Walnut Valley Water District $38.07-$59.43
No Equivalent Position

36.32$            48.24$            
Mid 42.28$            

Min|Max 38.16$            46.40$            
Closest PWD Range 28

Engineering Technician III 29 41.38$            50.29$            Palmdale Water District $41.375-$50.2915



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46
0.215505174 $24.1912 $25.4008 $26.6708 $28.0043 $29.4045 $30.8747 $32.4184 $34.0393 $35.7413 $37.5284 $39.4048 $41.3750 $43.4438 $45.6160 $47.8968 $50.2916 $52.8062 $55.4465 $58.2188 $61.1297 $64.1862 $67.3955 $70.7653 $74.3036 $78.0188 $81.9197 $86.0157 $90.3165 $94.8323

PWD-Recommendation 31 45.62$            55.45$            31 PWD-Recommendation $45.616-$55.4465
Lead Engineering Technician 41.37$            53.80$            Cucamonga Valley Water District $41.37-$53.8
Planning & New Development Technician 34.92$            48.15$            Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $34.92-$48.15
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
Engineering Technician III 39.83$            55.76$            Olivenhain Municipal Water District $39.83-$55.76
Senior Engineering Technician 39.72$            56.43$            Western Municipal Water District $39.72-$56.43
Senior Engineering Technician 42.58$            51.88$            Santa Clarita Valley Water  $42.58-$51.88
Engineering Technician III 39.58$            45.91$            Desert Water Agency $39.58-$45.91
Senior Engineering Technician 38.37$            47.79$            Eastern Municipal Water District $38.37-$47.79
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Senior Engineering Technician 39.19$            47.03$            Rancho California Water District $39.19-$47.03
Senior Engineering Technician 31.48$            49.14$            Walnut Valley Water District $31.48-$49.14
Engineering Technician-25L 39.53$            55.95$            Padre Dam Municipal Water District $39.53-$55.95

38.66$            51.18$            
Mid 44.92$            

Min|Max 40.54$            49.30$            
Closest PWD Range 29

Junior Engineer 31 45.62$            55.45$            Palmdale Water District $45.616-$55.4465
No Equivalent Position Cucamonga Valley Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
Assistant Eng 1 28.05$            35.91$            Yorba Linda Water District $28.05-$35.91
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Engineer I 48.20$            71.74$            Western Municipal Water District $48.2-$71.74
Associate Engineer 54.36$            66.24$            Santa Clarita Valley Water  $54.36-$66.24
Staff Engineer 48.24$            58.64$            Desert Water Agency $48.24-$58.64
No Equivalent Position Eastern Municipal Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Rancho California Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position

44.71$            58.13$            
Mid 51.42$            

Min|Max 46.41$            56.43$            
Closest PWD Range 32

Senior Engineer 38 64.19$            78.02$            convert to Exempt Palmdale Water District $64.1862-$78.0187
No Equivalent Position Cucamonga Valley Water District $-$
Senior Engineer 63.10$            82.05$            Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $63.1-$82.05
Senior Engineer 50.43$            64.56$            Yorba Linda Water District $50.43-$64.56
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Senior Engineer 59.88$            89.11$            Western Municipal Water District $59.88-$89.11
Principal Engineer 76.49$            93.19$            Santa Clarita Valley Water  $76.49-$93.19
Senior Engineer 66.34$            80.77$            Desert Water Agency $66.34-$80.77
Associate Civil Engineer II 56.70$            67.24$            Eastern Municipal Water District $54.02-$67.24
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Principal Engineer 63.57$            83.92$            Rancho California Water District $63.57-$83.92
Senior Civil Engineer 42.44$            66.26$            Walnut Valley Water District $42.44-$66.26
Senior Engineer-36 50.29$            71.12$            Padre Dam Municipal Water District $50.29-$71.12

58.80$            77.58$            
Mid 68.19$            

Min|Max 61.55$            74.84$            
Closest PWD Range 38

Associate Engineer 35 55.45$            67.40$            convert to exempt Palmdale Water District $55.4465-$67.3955
Associate Engineer 50.45$            65.58$            Cucamonga Valley Water District $50.45-$65.58
Associate Engineer 53.81$            69.98$            Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $53.81-$69.98
Associate Engineer 43.55$            55.75$            Yorba Linda Water District $43.55-$55.75
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Engineer II Western Municipal Water District $-$
Senior Engineer 66.08$            80.51$            Santa Clarita Valley Water  $66.08-$80.51
Associate Engineer 54.56$            66.34$            Desert Water Agency $54.56-$66.34
Associate Engineer I 54.02$            67.24$            Eastern Municipal Water District $-$
Senior Civil Engineer 58.82$            81.09$            Mesa Consolidated Water District $58.82-$81.09
Associate Engineer 57.67$            76.12$            Rancho California Water District $57.67-$76.12
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
Associate Engineer-33 46.81$            66.17$            Padre Dam Municipal Water District $46.81-$66.17

53.97$            69.86$            
Mid 61.92$            

Min|Max 55.88$            67.95$            
Closest PWD Range 35



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51
0.215505174 $6,830.17 $7,171.67 $7,530.26 $7,906.77 $8,302.11 $8,717.21 $9,153.07 $9,610.73 ######## ######## ######## ######## ######## ######## ######## ######## ######## ######## ######## ######## ######## ######## ######## ########

Engineering Manager 44 14,909.38$   18,122.45$ Palmdale Water District $14909.38-$18122.45
Engineering Manager 11,312.00$   14,705.00$ Cucamonga Valley Water District $11312-$14705
Engineering Program Mgr 11,594.75$   15,073.90$ Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $11594.75-$15073.9
Engineering Manager 12,911.58$   16,532.50$ Yorba Linda Water District $12911.58-$16532.5
Engineering Manager 11,654.46$   18,588.72$ Olivenhain Municipal Water District $11654.46-$18588.72
Deputy Director of Engineering 12,273.33$   18,266.42$ Western Municipal Water District $12273.33-$18266.42
Chief Engineer 16,921.00$   20,615.00$ Santa Clarita Valley Water  $16921-$20615
Operations & Engineer Manager 14,000.00$   17,030.00$ Desert Water Agency $14000-$17030
Engineering Manager 13,171.60$   16,404.27$ Eastern Municipal Water District $13171.6-$16404.27
Principal Engineer 11,824.00$   16,300.00$ Mesa Consolidated Water District $11824-$16300
Engineering Manager 12,452.79$   16,437.72$ Rancho California Water District $12452.79-$16437.72
Engineering Manager 9,315.00$     14,495.00$ Walnut Valley Water District $9315-$14495
Engineering Manager 10,242.00$   14,489.00$ Padre Dam Municipal Water District $10242-$14489

12,306.04$   16,578.13$ 
Mid 14,442.09$   

Min|Max 13,034.37$   15,849.80$ 
Closest PWD Range 42

Operations Supervisor - 
Engineering

34
9,153.07$     11,125.61$ Palmdale Water District $9153.07-$11125.61

PWD-Recommendation 35 9,610.73$     11,681.89$ 35 PWD-Recommendation $9610.73-$11681.892
Environmental Services Supervisor 8,744.00$     11,367.00$ Cucamonga Valley Water District 8744-11367
Fac/Construc Sup 8,878.13$     11,540.67$ Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  8878.13-11540.67
No Equivalent Yorba Linda Water District -
Engineering Services Supervisor 7,311.70$     10,972.80$ Olivenhain Municipal Water District 7311.7-10972.8
Construction Management Administrator 8,354.92$     12,435.17$ Western Municipal Water District 8354.92-12435.17
Operations Engineer Santa Clarita Valley Water  -
No Equivalent Desert Water Agency -
No Equivalent Eastern Municipal Water District -
No Equivalent Mesa Consolidated Water District -
Engineering Services Supervisor 8,676.20$     10,411.44$ Rancho California Water District 8676.2-10411.44
Civil Engineering Sup 8,982.00$     13,979.00$ Walnut Valley Water District 8982-13979
Engineer-41 9,648.00$     13,652.00$ Padre Dam Municipal Water District 9648-13652

8,656.42$     12,051.15$ 
Mid 10,353.79$   

Min|Max 9,344.57$     11,363.00$ 
Closest PWD Range 35



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39
0.215505836 $21.94 $23.04 $24.19 $25.40 $26.67 $28.00 $29.40 $30.87 $32.42 $34.04 $35.74 $37.53 $39.40 $41.38 $43.44 $45.62 $47.90 $50.29 $52.81 $55.45 $58.22 $61.13 $64.19 $67.40

Executive Assistant 34 52.81$           64.19$           convert to exempt Palmdale Water District $52.8062-$64.1862
Executive Assistant 47.54$           61.79$           Cucamonga Valley Water District $47.54-$61.79
Excutive Assistant/Clerk of the Board 52.75$           73.85$           Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $52.75-$73.85
Executive Assistant 43.55$           55.75$           Yorba Linda Water District $43.55-$55.75
Executive Secretary 39.83$           55.76$           Olivenhain Municipal Water District $39.83-$55.76
Executive Assistant 41.71$           62.08$           Western Municipal Water District $41.71-$62.08
Board Secretary-Executive Assistant 54.36$           66.24$           Santa Clarita Valley Water  $54.36-$66.24
Executive Secretary/Asst. Secretary to the Board 51.95$         63.15$           Desert Water Agency $51.95-$63.15
 Board Secretary 51.43$           64.05$           Eastern Municipal Water District $51.43-$64.05
Executive Asst. to GM 45.95$           63.35$           Mesa Consolidated Water District $45.95-$63.35
District Secretary 52.30$           69.04$           Rancho California Water District $52.3-$69.04
Executive Secretary 43.41$           67.55$           Walnut Valley Water District $43.41-$67.55
Board Secretary 44.17$           53.34$           Padre Dam Municipal Water District $44.17-$53.34

47.41$           63.00$           
Mid 55.20$           

Min|Max 49.82$           60.59$           
Closest PWD Range 33

Safety and Training Technician I 29 41.38$           50.29$           Palmdale Water District $41.375-$50.2916
No Equivalent Position Cucamonga Valley Water District $-$
Adminstrative Specialist-Risk Mgmt 35.62$           49.13$           Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $35.62-$49.13
Safety and Training Technician 34.13$           43.68$           Yorba Linda Water District $34.13-$43.68
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Safety Compliance Coordinator 37.83$           53.74$           Western Municipal Water District $37.83-$53.74
Safety Specialist I 30.27$           36.91$           Santa Clarita Valley Water  $30.27-$36.91
No Equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Safety and Claims Technician 34.82$           43.36$           Eastern Municipal Water District $34.82-$43.36
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Rancho California Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Padre Dam Municipal Water District $-$

34.53$           45.36$           
Mid 39.95$           

Min|Max 36.06$           43.84$           
Closest PWD Range 27

GIS Coordinator 32 47.90$           58.22$           Palmdale Water District $47.8968-$58.2188
GIS Analyst 41.37$           53.80$           Cucamonga Valley Water District $41.37-$53.8
GIS Coordinator 43.04$           59.34$           Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $43.04-$59.34
GIS Analyst 37.61$           48.13$           Yorba Linda Water District $37.61-$48.13
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Western Municipal Water District $-$
GIS Analyst 44.71$           54.47$           Santa Clarita Valley Water  $44.71-$54.47
GIS Specialist II 45.91$           55.87$           Desert Water Agency $45.91-$55.87
Applications Developer II Eastern Municipal Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
GIS Coordinator 47.45$           62.62$           Rancho California Water District $47.45-$62.62
Civil Engineer/GIS 42.44$           66.26$           Walnut Valley Water District $42.44-$66.26
GIS/Mapping Coordinator 46.81$           56.49$           

43.67$           57.12$           
Mid 50.40$           

Min|Max 45.48$           55.31$           
Closest PWD Range 31

Information Technician I 27 37.53$           45.62$           Palmdale Water District $37.5284-$45.616
IT Spec I 36.03$           46.92$           Cucamonga Valley Water District $36.03-$46.92
Technolgy Support Specialist 32.57$           44.91$           Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $32.57-$44.91
Information Systems Technician I 30.94$           39.59$           Yorba Linda Water District $30.94-$39.59
Information Technology Coordinator 34.34$           48.07$           Olivenhain Municipal Water District $34.34-$48.07



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39
0.215505836 $21.94 $23.04 $24.19 $25.40 $26.67 $28.00 $29.40 $30.87 $32.42 $34.04 $35.74 $37.53 $39.40 $41.38 $43.44 $45.62 $47.90 $50.29 $52.81 $55.45 $58.22 $61.13 $64.19 $67.40

Information Technology Specialist I 31.12$           44.21$           Western Municipal Water District $31.12-$44.21
Informtion Technology Technician 1 36.79$           44.83$           Santa Clarita Valley Water  $36.79-$44.83
PC Supporty Technician I 34.17$           41.58$           Desert Water Agency $34.17-$41.58
Client Support Specialist I 31.58$           39.33$           Eastern Municipal Water District $31.58-$39.33
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
System Administrator 45.37$           54.42$           Rancho California Water District $45.37-$54.42
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
Information Systems Technical Specialist I 32.10$           45.40$           Padre Dam Municipal Water District $32.1-$45.4

34.50$           44.93$           
Mid 39.71$           

Min|Max 35.84$           43.58$           
Closest PWD Range 27

Information Technician II   Palmdale Water District $ -$ 
PWD-Recommendation 30 43.44$           52.81$           30 PWD-Recommendation $43.4438-$52.8062
IT Spec II 42.22$           54.87$           Cucamonga Valley Water District $42.22-$54.87
No Equivalent Position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Information Technolgy Specialist II 36.03$           51.19$           Western Municipal Water District $36.03-$51.19
Information Technolgy Technician II 38.62$           47.06$           Santa Clarita Valley Water  $38.62-$47.06
PS Scupport Technician II 39.58$           48.24$           Desert Water Agency $39.58-$48.24
Client Support Specialist II 34.82$           43.36$           Eastern Municipal Water District $34.82-$43.36
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Sr. System Administrator 50.06$           60.07$           Rancho California Water District $50.06-$60.07
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
Informational Systems  Technical Specialist II 36.08$           51.03$           

39.63$           50.83$           
Mid 45.23$           

Min|Max 40.82$           49.64$           
Closest PWD Range 29

Network Administrator 34 52.81$           64.19$           Palmdale Water District $52.8062-$64.1862
Network Administrator 49.47$           64.29$           Cucamonga Valley Water District $49.47-$64.29
Network and Security Engineer 56.89$           73.96$           Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $56.89-$73.96
Sr. Information Systems Administrator 61.30$           78.45$           Yorba Linda Water District $61.3-$78.45
Systems Administrator 39.25$           58.83$           Olivenhain Municipal Water District $39.25-$58.83
Application Specialist III 41.71$           62.07$           Western Municipal Water District $41.71-$62.07
IT Specialist 46.96$           57.21$           Santa Clarita Valley Water  $46.96-$57.21
Sr. Pc Support Technician 48.24$           58.64$           Desert Water Agency $48.24-$58.64
Information Systems Engineer II 51.43$           64.05$           Eastern Municipal Water District $51.43-$64.05
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Network Administrator 47.45$           62.63$           Rancho California Water District $47.45-$62.63
Information Technology Technician 42.44$           66.26$           Walnut Valley Water District $42.44-$66.26
Information Systems Technical Specialist III-L 45.74$           64.71$           Padre Dam Municipal Water District $45.74-$64.71

48.26$           64.65$           
Mid 56.45$           

Min|Max 50.95$           61.96$           
Closest PWD Range 34

SCADA/Instrumentation Technician I   Palmdale Water District $ -$ 
PWD-Recommendation 27 37.53$           45.62$           27 PWD-Recommendation $37.5284-$45.616
Control Analyst 44.80$           58.25$           Cucamonga Valley Water District $44.8-$58.25
No Equivalent Position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
Instrumenent Control Tech I 29.86$           41.77$           Olivenhain Municipal Water District $29.86-$41.77
Operations Technician II-(SCADA Team) 31.12$           44.21$           Western Municipal Water District $31.12-$44.21
No Equivalent Position Santa Clarita Valley Water  $-$
No Equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
No Equivalent Position Eastern Municipal Water District $-$



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39
0.215505836 $21.94 $23.04 $24.19 $25.40 $26.67 $28.00 $29.40 $30.87 $32.42 $34.04 $35.74 $37.53 $39.40 $41.38 $43.44 $45.62 $47.90 $50.29 $52.81 $55.45 $58.22 $61.13 $64.19 $67.40

No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Electrical Controls/Instrumentation Technician I 36.44$           43.73$           Rancho California Water District $36.44-$43.73
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Padre Dam Municipal Water District $-$

35.56$           46.99$           
Mid 41.27$           

Min|Max 37.25$           45.30$           
Closest PWD Range 27

SCADA/Instrumentation Technician II 30 43.44$           52.81$           Palmdale Water District $43.4438-$52.8062
No Equivalent Position Cucamonga Valley Water District $-$
 Scada Analyst 50.20$           65.26$           Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $50.2-$65.26
Electrical/SCADA Technician 32.49$           41.58$           Yorba Linda Water District $32.49-$41.58
Instrumenent Control Tech II 39.83$           55.76$           Olivenhain Municipal Water District $39.83-$55.76
Operations Technician III-(SCADA Team) 34.32$           48.75$           Western Municipal Water District $34.32-$48.75
Scada Technician I 44.71$           54.47$           Santa Clarita Valley Water  $44.71-$54.47
No Equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Scada Technician Eastern Municipal Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Electrical Controls/Instrumentation Technician II 42.18$           50.61$           Rancho California Water District $42.18-$50.61
Instrumentation/ Electrical System Technician 38.07$           59.43$           Walnut Valley Water District $38.07-$59.43
Scada Technician 40.57$           48.98$           

40.30$           53.11$           
Mid 46.70$           

Min|Max 42.15$           51.25$           
Closest PWD Range 30

SCADA/Instrumentation Technician III   Palmdale Water District $ -$ PWD-Recommendation $50.2916-$61.1297
PWD-Recommendation 33 50.29$           61.13$           33
No Equivalent Position Cucamonga Valley Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Operations Technician IV-(SCADA Team) 37.83$           53.75$           Western Municipal Water District $37.83-$53.75
Scada Technician II 49.31$           60.08$           Santa Clarita Valley Water  $49.31-$60.08
No Equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Scada System Analyst Eastern Municipal Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Sr. Electrical Controls/Instrumentation Technician 46.50$           55.80$           Rancho California Water District $46.5-$55.8
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
Scada Admin 45.32$           54.73$           

44.74$           56.09$           
Mid 50.42$           

Min|Max 45.50$           55.33$           
Closest PWD Range 31

Water Use Efficiency Technician I 27 37.53$           45.62$           Palmdale Water District $37.5284-$45.616
No Equivalent Position Cucamonga Valley Water District $-$
Resource Conservation Specialist I 26.70$           36.81$           Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $26.7-$36.81
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Water Resources Specialist I 32.67$           46.43$           Western Municipal Water District $32.67-$46.43
Water Conservation Specialist I 40.56$           49.43$           Santa Clarita Valley Water  $40.56-$49.43
Outreach Specialist I 37.68$           45.91$           Desert Water Agency $37.68-$45.91
Conservation Program Specialist I 33.15$           41.29$           Eastern Municipal Water District $33.15-$41.29
Water Use Efficiency Specialist 34.17$           47.10$           Mesa Consolidated Water District $34.17-$47.1
Water Use Efficiency Specialist 35.55$           42.66$           Rancho California Water District $35.55-$42.66
Outreach & Design Specialist 28.26$           44.13$           Walnut Valley Water District $28.26-$44.13
No Equivalent Position Padre Dam Municipal Water District $-$

33.59$           44.22$           



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39
0.215505836 $21.94 $23.04 $24.19 $25.40 $26.67 $28.00 $29.40 $30.87 $32.42 $34.04 $35.74 $37.53 $39.40 $41.38 $43.44 $45.62 $47.90 $50.29 $52.81 $55.45 $58.22 $61.13 $64.19 $67.40

Mid 38.91$           
Min|Max 35.11$           42.70$           

Closest PWD Range 26

Water Use Efficiency Technician II  Palmdale Water District $ -$
PWD-Recommendation 30 43.44$           52.81$           30 PWD-Recommendation $43.4438-$52.8062
No Equivalent Position Cucamonga Valley Water District $-$
Resource Conservation Specialist II 30.69$           42.32$           Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $30.69-$42.32
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
Admin Analyst 34.34$           48.07$           Olivenhain Municipal Water District $34.34-$48.07
Water Resources Specialist II 39.72$           56.44$           Western Municipal Water District $39.72-$56.44
Water Conservation Specialist II 46.96$           57.21$           Santa Clarita Valley Water  $46.96-$57.21
Outreach Specialist II 41.59$           50.70$           Desert Water Agency $41.59-$50.7
Conservation Program Specialist II 38.37$           41.29$           Eastern Municipal Water District $38.37-$41.29
Water Use Efficiency Analyst 41.63$           57.39$           Mesa Consolidated Water District $41.63-$57.39
Water Use Efficienty Specialist II 41.15$           49.38$           Rancho California Water District $41.15-$49.38
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Padre Dam Municipal Water District $-$

39.31$           50.35$           
Mid 44.83$           

Min|Max 40.46$           49.20$           
Closest PWD Range 29

Management Analyst 31 45.62$         55.45$           Palmdale Water District $45.616-$55.4465
Administrative Assistant II 30.14$           39.20$           Cucamonga Valley Water District $30.14-$39.2
Management Analyst II 46.34$           60.27$           Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $46.34-$60.27
No equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
Analyst (Finance, Admin) 39.83$           55.76$           Olivenhain Municipal Water District $39.83-$55.76
Management Analyst I 37.83$           53.75$           Western Municipal Water District $37.83-$53.75
Management Analyst 42.59$           51.88$           Santa Clarita Valley Water  $42.59-$51.88
Sr. Administrative Asst.(multiple dept) 42.58$           51.95$           Desert Water Agency $42.58-$51.95
Management Analyst II 42.32$           52.70$           Eastern Municipal Water District $42.32-$52.7
Water Operations Coordinator 42.67$           58.83$           Mesa Consolidated Water District $42.67-$58.83
Management Analyst 46.31$           61.14$           Rancho California Water District $46.31-$61.14
Administrative Assistant II 25.60$           37.56$           Walnut Valley Water District $25.6-$37.56
No equivalent Position

39.62$           52.30$           
Mid 45.96$           

Min|Max 41.48$           50.44$           
Closest PWD Range 30

Public Affairs Specialist I 27 37.53$         45.62$           Palmdale Water District $37.5284-$45.616
Government and Public Affairs Rep I 31.37$           40.78$           Cucamonga Valley Water District $31.37-$40.78
Public Affairs Associates I 40.33$           52.43$           Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $40.33-$52.43
Public Affairs Rep 24.25$           31.02$           Yorba Linda Water District $24.25-$31.02
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Strategic Communications Representative I 32.67$           46.43$           Western Municipal Water District $32.67-$46.43
Public Affairs Specialist I 38.62$           47.06$           Santa Clarita Valley Water  $38.62-$47.06
Public Affairs and Water Planning Coordinator 38.66$           47.07$           Desert Water Agency $38.66-$47.07
Public Officer I 40.30$           50.19$           Eastern Municipal Water District $40.3-$50.19
Public Affairs Specialist 36.80$           50.72$           Mesa Consolidated Water District $36.8-$50.72
Public Information Specialist I 35.55$           42.66$           Rancho California Water District $35.55-$42.66
Outreach & Design Specialist 28.26$           44.13$           Walnut Valley Water District $28.26-$44.13
Communications Coordinator 37.65$           53.29$           

34.95$           45.98$           
Mid 40.47$           

Min|Max 36.52$           44.41$           
Closest PWD Range 27



Position Range # Min Max Recommended 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39
0.215505836 $21.94 $23.04 $24.19 $25.40 $26.67 $28.00 $29.40 $30.87 $32.42 $34.04 $35.74 $37.53 $39.40 $41.38 $43.44 $45.62 $47.90 $50.29 $52.81 $55.45 $58.22 $61.13 $64.19 $67.40

Public Affairs Specialist II 30 43.44$         52.81$           Palmdale Water District $43.4438-$52.8062
Government and Public Affairs Rep II 36.75$           47.77$           Cucamonga Valley Water District $36.75-$47.77
Publics Affairs Associates II 46.34$           60.27$           Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $46.34-$60.27
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Strategic Communications Representative II 39.72$           56.44$           Western Municipal Water District $39.72-$56.44
Public Affairs Specialist II 44.71$           54.47$           Santa Clarita Valley Water  $44.71-$54.47
No Equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Public Officer II 46.66$           58.10$           Eastern Municipal Water District $46.66-$58.1
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Public Information Specialist II 41.15$           49.38$           Rancho California Water District $41.15-$49.38
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
Communications Officer 43.56$           61.63$           Padre Dam Municipal Water District $43.56-$61.63

42.70$           55.44$           
Mid 49.07$           

Min|Max 44.29$           53.85$           
Closest PWD Range 31

HR & Safety Coordinator 27 37.53$           45.62$           Palmdale Water District $37.5284-$45.616
No Equivalent Position Cucamonga Valley Water District $-$
HR Coordinator 35.09$           45.61$           Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $35.09-$45.61
HR Tech 34.13$           43.68$           Yorba Linda Water District $34.13-$43.68
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
HR Analyst I or HR Specialist II Western Municipal Water District $-$
HR Specialist 36.79$           44.83$           Santa Clarita Valley Water  $36.79-$44.83
No Equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
HR Tech I 31.58$           39.33$           Eastern Municipal Water District $31.58-$39.33
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
HR Analyst I 37.17$           49.07$           Rancho California Water District $37.17-$49.07
HR& Risk Mgmt Coordinator 31.48$           49.14$           Walnut Valley Water District $31.48-$49.14
No Equivalent Position Padre Dam Municipal Water District $-$

34.37$           45.28$           
Mid 39.83$           

Min|Max 35.94$           43.71$           
Closest PWD Range 27



Position Range #
Exemption 

Status Min Max Recommended 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42
0.215505836 $5,351.61 $5,619.19 $5,900.15 $6,195.16 $6,504.92 $6,830.17 $7,171.67 $7,530.26 $7,906.77 $8,302.11 $8,717.21 $9,153.07 $9,610.73 $10,091.26 $10,595.81 $11,125.61 $11,681.89 $12,265.99 $12,879.29 $13,523.26

Human Resource Analyst 31 E 7,906.77$     9,610.73$    Palmdale Water District $7906.77-$9610.7251
Human Resource Analyst N 7,318.13$     9,510.80$    Cucamonga Valley Water District $7318.13-$9510.8
Human Resource Analyst I 6,990.53$     9,087.87$    Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $6990.53-$9087.87
HR Analyst E 7,189.87$     9,204.00$    Yorba Linda Water District $7189.87-$9204
HR Analyst N 6,903.87$     9,665.07$    Olivenhain Municipal Water District $6903.87-$9665.07
Sr. HR Analyst E 7,966.08$     12,334.42$ Western Municipal Water District $7966.08-$12334.42
HR Analyst E 7,749.73$     9,441.47$    Santa Clarita Valley Water  $7749.73-$9441.47
No Equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
HR Analyst E 6,337.07$     7,891.87$    Eastern Municipal Water District $6337.07-$7891.87
HR Analyst 7,040.80$     9,703.20$    Mesa Consolidated Water District $7040.8-$9703.2
HR Analyst II E 7,458.53$     9,845.33$    Rancho California Water District $7458.53-$9845.33
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Padre Dam Municipal Water District $-$

7,217.18$     9,631.56$    
Mid 8,424.37$     

Min|Max 7,603.22$     9,245.52$    
Closest PWD Range 31

Safety and Training Technician II N
Change in Title: Risk 
and Emergency Mgmt 
Admin & Exempt Palmdale Water District $-$

32 8,302.11$     10,091.26$ 32 PWD-Recommendation $8302.11-$10091.2632
Safety Analyst 7,318.13$     9,510.80$    Cucamonga Valley Water District $7318.13-$9510.8
No Equivalent Position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
Safety and Training Analyst E 7,548.67$     9,663.33$    Yorba Linda Water District $7548.67-$9663.33
Safety/Risk Compliance Administrator E 7,869.33$     11,797.07$ Olivenhain Municipal Water District $7869.33-$11797.07
Safety Officer E 8,354.92$     12,435.17$ Western Municipal Water District $8354.92-$12435.17
Safety Specialist II N 5,784.00$     7,048.00$    Santa Clarita Valley Water  $5784-$7048
No Equivalent Position Desert Water Agency $-$
Safety & Emergency Mgmt Officer E 8,914.53$     11,102.00$ Eastern Municipal Water District $8914.53-$11102
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Safety/Risk Officer E 9,519.47$     12,566.67$ Rancho California Water District $9519.47-$12566.67
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$

Padre Dam Municipal Water District $-$
7,901.29$     10,589.01$ 

Mid 9,245.15$     
Min|Max 8,344.00$     10,146.30$ 

Closest PWD Range 32



Position Range #
Exemption 

Status Min Max Recommended 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55
0.215505836 $7,530.26 $7,906.77 $8,302.11 $8,717.21 $9,153.07 $9,610.73 $10,091.26 $10,595.81 $11,125.61 $11,681.89 $12,265.99 $12,879.29 $13,523.26 $14,199.41 $14,909.39 $15,654.86 $16,437.60 $17,259.48 $18,122.45 $19,028.57 $19,979.99 $20,979.00 $22,027.95 $23,129.34 $24,285.80 $25,500.09

Human Resources Director 41 E 12,879.29$  15,654.85$ Palmdale Water District $12879.29-$15654.8522
Director of HR & Risk 13,253.00$  17,230.00$ Cucamonga Valley Water District $13253-$17230
HR Mgr 11,845.60$  16,581.07$ Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $11845.6-$16581.07
HR & Risk Mgr 12,911.58$  16,532.50$ Yorba Linda Water District $12911.58-$16532.5
HR Mgr 10,815.46$  17,289.91$ Olivenhain Municipal Water District $10815.46-$17289.91
HR Director 13,500.83$  20,093.83$ Western Municipal Water District $13500.83-$20093.83
HR Mgr 13,920.00$  16,962.00$ Santa Clarita Valley Water  $13920-$16962
HR Director 12,999.00$  15,835.00$ Desert Water Agency $12999-$15835
HR Director 13,171.60$  16,404.27$ Eastern Municipal Water District $13171.6-$16404.27
HR Mgr 11,536.00$  15,902.00$ Mesa Consolidated Water District $11536-$15902
HR DIrector 12,644.67$  16,438.06$ Rancho California Water District $12644.67-$16438.06
HR, Safety & Risk Mgr 8,467.00$    13,176.00$ Walnut Valley Water District $8467-$13176
HR Director 11,097.00$  15,699.00$ Padre Dam Municipal Water District $11097-$15699

12,180.15$  16,511.97$ 
Mid 14,346.06$  

Min|Max 12,947.71$  15,744.41$ 
Closest PWD Range 42

Assist. General Manager 48 E 18,122.45$  22,027.94$ Palmdale Water District $18122.45-$22027.9437
Asst. GM 17,145.00$  22,288.00$ Cucamonga Valley Water District $17145-$22288
Director of Facilities and Ops 14,689.53$  22,414.00$ Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $14689.53-$22414
Asst. GM & Executive Counsel 14,655.33$  18,759.83$ Yorba Linda Water District $14655.33-$18759.83
Asst. GM/Communications&Customer 11,654.46$  18,588.72$ Olivenhain Municipal Water District $11654.46-$18588.72

Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer 16,337.67$  24,316.09$ Western Municipal Water District $16337.67-$24316.09
Asst. GM 19,585.00$  23,865.00$ Santa Clarita Valley Water  $19585-$23865
Asst. GM 18,326.00$  22,276.00$ Desert Water Agency $18326-$22276
Asst. GM Ops & Maintenance 19,463.60$  24,233.73$ Eastern Municipal Water District $19463.6-$24233.73
Asst. GM 16,300.00$  22,470.00$ Mesa Consolidated Water District $16300-$22470
Asst. GM 15,953.60$  20,739.60$ Rancho California Water District $15953.6-$20739.6
Asst. GM 14,370.00$  22,362.00$ Walnut Valley Water District $14370-$22362
No Equivalent Position Padre Dam Municipal Water District $-$

16,225.47$  22,028.45$ 
Mid 19,126.96$  

Min|Max 17,262.60$  20,991.32$ 
Closest PWD Range 47

Resource and Analytics Director 45 E 15,654.86$  19,028.57$ Palmdale Water District $15654.86-$19028.5737
No Equivalent Position Cucamonga Valley Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Director of Water Resources 13,500.83$  20,093.83$ Western Municipal Water District $13500.83-$20093.83
Director of Water Resources 16,115.00$  19,633.00$ Santa Clarita Valley Water  $16115-$19633
Dir. Of Public Affairs & Water Planning 14,706.00$  17,877.00$ Desert Water Agency $14706-$17877
Director of Water Resources and Facilities Planning Eastern Municipal Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Water Resource Mgr 13,402.48$  17,691.27$ Rancho California Water District $13402.48-$17691.27
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Padre Dam Municipal Water District $-$

14,431.08$  18,823.78$ 
Mid 16,627.43$  

Min|Max 15,006.70$  18,248.15$ 
Closest PWD Range 45

Resource and Analytics Supervisor 35 E 9,610.72$    11,681.89$ Palmdale Water District $9610.72-$11681.89
PWD Recommendation 36 10,091.26$  12,265.99$ 36 PWD-Recommendation $10091.26-$12265.9854
No Equivalent Position Cucamonga Valley Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $-$
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Olivenhain Municipal Water District $-$
Deputy Director of Water Resource 12,273.00$  18,266.42$ Western Municipal Water District $12273-$18266.42
Water Conservation Supervisor 10,386.00$  12,653.00$ Santa Clarita Valley Water  $10386-$12653
Outreach and Conservation Mgr 10,430.00$  12,674.00$ Desert Water Agency $10430-$12674
Conservation Program Mgr Eastern Municipal Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Senior Water Resources Planner 9,066.03$    11,967.28$ Rancho California Water District $9066.03-$11967.28
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Padre Dam Municipal Water District $-$

10,538.76$  13,890.18$ 
Mid 12,214.47$  

Min|Max 11,023.89$  13,405.05$ 
Closest PWD Range 38

Public Affairs Director 38 E 11,125.61$  13,523.24$ Palmdale Water District $11125.61-$13523.2439
PWD Recommendation 40 12,265.99$  14,909.38$ 40 PWD -Recommendation $12265.99-$14909.3824
Government & Public Affairs Manager 10,659.00$  13,857.00$ Cucamonga Valley Water District $10659-$13857
Public Affairs &Communications Mgr 10,936.71$  15,313.65$ Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $10936.71-$15313.65



Position Range #
Exemption 

Status Min Max Recommended 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55
0.215505836 $7,530.26 $7,906.77 $8,302.11 $8,717.21 $9,153.07 $9,610.73 $10,091.26 $10,595.81 $11,125.61 $11,681.89 $12,265.99 $12,879.29 $13,523.26 $14,199.41 $14,909.39 $15,654.86 $16,437.60 $17,259.48 $18,122.45 $19,028.57 $19,979.99 $20,979.00 $22,027.95 $23,129.34 $24,285.80 $25,500.09

Public Affairs Mgr 7,926.50$    10,146.92$ Yorba Linda Water District $7926.5-$10146.92
Dual Role: Customer services Mgr: PR & Customer Service 10,815.46$  17,289.91$ Olivenhain Municipal Water District $10815.46-$17289.91
Strategic Communications Mgr 9,654.33$    14,368.67$ Western Municipal Water District $9654.33-$14368.67
Communication Mgr 12,024.00$  14,648.00$ Santa Clarita Valley Water  $12024-$14648
Dual Role: Dir. Of Public Affairs & Water Planning 14,706.00$  17,877.00$ Desert Water Agency $14706-$17877
Public Affairs Mgr 10,835.07$  13,495.73$ Eastern Municipal Water District $10835.07-$13495.73
Public Affairs Mgr 11,254.00$  15,514.00$ Mesa Consolidated Water District $11254-$15514
Public Affairs Mgr 11,019.67$  13,223.60$ Rancho California Water District $11019.67-$13223.6
No Equivalent Position Walnut Valley Water District $-$
Communication Mgr 8,497.00$    12,015.00$ Padre Dam Municipal Water District $8497-$12015

10,757.07$  14,340.86$ 
Mid 12,548.96$  

Min|Max 11,325.78$  13,772.15$ 
Closest PWD Range 39

Information Technology Manager 41 E 12,879.29$  12,879.29$ Palmdale Water District $12879.29-$12879.29
IT Manager 11,312.00$  14,705.00$ Cucamonga Valley Water District $11312-$14705
IT Manager 11,845.03$  16,580.93$ Las Virgenes Municipal Water District  $11845.03-$16580.93
No Equivalent Position Yorba Linda Water District $-$
IT Supervisor 8,463.69$    12,683.02$ Olivenhain Municipal Water District $8463.69-$12683.02
Deputy Director of Information Services 12,273.33$  18,266.42$ Western Municipal Water District $12273.33-$18266.42
Director Of Technology Services 16,115.00$  19,633.00$ Santa Clarita Valley Water  $16115-$19633
Information System Mgr 11,781.00$  14,349.00$ Desert Water Agency $11781-$14349
 Information Technology/DevOps Manager Eastern Municipal Water District $-$
No Equivalent Position Mesa Consolidated Water District $-$
Infrastructure Assets Mgr 11,570.52$  13,884.69$ Rancho California Water District $11570.52-$13884.69
IT Mgr 8,982.00$    13,979.00$ Walnut Valley Water District $8982-$13979
Information Systems Mgr 10,242.00$  14,489.00$ Padre Dam Municipal Water District $10242-$14489

11,398.29$  15,396.67$ 
Mid 13,397.48$  

Min|Max 12,091.59$  14,703.37$ 
Closest PWD Range 40



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M

DATE: February 6, 2023 February 13, 2023 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mynor V. Masaya, Operations Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 
Mr. Adam Ly, Assistant General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARD TO GSE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, 
INC. FOR THE DEMOLITION AND INSTALLATION OF THE ON-SITE 
SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE GENERATOR SYSTEM AT THE LESLIE O. 
CARTER TREATMENT PLANT. ($589,100.00 - BUDGETED – PROJECT NO. 
22-608 – OPERATIONS MANAGER MASAYA)

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board award a construction contract to GSE Construction Company, 
Inc. for the demolition and installation of the on-site sodium hypochlorite generator system at the 
Leslie O. Carter Treatment Plant. 

Alternative Options: 

None. 

Impact of Taking No Action: 

The impact from no action taken would result in using expensive bulk loads of 12.5% Sodium 
Hypochlorite to achieve disinfection. 

Background: 

The existing sodium hypochlorite generator was installed in 1999 and last refurbished during the 
Phase II treatment plant improvement Project in 2008. The existing on-site sodium hypochlorite 
generator has lost half of its capacity to produce sodium hypochlorite due to the age of the 
system. The District pre-purchased the new MicroClor system from UGSI in 2022. As part of the 
of the replacement of the existing system, there are some adjustments that need to be made in the 
chemical room prior to the new system being operational.  

The project consists of demolition of concrete pedestals, remove and salvage existing piping, 
generation system, and valves. The contractor will also be constructing new electrical, piping, 
installation of a District provided on-site sodium hypochlorite generation system, installation of 
District provided 35-ton brine storage tank, and other miscellaneous items to support the new 
system.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3



 
2 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

Mr. Adam Ly, Assistant General Manager                  February 6, 2023 
 
 
The total bid price in the bid proposal submitted by GSE Construction Company, Inc. was 
$589,100.00. A bidder’s bond in the amount of 10 percent of the total bid price was submitted 
with the bid proposal. The surety company providing the bid bond is Zurich American Insurance 
Company. 
 
The criterion for responsibility pertains to whether the bidder is regularly engaged in this type of 
work and whether they can perform the work satisfactorily as promised. The contractor is 
required to provide payment and performance bonds to protect the District’s interest. 
 
GSE Construction Company, Inc., as the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, holds a valid 
worker’s compensation insurance policy (Policy number: UB3R3845122226G) with Travelers 
Property Casualty Company of America effective from October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023.) 
 
The contractor’s past performance record has been utilized to evaluate the general competency of 
the contractor for the performance of the work. To demonstrate the bidder’s capability and 
experience of having completed similar projects successfully, the bid documents require that the 
contractor submit a list of all projects completed by the contractor during the last three years 
involving work of similar type and complexity and comparable value. 
 
It is required that no less than 60 percent of the work be performed by the contractor’s own 
forces without subcontracting. It appears that GSE Construction Company, Inc. will perform 100 
percent of the work and meets the limitations on the subcontracting work. 
 
Responsiveness of the bid pertaining to compliance with the material terms of the bid documents 
has been reviewed and deemed acceptable. 
 
GSE Construction Company, Inc., as the lowest responsible bidder, has met the criterion of 
providing the lowest bid price of qualified firms at $589,100.00. The lowest qualified bid price is 
$116,105.78, or 8.96 percent lower than the next lowest bidder. 
 
 
Strategic Plan Initiative/Mission Statement: 

This item is under Strategic Initiative No. 3_Systems Efficiency. 

This item directly relates to the District’s Mission Statement. 
 
Budget: 

This item is budgeted under Project No. 22-608 totaling $589,100.00. 
 
Supporting Documents: 

 Bid Results Summary 
 Proposal Package from GSE Construction Company, Inc. 

 



Line Item Description Quantity Unit of Measure Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Total Average Unit Cost Average Total
1 Mobilization and Demobilization 1 LS $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $37,000.00 $37,000.00 $31,000.00 $31,000.00

2

Demolition. Provide labor and equipment to remove concrete 

pedestals, disconnect necessary piping, and salvage all equipment 

specified in the plans. 1 LS $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $63,700.00 $63,700.00 $56,850.00 $56,850.00

3

On-Site Sodium Hypochlorite Generation System. Provide all labor, 

equipment and materials to install the District provided system. 1 LS $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $27,570.00 $27,570.00 $43,785.00 $43,785.00

4

Brine Tank. Provide all labor, equipment and materials including 

clearing and grading, sub-grade preparation, base material, 

concrete equipment pad, and all other work required that is not 

specifically listed for placement of the District provided 35-ton 

Brine Storage Tank. 1 LS $194,100.00 $194,100.00 $105,850.00 $105,850.00 $149,975.00 $149,975.00

5

Piping. Provide and install all piping, fittings, and appurtenances 

required for the on-site sodium hypochlorite generation system, 

brine tank, and all related appurtenances. 1 LS $120,000.00 $120,000.00 $199,290.00 $199,290.00 $159,645.00 $159,645.00

6

Electrical and Instrumentation. Provide and install all electrical and 

instrumentation including conduit, wiring, and all related 

appurtenances. 1 LS $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $297,750.00 $297,750.00 $213,875.00 $213,875.00

7

Startup Testing. Provide equipment, materials and labor necessary 

to support startup and testing with support of the vendor for the 

on-site sodium hypochlorite generation system. 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $18,200.00 $18,200.00 $14,100.00 $14,100.00

Total $589,100.00 $749,360.00 $669,230.00

GSE Construction Company 
Inc.

MLC CONSTRUCTORS INC













LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

The bidder is required to furnish the following information in accordance with the 
provisions of Sections 4100 to 4114, inclusive, of the Public Contract Code of the State of 
California. 

Subcontractors must be listed if they will provide work, labor or service in an amount in 
excess of one-half (1/2) of one percent (1%) of the total bid. 

THAT PORTION OF THE WORK TO BE PERFORMED BY SUBCONTRACTORS 
SHALL, IN THE AGGREGATE, NOT EXCEED 40% OF ALL WORK PERFORMED, 
BASED UPON THE TOTAL DOLLAR VALUE OF THE WORK. 

% of 
Subcontractor License Main Office Address Total Value Description 

No. & Type Dollar of Subcontract 
Work 

















INFORMATION REQUIRED OF BIDDER 
EQUIPMENT/MATERIAL SOURCE INFORMATION 

The bidder shall indicate opposite each item of equipment or material listed below, the name of the 
manufacturer or supplier of the equipment or material proposed to be furnished under the bid.  

Failure to comply with this requirement will render the proposal informal and may cause its rejection.  

Awarding of a contract under this bid will not imply approval by the Owner of the manufacturers or 
suppliers listed by the bidder. No substitution will be permitted after award of contract unless 
equipment or material of the listed manufacturer or supplier cannot meet the specifications.  

 

 
Specification 

No. 

 
Equipment/Material 

 
Manufacturer/Supplier 

Delivery 
Time 

(weeks) 
    

    

    

    

    

    

    



LIST OF PROPOSED SUBSTITUTIONS 

The bidder may name a proposed substitute manufacturer and/or equipment/material 
with an add or deduct amount which will be considered after award. The Contract 
award, if any, will be on Base Bid amounts. 

Add
($)

_________

_________

_________

_________

_________ 

Deduct
($)

________

________

________

________

________

Spec Section

___________ 

___________ 

___________ 

___________ 

___________ 

Equipment/Manufacturer

 _______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

________________________________



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M

DATE: February 6, 2023 February 13, 2023 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Scott Rogers, Engineering Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 
Mr. Adam Ly, Assistant General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARD TO CEDRO CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
FOR THE INSTALLATION OF WATER MAIN IN 15TH STREET EAST FROM 
AVENUE P TO WELL 36. ($294,615.00 – NOT – TO – EXCEED –BUDGETED – 
WORK ORDER NO. 20-622(c) – ENGINEERING MANAGER ROGERS) 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board award a construction contract to Cedro Construction, Inc. in the 
not-to-exceed amount of $294,615.00 for the installation of water main in 15th Street East from 
Avenue P to Well 36.  

Alternative Options: 

Reject all bids and rebid the project. 

Impact of Taking No Action: 

Well 36 would not be connected to the water distribution system. 

Background: 

The project consists of installing approximately 1,366 linear feet of 12" ductile iron pipe and all 
appurtenances. The project will connect the new Well 36 to the water distribution system.  

The total bid price in the bid proposal submitted by Cedro Construction, Inc. was $294,615.00. A 
bidder’s bond in the amount of 10 percent of the total bid price was submitted with the bid 
proposal. The surety company providing the bid bond is Old Republic Surety Company.  

The criterion for responsibility pertains to whether the bidder is regularly engaged in this type of 
work and whether they can perform the work satisfactorily as promised. The contractor is 
required to provide payment and performance bonds to protect the District’s interest. 

Cedro Construction, Inc., as the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, holds a valid worker’s 
compensation insurance policy (Policy number: 9207992) with State Compensation Insurance 
Fund effective from April 1, 2022 to April 1, 2023.) 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4



2 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

Mr. Adam Ly, Assistant General Manager  February 6, 2023 

The contractor’s past performance record has been utilized to evaluate the general competency of 
the contractor for the performance of the work. To demonstrate the bidder’s capability and 
experience of having completed similar projects successfully, the bid documents require that the 
contractor submit a list of all projects completed by the contractor during the last three years 
involving work of similar type and complexity and comparable value. 

It is required that no less than 60 percent of the work be performed by the contractor’s own 
forces without subcontracting. It appears that Cedro Construction, Inc. will perform 100 percent 
of the work and meets the limitations on the subcontracting work. 

Responsiveness of the bid pertaining to compliance with the material terms of the bid documents 
has been reviewed and deemed acceptable. 

Cedro Construction, Inc., as the lowest responsible bidder, has met the criterion of providing the 
lowest bid price of qualified firms at $294,615.00. The lowest qualified bid price is $5,173.00, or 
1.74 percent lower than the next lowest bidder. 

Strategic Plan Initiative/Mission Statement: 

This item is under Strategic Initiative No. 3 – Systems Efficiency. 

This item directly relates to the District’s Mission Statement. 

Budget: 

This item is budgeted and will be covered as part of Work Order No. 20-622(c). 

Supporting Documents: 

 Bid Results Summary
 Proposal Package from Lowest Responsible Bidder



Line 
Item Description

Quantit
y

Unit of 
Measure Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Total Unit Cost Total

1 Mobilization, Demolition, and Site Restoration 1 LS $31,685.00 $31,685.00 $20,500.00 $20,500.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $68,937.00 $68,937.00 $33,530.50 $33,530.50
2 Construction Staking Survey 1 LS $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $6,923.00 $6,923.00 $8,105.75 $8,105.75
3 Sheeting, Shoring, and Bracing for all work indicated 1 LS $7,100.00 $7,100.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $13,700.00 $13,700.00 $6,707.00 $6,707.00 $7,326.75 $7,326.75
4 Traffic Control 1 LS $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $7,762.00 $7,762.00 $12,565.50 $12,565.50
5 Base Paving, Finish Paving, and Striping 1 LS $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $15,784.00 $15,784.00 $6,546.00 $6,546.00

6
Construct new 12" CL350 DCML D.I.P. water pipeline 
including bedding, backfill, and appurtenances 1366 LF $155.00 $211,730.00 $168.00 $229,488.00 $162.00 $221,292.00 $172.00 $234,952.00 $164.25 $224,365.50

7
Furnish and install 2" Air/Vacuum release assembly 
per PWD Std. W-16 1 EA $9,100.00 $9,100.00 $11,500.00 $11,500.00 $10,500.00 $10,500.00 $12,689.00 $12,689.00 $10,947.25 $10,947.25

8

All materials and labor necessary for testing, 
disinfection, and chlorination on all required 
segments according to PWD Specification Section 4-
14 and 4-15 1 LS $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $16,500.00 $16,500.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $21,859.00 $21,859.00 $16,839.75 $16,839.75
Total $294,615.00 $299,788.00 $310,892.00 $375,613.00 $320,227.00

Average BidCedro Construction, Inc. Griffith CompanyJ Vega Engineering Inc. TORO ENTERPRISES, INC.































LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

The bidder is required to furnish the following information in accordance with the 
provisions of Sections 4100 to 4114, inclusive, of the Public Contract Code of the State of 
California. 

Subcontractors must be listed if they will provide work, labor or service in an amount in 
excess of one-half (1/2) of one percent (1%) of the total bid. 

THAT PORTION OF THE WORK TO BE PERFORMED BY SUBCONTRACTORS 
SHALL, IN THE AGGREGATE, NOT EXCEED 40% OF ALL WORK PERFORMED, 
BASED UPON THE TOTAL DOLLAR VALUE OF THE WORK. 

% of 
Subcontractor License Main Office Address Total Value Description 

No. & Type Dollar of Subcontract 
Work 





















P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M

DATE: February 6, 2023 February 13, 2023 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.5 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
TO AUTHORIZE FORMATION OF AN AD HOC COMMITTEE FOR 
LEGAL SERVICES. (GENERAL MANAGER LaMOREAUX)  

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the formation of an Ad Hoc Committee to 
update the legal services agreement with Aleshire & Wynder LLP. 

Alternative Options: 

The alternative is to not create an Ad Hoc Committee. 

Impact of Taking No Action: 

There would be no Ad Hoc Committee. 

Background: 

The last amendment to the current legal services agreement was approved on June 14, 
2021. The rates and terms should be reviewed with Aleshire & Wynder LLP and then 
presented to the Board for consideration and action. 

If approved, President Wilson will assign the Committee members. 

Strategic Plan Initiative: 

Strategic Plan Initiative No. 2 - Organizational Excellence 

Budget: 

This item will not affect the Budget.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.5



Conference/Training Request

Event Name/Date(s):

REQUESTED BY:

First Name Last Name Date

ACCOMMODATION INFORMATION (If applicable)

Rooms and rates are subject to availability. Complete and submit this form as soon as possible as 
reservation blocks at host hotels book quickly. In the event that the host hotel is full, every effort 
will be made to secure a room at the nearest hotel within comparable rates. 

Arrival Date Departure Date
No. of 
Guests Room Type

Dietary Restrictions? 
 If yes, please provide specifics in additional info. box

Yes No

Smoking Room?

Yes No

Flight Needed? 
If yes, please provide DL# and 
D.O.B. in additional info. box

Yes No

Flight Numbers
Departure/Return
Times

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION/
REQUESTS

Supervisor Approval 
(If applicable)

Processed By: 

Antelope Valley Hispanic Chamber of Commerce Installation Gala - March 3, 2023

Single/King Bed

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.6







P A L M D A L E   W A T E R   D I S T R I C T 

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 

 
DATE:  February 6, 2023            February 13, 2023 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS           Board Meeting 

FROM:  Mr. Bob Egan, Financial Advisor 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1.a – STATUS REPORT ON CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
AND CURRENT CASH BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 2022. (FINANCIAL 
ADVISOR EGAN/FINANCE COMMITTEE) 

  

 
 

Attached are the Cash Notes, the Investment Funds Report, and the Cash Flow Report as of 
December 2022. The reports will be reviewed in detail at the Board meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosures 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1.a



acct 11469
Balance 12/31/2022 5,209,968.60
Balance 11/30/2022 4,341,841.60
Increase 868,127.00

One month activity
Transfer to 11432. (1,340,000.00)
Transfer to 24016 (84,000.00)
Transfer to Butte (1,065,045.03)
Taxes received 3,340,321.42 expected 3,217,400

Interest/Mkt value received 16,850.61 YTD  expected 7,429,320
YTD   received 8,924,518 1,495,198

Increase 868,127.00

Acct 11475
Balance 12/31/2022 2,061,928.79
Balance 11/30/2022 1,394,105.71 all accounts
Increase 667,823.08 Value 12,378,256

One month activity FACE 12,519,000
Cap Improvement fee received 665,775.46 Future earnings 140,744

Interest/Mkt value received 2,047.62
Increase 667,823.08

Acct 11432

Balance 12/31/2022 6,838,104.03
Balance 11/30/2022 5,461,139.04
Increase 1,376,964.99

One month activity
Transfer from  11469. 1,340,000.00

Interest/Mkt value received 36,964.99
Increase 1,376,964.99

Acct 24016.
Balance 12/31/2022 725,174.56
Balance 11/30/2022 637,746.89
Increase 87,427.67

One month activity
Transfer from 11469 84,000.00

Interest/Mkt value received 3,427.67
Increase 87,427.67

2022
 November to December 2022 Major account Activity



acct 11469
Balance 12/31/2022 5,209,968.60
Balance 9/30/2022 4,057,258.20
Increase 1,152,710.40

Three months activity
Taxes received 3,514,524.29

Interest/Mkt value received 36,231.14
Transfer to Butte (1,065,045.03)

Transfer to 24016 (84,000.00)
Transfer to 11432 (1,340,000.00)

Transfer from 11432 91,000.00
Increase 1,152,710.40

Acct 11475

Balance 12/31/2022 2,061,928.79
Balance 9/30/2022 1,383,597.38
Increase 678,331.41

Three months activity
Interest/Mkt value received 8,675.95

Capital improvements received 669,655.46
Increase 678,331.41

Acct 11432

Balance 12/31/2022 6,838,104.03
Balance 9/30/2022 5,533,095.59
Increase 1,305,008.44

Three months activity
transfer to 11469 (91,000.00)

transfer from 11469 1,340,000.00
Interest/Mkt value received 56,008.44

Increase 1,305,008.44

Acct 24016.
Balance 12/31/2022 725,174.56
Balance 9/30/2022 635,985.92
Increase 89,188.64

Three months activity

Transfer from 11469 84,000.00
Interest/Mkt value received 5,188.64

Increase 89,188.64

2022
Fourth Quarter 2022 Major account Activity



December 2022 November 2022 September 2022

1 00 0103 100 Citizens Checking 970,675.41 556,497.97 1,023,028.90
1 00 0103 200 Citizens Refund
1 00 0103 300 Citizens Merchant 307,677.14 256,530.17 205,972.14

Bank Total 1,278,352.55 813,028.14 1,229,001.04

1 00 0110 000 PETTY CASH 300.00 300.00 300.00
1 00 0115 000 CASH ON HAND 5,400.00 5,400.00 5,400.00

1,284,052.55 818,728.14 1,234,701.04

1 00 0135 000 Local Agency Investment Fund Acct. Total 12,777.71 12,777.71 12,734.38

UBS Money Market Account General (SS 11469)
251,003.96 250,000.00

2,384,449.27 150,458.20 365,338.19
UBS Bank USA Deposit Account 4,458.20 1,377,828.68

Accrued interest 4,952.96 3,318.21 4,986.81
2,393,860.43 1,782,609.05 620,325.00

CUSIP # Issuer Rate PAR

912796U31 US Treasury Bill 03/23/2023 250,000 247,672.50 246,720.00 245,652.50
91282CAX9 US Treasury Note 11/30/2022 0.125 995,160.00
91282CBU4 US Treasury Note 03/31/2023 0.125 300,000 296,928.00 295,710.00 294,504.00
91282CBX8 US Treasury Note 04/30/2023 0.125 500,000 493,125.00 490,685.00 488,790.00

1,050,000 1,037,725.50 1,033,115.00 2,024,106.50

Issuer Rate Face Value

Goldman Sachs Bank 11/03/2022 0.150 149,605.50
BMW Bank 11/22/2022 1.800 199,628.00
UBS AG Stamford 12/02/2022 0.455 249,955.00 248,845.00

1 Beal Bank 02/08/2023 3.350 250,000 249,805.00 249,745.00
2 Servisfirst 02/21/2023 1.600 242,000 241,150.58 240,712.56 240,064.00
3 Encore Bank 02/24/2023 1.800 250,000 249,147.50 248,720.00 248,137.50
4 BMW Bank of NA 02/28/2023 1.650 50,000 49,797.00 49,698.50
5 Truist BK 03/23/2023 4.100 250,000 250,005.00
6 Safra National 04/28/2023 1.500 250,000 247,827.50 247,082.50 246,587.50
7 Membersource 05/04/2023 4.600 240,000 240,357.60 240,204.00
8 Homestreet Bank 06/02/2023 4.500 250,000 250,292.50

1,782,000 1,778,382.68 1,526,117.56 1,412,826.70

Acct. Total 5,209,968.61 4,341,841.61 4,057,258.20

UBS Money Market Account Capital (SS 11475)

UBS Bank USA Dep acct 25,284.77 36,502.81 31,939.66
UBS RMA Government Portfolio 1,791.92 5,014.23 3,168.24

27,076.69 41,517.04 35,107.90

CUSIP # Issuer Rate PAR

912796133 US Treasury Bill 02/23/2023 500,000 496,990.00 495,175.00 493,000.00
9127996ZD4 US Treasury Bill 11/30/2023 588,000 563,780.28
912828YW4 US Treasury Note 12/15/2022 1.625 499,640.00 498,495.00
91282CCU3 US Treasury Note 08/31/2023 0.125 635,000 615,829.35

1,723,000 1,676,599.63 994,815.00 991,495.00

Certificates of Deposit
Issuer Rate Face Value

1 Customers Bank 01/30/2023 2.710 109,000 108,872.47 108,796.17 108,696.98
2 Medallion Bank 02/06/2023 1.600 250,000 249,380.00 248,977.50 248,297.50

359,000 358,252.47 357,773.67 356,994.48

Acct. Total 2,061,928.79 1,394,105.71 1,383,597.38

Market Value

Market Value

Maturity Date

Market Value

Certificates of Deposit
Maturity Date

1 00 1110 000

US Government Securities
Maturity Date Market Value

Market Value Market Value

INVESTMENTS

1 00 0120 000
UBS USA Core Savings
UBS RMA Government Portfolio

US Government Securities
Maturity Date

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
INVESTMENT FUNDS REPORT

December 31, 2022

CASH

TOTAL CASH



UBS Access Account General (SS 11432)
UBS Bank USA Dep acct 4,939.47 10,733.79 1,061,746.74
UBS RMA Government Portfolio

Accrued interest 26,975.88 10,983.62 8,976.41
31,915.35 21,717.41 1,070,723.15

US Government Securities
CUSIP # Issuer Rate PAR

9127965S34 US Treasury Bill 01/26/2023 750,000 748,140.00 745,275.00 741,915.00
912796U31 US Treasury Bill 03/23/2023 500,000 495,345.00 493,440.00 491,305.00
912796YH6 US Treasury Bill 09/07/2023 500,000 484,985.00
91282CBD2 US Treasury Note 12/31/2022 0.125 500,000 500,000.00 498,420.00 495,925.00
912828Z86 US Treasury Note 02/15/2023 1.375 500,000 498,290.00 496,955.00 495,530.00
912828ZD5 US Treasury Note 03/15/2023 0.500 1,350,000 1,339,713.00
91282CAK7 US Treasury Note 09/15/2023 0.125 1,000,000 968,630.00 964,140.00

5,100,000 5,035,103.00 3,198,230.00 2,224,675.00

Certificates of Deposit
Issuer Rate Face Value

State Bank of India 12/09/2022 0.250 249,787.50 248,592.50
Cadence Bank 12/19/2022 1.200 249,677.50 248,872.50
Western Alliance 12/22/2022 1.650 249,695.00 249,075.00
Israel Discount Bank 12/27/2022 1.150 199,624.00 198,956.00

1 Apple Bank 01/17/2023 2.050 229,000 228,771.00 228,487.04 228,045.07
2 BLC Community 02/28/2023 0.800 150,000 149,205.00 148,818.00 148,224.00
3 Barclays Bank 04/27/2023 1.150 200,000 198,256.00 197,658.00 197,236.00
4 Toyota Financial Svg Bk 05/01/2023 1.550 175,000 173,467.00 172,942.00 172,614.75
5 CommunityWide Fed 08/30/2023 3.000 188,000 186,185.80 185,672.56 186,178.28
6 Leaders Credit 08/30/2023 3.100 188,000 186,309.88 185,802.28 186,341.84
7 Wasatch Peaks 09/07/2023 3.200 175,000 173,470.50 173,027.75 173,561.50
8 Wells Fargo bank 09/25/2023 4.700 225,000 225,243.00
9 Bank of China 09/29/2023 4.650 250,000 250,177.50

1,780,000 1,771,085.68 2,241,191.63 2,237,697.44

Acct. Total 6,838,104.03 5,461,139.04 5,533,095.59

Total Managed Accounts 14,122,779.14 11,209,864.07 10,986,685.55

UBS Rate Stabilization Fund (SS 24016) District Restricted

UBS Bank USA Dep acct 713.99 141,042.17 4,446.86
UBS RMA Government Portfolio

Accrued interest 3,353.07 1,989.72 1,359.78
4,067.06 143,031.89 5,806.64

Certificates of Deposit
Issuer Rate Face Value

Raymond James Bank 11/28/2022 1.750 49,891.50
Cross River Bank 11/29/2022 1.850 83,825.28

1 TTCU Fed Credit Union 11/29/2022 3.250 250,000 247,780.00 247,170.00 247,965.00
2 Sandy Spring Bank 11/29/2022 3.500 250,000 248,080.00 247,545.00 248,497.50
3 PNC Bank 12/08/2023 4.750 225,000 225,247.50

725,000 721,107.50 494,715.00 630,179.28

Acct. Total 725,174.56 637,746.89 635,985.92

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 16,132,006.25 12,666,339.10 12,857,372.51

Increase (Decrease) in Funds 3,510,356.12

2021A Bonds Project Funds (BNY Mellon)

Construction Funds 5,651,142.37 6,354,644.72 6,738,176.53
Issuance Funds

5,651,142.37 6,354,644.72 6,738,176.53

Market Value

Maturity Date

1 00 1121 000

Maturity Date

1 00 1137 000

Maturity Date Market Value Market Value

1 00 0125 000



December 2022 November 2022 September 2022

Federal Agency Obligations 7,749,428.13 48.05% 5,226,160.00 46.30% 5,240,276.50 40.76%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 4,628,828.33 28.70% 4,619,797.86 40.92% 4,637,697.90 36.07%

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 12,777.71 0.08% 12,777.71 0.11% 12,734.38 0.10%
12,391,034.17 9,858,735.57 9,890,708.78

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,701,231.97 22.95% 1,413,483.30 12.52% 2,951,340.73 22.95%
Accrued Interest 35,281.91 0.22% 16,291.55 0.14% 15,323.00 0.12%

16,127,548.05 11,288,510.42 12,857,372.51

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
INVESTMENT FUNDS REPORT

December 31, 2022



1/11/2023

December 2021 January February March April May June July August September October November December YTD

Total Cash Beginning Balance (BUDGET) 8,067,984 14,615,595 10,956,032 11,073,711 9,199,205 10,989,695 11,414,389 10,746,726 10,169,877 10,356,760 7,864,417 7,941,244 8,067,984

Total Cash Beginning Balance 11,142,539 14,615,595 14,772,733 13,192,702 11,633,309 14,601,061 15,810,308 16,752,444 15,332,018 15,701,246 12,857,373 12,621,650 12,666,339

Budgeted Water Receipts 2,417,183 2,323,924 2,057,244 2,165,186 2,358,847 2,669,973 2,879,507 3,130,313 3,301,750 3,216,032 3,000,148 2,412,818 2,231,856 31,747,600
Water Receipts 2,359,894 2,262,336 2,090,866 2,590,259 2,490,400 2,563,775 2,765,776 2,678,462 3,108,424 2,933,752 3,030,185 2,791,210 2,529,804 31,835,249
DWR Refund (Operational Related) 645 1,263 1,908
RWA Agreement (AV Watermaster/AVSWCA) 171,833 171,833
Other (Gain on Sale of Equipment) 61,269 59,104 120,373

Total Operating Revenue (BUDGET)
Total Operating Revenue (ACTUAL) 2,359,894 2,262,336 2,090,866 2,590,259 2,552,314 2,563,775 2,824,880 2,678,462 3,280,257 2,933,752 3,031,448 2,791,210 2,529,804 32,129,363

Total Operating Expenses excl GAC (BUDGET) (1,847,964) (2,303,299) (1,987,438) (1,950,265) (1,966,975) (2,330,829) (2,298,962) (2,471,428) (2,496,251) (2,446,230) (2,484,948) (2,169,086) (1,876,268) (26,781,979)
GAC (BUDGET) (151,000) (132,000) (90,000) (132,000) (132,000) (132,000) (132,000) (750,000)

Operating Expenses excl GAC (ACTUAL) (1,970,692) (2,275,464) (2,727,679) (2,397,547) (1,723,987) (1,975,651.68) (1,888,888) (2,279,435) (2,673,317) (2,379,562) (2,106,258) (2,390,095) (1,683,731) (26,501,613)

Mojave Water Agency Carryover Water Purchase (999,800) (999,800)
Littlerock Dam Sediment Removal (31,093) (33,501) (34,095) (4,102) (12,434) (11,346) (19,048) (10,366) (662,871) (79,603) (45,878) (944,337) (1,873,781)

GAC (145,200) (145,200) (290,400) (159,720)
Prepaid Insurance (paid)/refunded (119,179) (62,458) (263,516) (445,153)
Total Operating Expense (ACTUAL) (1,970,692) (2,306,557) (3,906,180) (2,431,641) (1,728,089) (1,988,086) (1,900,234) (2,417,662) (2,880,975) (2,389,927) (3,032,645) (2,469,698) (1,729,609) (29,181,303)

Non Operating Revenue:
Assessments, net (BUDGET) 2,620,560 674,120 313,120 33,440 2,029,960 779,000 22,040 116,280 186,960 127,680 3,317,400 7,600,000
Actual/Projected Assessments, net 3,317,569 868,573 443,715 37,792 2,599,188 836,126 37,590 344,492 224,253 174,203 3,340,321 8,906,254
Asset Sale/Unencumbered Money (Taxes) 18,265 18,265

RDA Pass through (Successor Agency) 322,456 514,142 836,598 417,798

Interest 11,374 12,275 12,141 10,139 6,839 8,540 8,854 8,749 8,331 8,611 8,253 10,817 34,302 137,850
Market Adjustment (15,884) (19,098) (17,524) (21,552) (12,657) (2,641) (25,301) (1,623) 13,345 (6,434) 5,671 22,116 25,014 (40,683)

Grant Re imbursement 57,815 57,815 3,472 410,983 88,794 561,064 1,100,000
Capital Improvement Fees Infrastructure 10,544 135,000 324,002 15,687 257,220 742,452
Capital Improvement Fees Water Supply 24,102 315,000 743,712 8,604 408,556 1,499,974
DWR Refund (Capital Related) 100,283 113,796 135,260 349,339
Other 1,245 248 0 236 4,578 48,443 2 3,056 (51,107) 0 (0) 1,602 7,058

Total Non Operating Revenues (BUDGET)
Total Non Operating Revenues (ACTUAL) 3,372,119 1,276,915 891,804 1,505,312 2,722,522 955,821 583,728 351,620 267,249 (48,929) 149,184 207,136 4,155,809 13,018,171

Non Operating Expenses:
Budgeted Capital Expenditures (199,044) (208,910) (208,910) (208,910) (60,000) (60,000) (60,000) (60,000) (60,000) (60,000) (60,000) (60,000) (22,579) (1,129,310)
Budgeted Capital Expenditures (Committed During Year)
Actual/Projected Capital Expenditures (51,316) (3,317) (394,448) (289,903) (316,729) (60,246) (302,157) (193,667) (34,617) (136,826) (121,098) (219,280) (162,332) (2,234,623)
Land Purchase (Groundwater Augmentation Pilot) (625,000)
Const. of Monitoring Wells/Test Basin (Water Supply)
Meter Exchange Project (Meters Purchased)

SWP Capitalized (232,718) (955,655) (246,267) (268,319) (246,267) (246,267) (246,267) (955,653) (246,267) (275,407) (246,267) (246,266) (246,266) (4,425,168)
Investment in PRWA (Suspended Contribution for 2022) (3,558) (250) (3,808)
Butte County Water Transfer (884,500) (867,065) (1,065,045) (2,816,610)

Bond Payments Interest (1,116,149) (1,037,615) (2,153,763)
Principal (645,198) (1,870,941) (2,516,139)

Capital leases Holman Capital (2017 Lease) (89,477) (89,477)
Capital leases Enterprise FM Trust (Vehicles) (22,534) (11,267) (11,267) (11,267) (11,267) (13,330) (11,977) (11,937) (13,496) (10,806) (13,910) (12,210) (155,269)

Capital leases Wells Fargo (Printers) (4,231) (4,573) (4,538) (4,428) (4,483) (4,483) (4,483) (4,483) (4,483) (4,483) (5,538) (4,502) (4,483) (54,962)
Total Non Operating Expenses (ACTUAL) (288,265) (1,075,556) (656,521) (3,223,322) (578,997) (322,263) (566,237) (2,032,846) (297,304) (3,338,768) (383,709) (483,959) (1,490,337) (14,449,819)

Total Cash Ending Balance (BUDGET) 9,990,449 10,956,032 11,073,711 9,199,205 10,989,695 11,414,389 10,746,726 10,169,877 10,356,760 7,864,417 7,941,244 8,067,984 9,990,449
Total Cash Ending Balance (ACTUAL) 14,615,595 14,772,733 13,192,702 11,633,309 14,601,061 15,810,308 16,752,444 15,332,018 15,701,246 12,857,373 12,621,650 12,666,339 16,132,006

9,990,449 Budget 12,090,613 Carryover (1,140,703)
4,625,146 Difference 4,041,393 Adj. Difference 2,900,690

2021 Cash Ending Balance (ACTUAL) 10,705,394 10,483,186 8,183,565 10,204,829 12,061,674 13,091,712 11,805,571 13,001,151 11,308,777 11,248,646 11,142,539 14,615,595

Indicates actual expenditures/revenues:

Indicates anticipated expenditures/revenues:

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
2022 Cash Flow Report (Based on Nov. 8, 2021 Adopted Budget)

Budget 2022
Carryover
Information



P A L M D A L E   W A T E R   D I S T R I C T 
B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE:  February 6, 2023 February 13, 2023 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 
FROM: Dennis J. Hoffmeyer, Finance Manager/CFO 

VIA: Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM 8.1.b – STATUS REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, 
REVENUE, AND EXPENSE AND DEPARTMENTAL BUDGET REPORTS FOR 
DECEMBER 2022. (FINANCE MANAGER HOFFMEYER)

Discussion: 

Presented here are the Balance Sheet and Profit/Loss Statement for the period ending December 
31, 2022. Also included are individual departmental budget reports. 

This is the 12th month of the District’s Budget Year 2022 and should be at 100% of the budget.  
Currently, we are below these percentages for both operating revenues and expenses.  Please refer 
to diagram A for a graphical representation of this information. 

Balance Sheet: 
 Pages 1 and 2 are the balance sheet for the 12-month period and a graphic presentation of

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position on December 31, 2022.
 The month-to-month change in the balance sheet was $772 thousand between

November/December.  Under the Assets portion, the majority of the change is related to
increases in the total non-current assets. This is related to the ongoing capital projects such
as well rehabilitation, mainline replacement, and the AV Pure Water project.  The portion
highlighted in orange shows the increase in cash and investments with the majority of the
funds coming from the December assessments that were received.  The offsetting entries
on the liability and net position side are related to the Profit/(Loss) from Operations in the
net position section highlighted in yellow.

 Page 1A & 1B are the year-to-year comparisons where the net change was $6.2 million.
On the current assets (highlighted in orange) the District has an increase in cash of $1.5
million.  The non-current assets have the District’s capital assets increasing by $9.3 million
and a decrease in restricted – cash and cash equivalent of $3.3 million highlighted in blue.
The offset entries on the liability side (Page 1B) are the change in accounts payable and
accrued expenses (highlighted in orange), the deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions (highlighted in green), and Profit/(Loss) from Operations (highlighted in yellow).

Profit/Loss Statement: 
 Page 3 is our consolidated profit and loss statement trending for the twelve months.
 Operating revenues continue to be slightly below historical averages at 98.7%.
 The District’s operating expenses are below historical averages at 96.2%.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1.b



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager -2- February 6, 2023 
 
Profit/Loss Statement (cont.): 

 The operating expenses have a majority of the departmental budgets at or below 100%.  
We did have three departments finishing higher with Facilities, Finance, and Customer 
Care above historical averages at 119.6%, 108.4%, and 103.7%, respectively. Also 
included in this is the Sediment Removal Project expense shown at 153.8%.  All four are 
highlighted in yellow for reference. 

 Page 3A shows the 4th quarter comparisons between 2021 and 2022.  Looking at the 
Operating Revenue, you will see a reduction in revenues related to the commodity side of 
our water rates (highlighted in yellow).  This is due to remaining in compliance with the 
mandatory water conservation efforts the state implemented in April 2022.  The Operating 
Expenses for the quarterly comparison is fairly balanced with the Source of Supply-
Purchased Water having the most significant difference (highlighted in orange).  This was 
mainly due to the water transfer agreement with the Mojave Water Agency and several 
smaller transfers that occurred. 

 Pages 4 and 5 show the P&L in various graphic forms using major report category totals.  
On page 4, there is the addition of a trendline on the departmental – budget vs. actual only 
for reference purposes. 
 
Additional notes 

 We will be conducting year-end adjustments over the next month that may change the 
numbers being presented in this report as staff prepares for the 2022 audit.  This process 
has already started, and Nigro & Nigro on January 4 conducted a field review of the 
District’s inventory with no discrepancies being noted. 

 We have also contacted Foster and Foster (formerly Bartel Associates) to start the process 
of our GASB 68/75 review. This process will look at the actuarial numbers for both the 
District’s pension obligation and the other post-employment benefits.  This should be 
concluded by the beginning of March. 

 
Departments: 

 Pages 6 through 16 are detailed individual departmental budgets for your review. 
 

Non-Cash and terminology Definitions: 
 
GASB:  Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is a private non-governmental 
organization that creates accounting reporting standards, or generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP), for state and local governments in the United States. 
Depreciation:  This is the spreading of the total expense of a capital asset over the expected life 
of that asset. 
OPEB Accrual Expense:  Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) is the recognized annual 
required contribution to the benefit.  The amount is actuarially determined in accordance with the 
parameters of GASB 45.  The amount represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year. 
Bad Debt:  The uncollectible accounts receivable that has been written off. 
Service Cost Construction:  The value of material, parts & supplies from inventory used to 
construct, repair, and maintain our asset infrastructure. 
Capitalized Construction:  The value of our labor force used to construct our asset infrastructure. 



Dec, 98.76%

Dec, 96.26%

0.00%

12.50%

25.00%

37.50%

50.00%

62.50%

75.00%

87.50%

100.00%

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Palmdale Water District
Monthly Budgetary Percentages

Projected Operating Revenue Projected Operating Expenses Traditional Percentage Actual Operating Revenue Actual Operating Expense





December December Net Annual

2022 2021 Change

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivelents $ 1,284,053 $ 1,874,769 $ (590,717)
Investments 14,810,880 12,708,681 2,102,199
Accrued interest receivable 37,074 32,152 4,922
Accounts receivable water sales and services, net 2,352,009 2,593,730 (241,721)
Accounts receivable property taxes and assessments 5,459,701 4,374,275 1,085,426
Accounts receivable other 101,250 161,549 (60,299)
Materials and supplies inventory 1,451,344 1,894,031 (442,687)
Prepaid items and other deposits 847,155 841,486 5,669

Total Current Assets 26,343,465$     24,480,673$    1,862,792$      

Non-Current Assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 7,723,962$       11,030,099$    (3,306,138)$     

Investment in Palmdale Recycled Water Authority 2,202,482         2,201,548        934 

Capital assets not being depreciated 18,793,941       10,963,834      7,830,107        

Capital assets being depreciated, net 158,617,586     157,172,808    1,444,778        
Total Non-Current  Assets 187,337,971$   181,368,290$  5,969,681$      
TOTAL ASSETS 213,681,436$   205,848,963$  7,832,473$      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Deferred loss on debt defeasence, net 2,815,831$ 4,049,130$ (1,233,300)$
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 5,023,432 5,406,803 (383,371)

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 7,839,263$       9,455,933$      (1,616,671)$     
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 221,520,699$   215,304,896$  6,215,803$      

Palmdale Water District
Balance Sheet Report

Annual Quarterly Comparison

Prepared 1/11/202311:47 AM Page 1A



December December Net Annual

2022 2021 Change

Palmdale Water District
Balance Sheet Report

Annual Quarterly Comparison

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 742,785$          2,788,444$      (2,045,660)$     

Customer deposits for water service 2,930,379         3,392,974        (462,595)          

Construction and developer deposits 1,637,376         1,636,000 1,376 

Accrued interest payable 524,635            561,941           (37,306)            

Long term liabilities due in one year: - 

Compensated absences 528,766            506,112 22,654

Rate Stabilization Fund 560,000            560,000           - 

Capital lease payable 447,281            88,250             359,031           

Loan payable 1,342,628         1,300,396        42,232             

Revenue bonds payable 853,657            1,022,913        (169,256)          

Total Current Liabilities 9,567,508$       11,857,031$    (2,289,523)$     

Non-Current Liabilities:

Long term liabilities due in more than one year:
Compensated absences 176,255$          168,704$         7,551$             

Capital lease payable 1,952,719         - 1,952,719 

Loan payable 3,908,974         5,420,020        (1,511,046) 

Revenue bonds payable 62,830,534       63,877,021      (1,046,487) 

Net other post employment benefits payable 13,939,009       17,630,436      (3,691,427) 

Aggregate net pension liability 6,056,636         11,573,771      (5,517,135) 
  Total Non-Current Liabilities 88,864,127$     98,669,952$    (9,805,825)$     

Total Liabilities 98,431,634$     110,526,983$  (12,095,349)$   

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Unearned property taxes and assessments 4,300,000$       4,100,000$      200,000$         

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 10,699,946       1,299,999        9,399,947        
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 14,999,946$     5,399,999$      9,599,947$      

NET POSITION:

Profit/(Loss) from Operations 8,172,110$       2,631,455$      5,540,655$      

Restricted for investment in Palmdale Recycled Water Authority 2,212,152         2,216,939        (4,787) 

Unrestricted 97,704,856       94,529,520      3,175,336        
Total Net Position 108,089,118$   99,377,914$    8,711,204$      

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, 
AND NET POSITION 221,520,699$   215,304,896$  6,215,803$      

Prepared 1/11/202311:47 AM Page 1



BALANCE SHEET AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022

$26,343,465

$187,337,971

$7,839,263
ASSETS

$221,520,699

Current Assets

Non Current Assets

Deferred Outflows

$98,431,634

$14,999,946

$108,089,118

Liabilities & Net Position
$221,520,699

Liabilities

Deferred Inflows

Net Position

Prepared 1/11/202311:35 AM Page 2



Adjusted % of
January February March April May June July August September October November December Year-to-Date Adjustments Budget Budget

Operating Revenue:
     Wholesale Water 28,297$        8,323$          24,656$        28,508$        43,169$        49,427$        43,782$        57,511$        2,319$          87,975$        100,656$      25,478$        500,102$      500,000$      100.02%
     Water Sales 652,212        618,278        700,369        857,668        855,775        1,115,196     1,206,823     1,321,938     1,326,636     1,158,071     877,484        708,476        11,398,925   12,615,350   90.36%
     Meter Fees 1,393,717     1,395,619     1,397,264     1,401,046     1,402,024     1,404,858     1,402,456     1,404,630     1,403,996     1,382,471     1,386,702     1,387,483     16,762,268   16,490,000   101.65%
     Water Quality Fees 36,078          35,010          41,265          50,416          50,661          62,224          65,697          70,190          67,973          58,464          46,182          38,902          623,061        851,700        73.15%
     Elevation Fees 18,074          18,371          22,249          28,861          28,598          36,617          41,405          41,667          40,590          34,934          25,584          20,791          357,741        390,550        91.60%
     Other 70,275          48,613          103,741        240,527        92,092          216,547        87,310          143,718        93,675          62,001          104,761        146,776        1,410,037     900,000        156.67%
     Drought Surcharge - - - - - 36,470 41,928 48,256 54,896 50,579 39,415 31,131 302,676 -
     Total Operating Revenue 2,198,653$   2,124,214$   2,289,544$   2,607,026$   2,472,319$   2,921,338$   2,889,401$   3,087,912$   2,989,923$   2,834,496$   2,580,785$   2,359,038$   31,354,810$ -$  31,747,600$ 98.76%

Cash Operating Expenses:
     Directors 7,019$          14,476$        12,360$        7,417$          13,349$        14,182$        12,493$        12,674$        13,973$        12,222$        14,346$        12,985$        147,496$      162,914$      90.54%
     Administration-Services 150,148        154,556        232,203        168,985        170,893        199,401        194,258        247,826        170,829        167,276        164,297        219,155        2,239,826     2,263,006     98.98%
     Administration-District 88,115          185,791        255,840        171,735        216,048        271,248        174,518        197,595        272,047        198,694        189,756        138,182        2,359,568     2,420,929     97.47%
     Engineering 115,367 126,954 176,106 126,012 123,530 122,554 147,006 181,012 120,829 146,405 124,568 169,928 1,680,272 1,667,211 100.78%
     Facilities 620,490        531,752        661,950        642,579        574,683        636,383        638,819        937,751        676,114        619,083        583,951        387,476        7,511,033     6,278,142     119.64%
     Operations 157,312 206,139 361,014 307,313 241,455 301,782 476,460 418,515 302,840 338,294 208,187 274,789 3,594,101 3,578,644 100.43%
     Finance 150,924 137,652 188,858 150,003 133,374 134,174 164,987 183,625 143,857 138,617 136,822 177,391 1,840,283 1,696,930 108.45%
     Water Use Efficiency 20,213          18,905          26,771          20,521          21,453          21,796          29,598          33,826          20,696          23,809          20,304          27,940          285,833        406,847        70.26%
     Human Resources 20,015          34,269          41,882          52,036          38,496          30,454          32,331          58,856          36,852          43,879          41,797          48,343          479,209        535,607        89.47%
     Information Technology 242,304        179,381        132,500        89,719          120,505        100,583        109,805        198,378        128,888        94,132          110,594        169,491        1,676,279     1,825,946     91.80%
     Customer Care 116,099        109,834        156,937        113,245        113,327        109,166        124,422        158,477        120,456        116,557        118,180        152,443        1,509,141     1,454,576     103.75%
     Source of Supply-Purchased Water 1,005,037     83,300          (21,183)         9,590            83,745          201,360        227,447        (18,634)         296,215        42,503          58,915          1,466            1,969,760     3,402,922     57.88%
     Plant Expenditures 57,471          - - - - - - 7,350            38,589          37,042          - - 140,453        488,305        28.76%
     Sediment Removal Project 34,095          - 16,536          4,492            57,598          20,251          1,461            17,091          725,383        44,503          1,375            - 922,785        600,000        153.80%
     GAC Filter Media Replacement - - - - - 145,200        - - - - - - 145,200        750,000        19.36%
     Total Cash Operating Expenses 2,784,608$   1,783,009$   2,241,773$   1,863,646$   1,908,457$   2,308,533$   2,333,605$   2,634,342$   5,090,584$   2,023,016$   1,773,093$   1,779,588$   26,501,239$ -$  27,531,979$ 96.26%

          Net Cash Operating Profit/(Loss) (585,956)$     341,205$      47,771$        743,380$      563,863$      612,805$      555,796$      453,569$      (2,100,660)$  811,480$      807,691$      579,450$      4,853,571$   -$  4,215,621$   115.13%

Non-Cash Operating Expenses:
     Depreciation 427,878$      427,878$      430,448$      428,516$      425,598$      428,001$      428,001$      428,001$      437,864$      442,139$      438,304$      439,291$      5,181,920$   5,050,000$   102.61%
     OPEB Accrual Expense 127,710        127,710        127,710        127,710        127,710        127,710        127,710        127,710        127,710        127,710        127,710        127,710        1,532,521     1,600,000     95.78%
     Bad Debts (451)              (78) (78) (396)              (320)              (421)              (298)              (276)              - - - (70) (2,388)           125,000        -1.91%
     Service Costs Construction 22,751          24,501          53,295          50,657          68,001          29,036          12,071          37,310          50,837          (4,600)           23,827          16,739          384,425        150,000        256.28%
     Capitalized Construction (24,458)         (86,120)         (197,829)       (184,755)       (134,830)       (65,124)         (81,871)         (96,469)         (62,608)         (83,319)         (146,247)       (94,031)         (1,257,660)    (900,000)       139.74%
     Capital Contributions - - - - - - - - (3,089,833)    - - - (3,089,833)    -
     Total Non-Cash Operating Expenses 553,430$      493,891$      413,547$      421,732$      486,159$      519,202$      485,613$      496,277$      (2,054,100)$  481,930$      443,594$      489,639$      2,748,985$   -$  6,025,000$   45.63%

               Net Operating Profit/(Loss) (1,139,386)$  (152,686)$     (365,776)$     321,649$      77,704$        93,603$        70,182$        (42,707)$       (46,561)$       329,549$      364,097$      89,810$        2,104,586$   -$  (1,809,379)$  -116.32%

Non-Operating Revenues:
     Assessments (Debt Service) 517,898$      517,898$      517,898$      517,898$      826,238$      1,193,271$   543,162$      543,162$      543,162$      480,740$      480,740$      487,812$      7,169,879$   5,400,000$   132.78%
     Assessments (1%) 487,891        165,435        165,435        165,435        268,215        984,764        173,505        191,770        173,505        235,927        235,927        228,855        3,476,663     2,200,000     158.03%
    DWR Fixed Charge Recovery - - - 100,283        113,796        - - - - 135,260        - - 349,339        175,000        199.62%
     Interest (6,823)           (5,383)           (11,412)         (5,818)           5,899            (16,447)         7,126            21,676          2,177            13,924          32,933          59,316          97,167          130,000        74.74%
     CIF - Infrastructure 10,544          135,000        363,266        15,687          - - - - - 3,880            - 257,220        785,596        200,000        392.80%
     CIF - Water Supply 24,102          315,000        776,496        8,604            - - - - - - - 408,556        1,532,758     350,000        437.93%
     Grants - State and Federal - 3,472            - - - 960               - - - - - 88,794 93,226 75,000          124.30%
     Other 248 0 236 4,578 - 48,443 2 3,056 (51,107) 0 (0) 1,602 7,058 50,000 14.12%
     Total Non-Operating Revenues 1,033,860$   1,131,423$   1,811,918$   806,667$      1,214,148$   2,210,992$   723,794$      759,663$      1,537,468$   869,731$      749,599$      1,532,154$   13,511,687$ -$  8,580,000$   157.48%

Non-Operating Expenses:
     Interest on Long-Term Debt 187,675$      187,675$      736,175$      173,840$      173,840$      173,840$      173,840$      173,840$      719,085$      168,460$      168,442$      168,442$      3,205,155$   2,106,446$   152.16%
     Deferred Charges-Cost of Issuance - - - - - - - - - 7,500            - - 7,500            -
     Amortization of SWP 334,019        334,020        334,021        334,022        334,023        334,024        334,025        334,026        334,027        334,007        334,007        334,007        4,008,232     3,658,084     109.57%
     Change in Investments in PRWA - 3,558            - 250               - - 5,786            - 76 - - - 9,670            75,000          12.89%
     Water Conservation Programs 11,353          9,205            10,057          3,424            9,964            16,880          39,091          35,072          24,599          24,712          159,918        (133,360)       210,915        236,500        89.18%
     Total Non-Operating Expenses 533,048$      534,458$      1,080,254$   511,537$      517,827$      524,744$      552,743$      542,938$      1,612,467$   534,679$      662,368$      369,089$      7,441,473$   -$  6,076,030$   122.47%

               Net Earnings (638,574)$     444,278$      365,889$      616,779$      774,024$      1,779,851$   241,233$      174,018$      (121,559)$     664,601$      451,329$      1,252,875$   8,174,800$   -$  694,591$      1176.92%

Palmdale Water District
Consolidated Profit and Loss Statement

For the Twelve Months Ending 12/31/2022 

Prepared 1/11/2023 11:55 AM Page 3



4th Qtr 4th Qtr %
2021 2022 Change Change

Operating Revenue:
     Wholesale Water 156,174$        214,109$      57,935$        27.06%
     Water Sales 2,960,109       2,744,030     (216,078)       -7.87%
     Meter Fees 3,771,593       4,156,657     385,064        9.26%
     Water Quality Fees 162,361          143,548        (18,812)         -13.11%
     Elevation Fees 87,603           81,310          (6,293)           -7.74%
     Other 111,804          313,539        201,735        64.34%
     Drought Surcharge 121,126        121,126        
     Total Operating Revenue 7,249,643$     7,774,318$   524,675$      6.75%

Cash Operating Expenses:
     Directors 43,600$          39,554$        (4,047)$         -10.23%
     Administration-Services 461,139          550,728        89,589          16.27%
     Administration-District 464,953          526,632        61,678          11.71%
     Engineering 312,955          440,901        127,946        29.02%
     Facilities 1,830,167       1,590,511     (239,656)       -15.07%
     Operations 649,722          821,270        171,549        20.89%
     Finance 445,302          452,830        7,528            1.66%
     Water Conservation 57,232           72,054          14,821          20.57%
     Human Resources 138,570          134,018        (4,552)           -3.40%
     Information Technology 344,161          374,217        30,056          8.03%
     Customer Care 317,378          387,179        69,801          18.03%
     Source of Supply-Purchased Water 2,074,928       102,884        (1,972,044)    -1916.76%
     Plant Expenditures 35,301           37,042          1,741            4.70%
     Sediment Removal Project 74,035           45,878          (28,157)         -61.37%
     GAC Filter Media Replacement 145,200          -                    (145,200)       0.00%
     Total Cash Operating Expenses 7,394,644$     5,575,698$   (1,818,946)$  -32.62%

Non-Cash Operating Expenses:
     Depreciation 1,462,754$     1,319,734$   (143,020)$     -10.84%
     OPEB Accrual Expense 383,130          383,130        -                    0.00%
     Bad Debts (3,250)            (70)                3,180            -4538.18%
     Service Costs Construction 41,000           35,966          (5,034)           -14.00%
     Capitalized Construction (180,670)        (323,597)       (142,927)       44.17%
     Capital Contributions -                     -                    -                    
     Total Non-Cash Operating Expenses 1,702,964$     1,415,164$   (287,801)$     -20.34%

               Net Operating Profit/(Loss) (1,847,965)$   783,457$      2,631,422$   335.87%

Non-Operating Revenues:
     Assessments (Debt Service) -$                   1,449,292$   1,449,292$   100.00%
     Assessments (1%) 1,257,607       700,708        (556,899)       -79.48%
    DWR Fixed Charge Recovery 392,393          135,260        (257,133)       -190.10%
     Interest 131,638          106,173        (25,466)         -23.99%
     CIF - Infrastructure (4,842)            261,100        265,942        101.85%
     CIF - Water Supply 23,407           408,556        385,148        94.27%
     Grants - State and Federal -                     88,794          88,794          100.00%
     Other 57,815           1,602            (56,213)         -3509.13%

     Total Non-Operating Revenues 1,858,018$     3,151,484$   1,293,466$   41.04%

Non-Operating Expenses:
     Interest on Long-Term Debt -$                   505,345$      505,345$      100.00%
     Deferred Charges-Cost of Issuance 564,252          -                    
     Amortization of SWP -                     1,002,022     1,002,022     100.00%
     Change in Investments in PRWA 1,244,549       -                    (1,244,549)    0.00%
     Water Conservation Programs 1,988             51,270          49,281          96.12%
     Total Non-Operating Expenses 1,810,790$     1,558,637$   312,099$      20.02%

               Net Earnings (1,800,737)$   2,376,305$   3,612,789$   152.03%

Palmdale Water District
Profit and Loss Statement

Quarterly Comparison 

Printed 1/11/2023 12:15 PM Page 3A



Year-to-Date Budget
Operating Revenue 31,354,810$        31,747,600$      98.76%
Cash Operating Expense 26,501,239$        27,531,979$      96.26%
Non-Cash Operating Expense 2,748,985$          6,025,000$        45.63%
Non-Operating Revenue 13,511,687$        8,580,000$        157.48%
Non-Operating Expense 7,441,473$          6,076,030$        122.47%

Year-to-Date Budget
Directors 147,496               162,914             90.54%
Admin-Services 2,239,826            2,263,006          98.98%
Admin-District 2,359,568            2,420,929          97.47%
Engineering 1,680,272            1,667,211          100.78%
Facilities 7,511,033            6,278,142          119.64%
Operations 3,594,101            3,578,644          100.43%
Finance 1,840,283            1,696,930          108.45%
Water Use Efficiency 285,833               406,847             70.26%
Human Resources 479,209               535,607             89.47%
Information Technology 1,676,279            1,825,946          91.80%
Customer Care 1,509,141            1,454,576          103.75%

98.76% 96.26%

45.63%

157.48%

122.47%

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

140.00%

160.00%

180.00%

Percent of Budgeted

P & L BUDGET vs. ACTUAL

Operating Revenue

Cash Operating Expense

Non Cash Operating Expense

Non Operating Revenue

Non Operating Expense

90.54%

98.98% 97.47% 100.78%

119.64%

100.43%

108.45%

70.26%

89.47% 91.80%

103.75%

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

140.00%

Percent of Budgeted

DEPARTMENTAL BUDGET vs. ACTUAL

Directors

Admin Services

Admin District

Engineering

Facilities

Operations

Finance

Water Use Efficiency

Human Resources

Information Technology

Customer Care

Budget Target

Page 4



Sa
la
rie

s
$9

,9
10

,5
16

37
%

Ta
xe
s

$7
15

,2
76

3%

H
ea
lth

In
s.

$1
,5
86

,4
45

6%

PE
RS

$1
,7
60

,4
41

7%
W
or
ke
rs
Co

m
p,

Va
c.

Ex
p.
,L
ife

$2
01

,7
63

1%

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
$1

2,
32

6,
79

8
46

%

Pe
rs
on

ne
lt
o
O
pe

ra
tio

ns
Ex
p

YT
D
12

/3
1/
20

22
$2
6,
50
1,
23
9

Sa
la
rie

s

Ta
xe
s

H
ea
lth

In
s.

PE
RS

W
or
ke
rs
Co

m
p,

Va
c.
Ex
p.
,L
ife

O
pe

ra
tio

ns

























Palmdale Water District
2021 Capital Projects ‐ Contractual Commitments and Needs

Updated: 2/6/2023 

New and Replacement Capital Projects

Budget Year Project Project Title Project Type Contractor
 Approved 

Contract Amount 
Board / Manager 

Approval

 Payments 
Approved to 

Date 
 Contract 
Balance 

 Through Dec. 
2021  Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec  2022 Total 

 2023 
Carryover 

2017 12‐400 PRGRRP ‐ Construction of Monitoring Wells / Test Basin Water Supply Environmental Const. 427,490                 04/26/2017 330,359                 97,131                   330,359             ‐                       

2017 12‐400 PRGRRP ‐ Construction of Monitoring Wells / Test Basin ‐ Auxiliary Items Water Supply Various Vendors 35,742                   ‐                              35,742               ‐                       

2021 12‐606 Spec 1206 ‐ WM Repl in Division and Avenue Q Replacement Cap. 80,763                   ‐                              5,720                 16,475             16,360             16,536             1,311                8,036                16,215             110                   75,043            

12‐606 Spec 1206 ‐ WM Repl in Division and Avenue Q (Bond Fund) Replacement Cap. Toro Enterprises, Inc 2,243,362             2,174,625             68,737                   ‐                         463,799          248,650          801,286          346,210          314,681          2,174,625      

2018 18‐410 PRV Replacement ‐ 40th ST E (Bypass) General Project 9,852                     ‐                              9,852                 ‐                       

2018 18‐606 45th ST Tank Site ‐ Altitude  Valve Replacement Replacement Cap. 5,021                     ‐                              372                    541                   165                   3,943                4,649               

2018 18‐614 LRD ‐ Interior Access Ladder Replacement Cap. 27,028                   ‐                              4,200                 10,135             11,040             1,654                22,828            

2019 19‐601 Spec 1901 ‐ ML Replace Ave P 4,066                     ‐                              ‐                         461                   1,062                1,045                1,499                4,066               

19‐601 Spec 1901 ‐ ML Replace Ave P Cedro Construction, Inc. 434,289                 429,754                 4,535                     ‐                         146,940          230,816          51,998             429,754         

2020 20‐605 Sierra Hwy Tie‐in @ Harold St and Abandonment Plan Replacement Cap. 6,784                     ‐                              4,742                 440                   1,121                385                   97                     2,042               

20‐605 Sierra Hwy Tie‐in @ Harold St and Abandonment Plan (Bond Fund) Replacement Cap. Christensen Bros 669,886                 701,848                 (31,962)                  571,980             32,218             59,444             38,206             129,867         

2020 20‐606 2800 Zone Velocity Deficiency General Project 720                        ‐                              720                    ‐                       

2020 20‐607 Move PRV Station @ 45th St E Replacement Cap. ‐                              ‐                              ‐                         ‐                       

2020 20‐608 WM Repl in 17th St E from Ave P4 to Ave P8 Replacement Cap. ‐                              ‐                              ‐                         ‐                       

2020 20‐609 WM Repl in Ave Q6,12th to 16th Replacement Cap. 5,550                     ‐                              4,730                 820                   820                  

2020 20‐610 2950 Zone Booster Station @ 3M Clearwell Site Replacement Cap. 130,854                 ‐                              94,462               1,365                4,697                1,723                7,373                21,236             36,393            

2020 20‐611 2020 Meter Exchange Program General Project 49,418                   ‐                              49,131               287                   287                  

2020 20‐615 2020 Soft Start Repl Program General Project 20,040                   ‐                              20,040               ‐                       

2020 20‐619 25th ST Booster #3 Rehab General Project 13,259                   ‐                              13,259               ‐                       

2020 20‐622 Well 36 Design & Const. General Project 84,762                   ‐                              31,607               825                   405                   675                   544                   32,580             10,994             7,133                53,155            

20‐622 Well 36 Design & Const. (Bond Fund ‐ Design) General Project Hazen and Sawyer 612,656                 376,182                 236,474                 201,145             22,863             2,890                3,375                7,310                27,217             26,816             7,360                4,900                54,924             17,383             175,037         

20‐622 Well 36 Design & Const. (Bond Fund ‐ Construction) General Project Zim Industries, Inc 2,073,913             1,548,555             525,358                 ‐                         723,596          255,002          569,957          1,548,555      

2020 20‐623 AMI Meter System General Project 15,000                   ‐                              15,000               ‐                       

2020 20‐625 WM Repl ‐ 5th ST & Q1 thru Q5 8,431                     ‐                              2,000                 330                   6,101                6,431               

2020 20‐703 Water Conservation Garden Construct @ MOB General Project 1,640                     ‐                              1,640                 ‐                       

2021 21‐600 2021 Soft Start Replacement Program Replacement Cap. 13,231                   ‐                              13,231               ‐                       

2021 21‐601 2021 Booster Building Rehab 15,900                   ‐                              15,900               ‐                       

2021 21‐602 Repl Brine Storage Tanks ‐ Wells Replacement Cap. 52,438                   ‐                              50,331               1,774                332                   2,106               

2021 21‐607 Design 16" WM Ave P Well #8A 9,910                     ‐                              1,860                 4,100                390                   3,560                8,050               

2021 21‐608 Sodium Hypo Gen System ‐ Two Wells Replacement Cap. Ryan Process, Inc. (DeNora) 116,755                 ‐                              ‐                              ‐                         116,755          5,172                ‐                       

2021 21‐609 Design WM from 16"to24" Ave S 2,000                     ‐                              2,000                 ‐                       

2021 21‐610 WM Repl E Ave Q10 & 12th St. Replacement Cap. 16,798                   ‐                              2,000                 93                     5,985                8,720                14,798            

21‐610 WM Repl E Ave Q10 & 12th St. Replacement Cap. 16,798                   ‐                              133,546          133,546         

2021 21‐613 Palmdale Ditch Conversion General Project 90,296                   ‐                              73,022               17,273             17,273            

2021 21‐615 IPS Pump‐Check Valve WTP Replacement Cap. 28,467                   ‐                              28,467               ‐                       

2021 21‐616 Booster #1  45th St. ‐ Rotating Assembly Replacement Cap. 21,786                   ‐                              ‐                         14,976             6,810                21,786            

2021 21‐617 WTP ‐ NaOCL Repl System Replacement Cap. 4,047                     ‐                              ‐                         4,047                4,047               

2021 21‐618 Repair Well #14 General Project 157,026                 ‐                              ‐                         157,026          157,026         

2021 21‐619 Roof Repl Well #3 1,913                     ‐                              ‐                         1,913                1,913               

2021 21‐703 Main Office ‐ Stucco Repair General Project 26,248                   ‐                              10,145               1,790                413                   6,109                5,019                2,773                16,103            

2022 22‐601 Des&Const WM @Pearblossom 53rd General Project 2,820                     ‐                              ‐                         2,820                2,820               

2022 22‐602 Design WM Repl @10th to R4 General Project 2,280                     ‐                              ‐                         2,280                2,280               

2022 22‐604 Des&Const WM Repl Sierra Hwy General Project 2,220                     ‐                              ‐                         2,220                2,220               

2022 22‐605 Design Recycled Water Pipeline ‐ Avenue Q General Project 5,400                     ‐                              ‐                         5,400                5,400               

2022 22‐607 Well 2A Generator Upgrade General Project 6,166                     ‐                              ‐                         5,809                358                   6,166               

2022 22‐608 Sodium Hypo Gen System ‐ Two Wells Replacement Cap. Ryan Process, Inc. (DeNora) 116,755                 118,595                 (1,840)                    ‐                         116,755          1,840                118,595         

2022 22‐609 TOC Analyzer Replacement Cap. Shimadzu Scientific 51,203                   ‐                              ‐                         51,203             51,203            

2022 22‐610 Repair Well #8 Pump General Project 50,467                   ‐                              ‐                         43,199             666                   6,601                50,467            

2022 22‐611 Repair Well #32 Pump General Project 178,149                 ‐                              ‐                         13,300             164,849          178,149         

2022 22‐612 Service Line Replacement @ 20th and Avenue R (Qty. 4) General Project Internal ‐ Crew 29,446                   ‐                              ‐                         12,260             17,186             29,446            

2022 22‐613 Repair Well #3 Motor General Project 12,728                   ‐                              ‐                         12,728             12,728            

2022 22‐615 Repair Well #26 Pump General Project 134,313                 ‐                              ‐                         13,300             60,183             60,830             134,313         

2022 22‐616 Plm Ditch Improvements (Yr 3) General Project 15,001                   ‐                              ‐                         15,001             15,001            

2022 22‐618 Repair Well #23 General Project 10,922                   ‐                              ‐                         10,922             10,922            

2022 22‐621 Repair Well #33 86,960                   ‐                              ‐                         13,300             73,660             86,960            

2022 22‐626 Repair Well #15 General Project 61,070                   ‐                              ‐                         1,136                59,934             61,070            

2022 22‐629 WTP ‐ Design & Const. Chemical Feed Lines General Project 9,570                     ‐                              ‐                         9,570                9,570               

2022 22‐631 Replace Main Office HVAC Unit General Project 7,353                     ‐                              ‐                         7,353                7,353               

2022 22‐700 2022 Large Meter/Vault Repl Progrom  General Project Internal ‐ Crew 32,758                   ‐                              ‐                         18,307             1,171                10,791             2,238                251                   32,758            

‐                              ‐                              ‐                         ‐                       

Sub‐Totals: 6,695,106             7,334,530             898,434                 1,593,658        58,135             803,666          330,747          1,833,371       433,672          510,769          201,027          265,433          374,277          175,639          132,748          860,063          5,857,620       ‐                       

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1.c



Palmdale Water District
2021 Capital Projects ‐ Contractual Commitments and Needs

Updated: 2/6/2023 

Consulting and Engineering Support

Budget Year Project Project Title Project Type Contractor
 Approved 

Contract Amount 
Board / Manager 

Approval

 Payments 
Approved to 

Date 
 Contract 
Balance 

 Through Dec. 
2021  Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec  2022 Total 

 2023 
Carryover 

2017 12‐400 PRGRRP ‐ CEQA, Permitting, Pre‐Design, and Pilot Water Supply Kennedy/Jenks 1,627,000             05/12/2016 14,937                   1,612,063             14,937               ‐                       

Paid by General Fund Kennedy/Jenks ‐                              ‐                              ‐                         ‐                       

2020 20‐405 Well Rehab Consulting Services Kyle Groundwater ‐                              65,569                   ‐                              65,569               ‐                       

2020 20‐412 Aquisition of Wtr Svc to Alpine Springs Mobilehome Park ‐                              15,900                   ‐                              15,900               ‐                       

2020 20‐414 ARC Flash Study 36,597                   ‐                              36,597               ‐                       

2020 20‐415 Hazard Mitigation Plan HDR Engineering 109,043                 ‐                              100,270             1,423                7,350                8,773               

2021 21‐411 2021 Public Website Redesign ‐                              62,466                   ‐                              60,317               2,149                2,149               

2021 21‐417 LRDR ‐ Sediment Removal Phase 2 Expense California Dept Fish & Game 49,585                   ‐                              49,585               ‐                       

21‐417 LRDR ‐ Sediment Removal Phase 2 Expense Aspen Environment Group 138,315                 ‐                              ‐                         31,093             33,501             34,095             4,102                12,434             4,492                18,598             138,315         

21‐417 LRDR ‐ Sediment Removal Phase 2 Expense U.S. Geological Survey 39,000                   ‐                              ‐                         39,000             39,000            

21‐417 LRDR ‐ Sediment Removal Phase 2 Expense All Others 450                        ‐                              ‐                         450                   450                  

2021 21‐500 Alpine Springs Grant Funding ‐                              4,075                     ‐                              4,000                 75                     75                    

2022 22‐410 2022 GIS Enhancements Expense ESRI 53,900                   ‐                              ‐                         53,900             53,900            

2022 22‐65x Pure Water AV ‐ General Expense 5,035                     ‐                              ‐                         4,960                75                     5,035               

Pure Water AV ‐ (Bonds) Stantec 756,503                 ‐                              ‐                         284,280          199,204          244,781          28,238             756,503         

‐                              ‐                              ‐                              ‐                         ‐                       

Sub‐Totals: 1,627,000             1,351,375             1,612,063             347,175             31,093             90,972             34,170             4,102                12,434             43,492             19,048             284,280          211,515          244,781          28,313             ‐                        1,004,200       ‐                       

New and Replacement Equipment

Budget Year Project Project Title Project Type Contractor
 Approved 

Contract Amount 
Board / Manager 

Approval

 Payments 
Approved to 

Date 
 Contract 
Balance 

 Through Dec. 
2021  Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec  2022 Total 

 2023 
Carryover 

2021 21‐704 Office Furniture HR/CFO Equipment 19,412                   ‐                              16,330               3,082                3,082               

2021/22 22‐606 Replacement Backhoe (Qty. 2) Repl Equipment Coastline Equipment 257,468                 ‐                              ‐                         257,468          257,468         

2022 22‐410 WTP Security Camera Update Equipment Siemens Industry ‐                              ‐                         38,589             38,589            

2022 22‐630 Boardroom Audio/Visual Rehab Equipment ‐                              ‐                         66,799             66,799            

2022 22‐620 Chlorine Analyzer @ Underground 5,771                     ‐                              ‐                         5,771                5,771               

Sub‐Totals: 282,652                 ‐                              16,330               ‐                        ‐                        260,550          ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        38,589             66,799             5,771                371,709          ‐                       

Water Quality Fee Funded Projects

Budget Year
Work 
Order Project Title Project Type Vendor/Supplier

 Approved 
Contract Amount 

Board / Manager 
Approval

 Payments 
Approved to 

Date 
 Contract 
Balance 

 Through Dec. 
2021  Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec  2022 Total 

 2023 
Carryover 

2021 21‐401 GAC Replacements @ WTP Water Quality Calgon Carbon ‐                              07/09/2014 589,529                 ‐                              371,803             145,200          145,200         

2021 21‐401 GAC Replacement @ Underground Booster Station Water Quality Evoqua ‐                              03/10/2017 ‐                              72,526               ‐                       

2022 22‐401 GAC Replacements @ WTP Water Quality Calgon Carbon ‐                              07/09/2014 145,200                 ‐                              ‐                         145,200         

2022 22‐401 GAC Replacement @ Underground Booster Station Water Quality Evoqua ‐                              03/10/2017 ‐                              ‐                              ‐                         ‐                       

Sub‐Totals: ‐                              734,729                 ‐                              444,329             ‐                        145,200          ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        145,200          ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        145,200          ‐                       

= Projects that originated from 2013 WRB Funds

 Totals  Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 2021 Total

= Project had additional funding paid out by the general fund to complete. 8,322,106       

8,968,557       

= Project is now deemed complete with no further expense. 2,510,497       

89,228             894,638          625,467          1,837,473       446,106          554,261          220,075          549,713          585,791          459,010          227,859          865,835          7,355,456      

= Projects paid by 2018 WRB Funds ‐                         ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       

‐                         ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                       

= Projects paid by 2021 WRB Funds 7,355,456        89,228             894,638          625,467          1,837,473       446,106          554,261          220,075          549,713          585,791          459,010          227,859          865,835          7,355,456      

Non‐Operating Capital Expenditures (Projected)

Funding Available Through Water Supply Fees

2019 Funding Through Budgeted Non‐Operating Capital Ex.

Project Summary (W/O GAC Included)

Total Approved Contracts to Date

Total Payments on Approved Contracts to Date

Total Contract Balance to Date

Non‐Operating Capital Expenditures (Paid)



Project Project # Description Bond Allocation
Contractual
Commitment

Payout to Date Over/(Under)
Uncommitted

Bond $

2021A WRB Issue 9,655,193$ $ $ 9,655,193$

SIERRA 20 605 WM Repl Sierra Hwy @ Harold St (Christensen Brothers) 732,459 701,848 30,611 (701,848)
Original Contract Amt: $447,036.60, C.O.1: $95,571.07, C.O.2: $127,278.49,
C.O.3: $62,572.57

W36 Design 20 622 Well 36 Design & Construction (Hazen and Sawyer) 612,656 376,182 236,474 (376,182)

W36 Const 20 622 Well 36 Design & Construction (Zim Industries) 2,073,913 1,548,555 525,358 (2,073,913)

PRWAP MGMT 20 65x Palmdale Regional Water Augmentation Program (Stantec) 3,000,000 728,266 2,271,734 (1,543,469)

PRWAP RVW 22 650 Palmdale Regional Water Augmentation Program (NWRI) 28,238 (28,238) 56,475

WM AVE_P 19 601 Spec 1901 Water Main Replacement Avenue P (Cedro) 434,289 429,754 4,535 425,218

WM STAN 12 606 Spec 1206 WM Repl Division/Q 57,663 57,663 57,663

WM Q10 21 610 WM Repl Avenue Q10 133,546 (133,546) 267,091

PWD Design, Engineering and Other Preconstruction Costs 344,807 344,807 344,807

WRB Bond Issuance Costs 267,309 267,309 267,309

ISS Issuance Funds (7,733) (7,733) (7,733)

INT

Totals: 10,259,576$ 7,515,364$ 4,608,434$ 2,906,930$ 5,766,229$

2021A Water Revenue Bonds Unallocated Funds: 2,744,213$

2021A Water Revenue Bonds Remaining Funds to payout: 5,651,142$

Requisition
No.

Payee Date Approved Invoice No. Project
Payment
Amount

29 Zim Industries Inc. Dec 22, 2022 PB #3 W36 Const 569,956.78

28 J. Vega Engineering, Inc. Dec 5, 2022 21 610 1 WM Q10 133,545.57

27 National Water Research Institute Project Review Nov 23, 2022 2022 1073 PRWAP RVW 28,237.50

26 Hazen and Sawyer Design Engineers Nov 15, 2022 20182 000 17 W36 Design 17,383.25

25 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. Oct 18, 2022 1980772 PRWAP MGMT 244,781.25

25 Hazen and Sawyer Design Engineers Oct 18, 2022 20182 000 16 W36 Design 54,924.25

24 Christensen Brothers General Contractors Oct 3, 2022 521 RET SIERRA 35,098.53

24 Christensen Brothers General Contractors Oct 3, 2022 521 06 SIERRA 3,107.03

23 Zim Industries Inc. Sep 29, 2022 PB#2 W36 Const 173,390.20

22 Cedro Construction, Inc Sep 12, 2022 PP#3 WM AVE_P 51,998.33

21 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. Sep 1, 2022 1968737 PRWAP MGMT 199,204.14

21 Zim Industries Inc. Sep 1, 2022 PB#1 W36 Const 81,612.12

21 Hazen and Sawyer Design Engineers Sep 1, 2022 20182 000 15 W36 Design 540.00

21 Hazen and Sawyer Design Engineers Sep 1, 2022 20182 000 14 W36 Design 4,360.00

20 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. Aug 1, 2022 1958027 PRWAP MGMT 189,393.03

20 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. Aug 1, 2022 1939351 PRWAP MGMT 94,887.28

19 Cedro Construction, Inc Jul 26, 2022 PP#2 WM AVE_P 230,815.80

18 Hazen and Sawyer Design Engineers Jul 12, 2022 20182 000 13 W36 Design 7,359.50

16 Toro Enterprises, Inc Jun 30, 2022 15723 A2 WM STAN 57,663.35

15 Cedro Construction, Inc Jun 16, 2022 PP#1 WM AVE_P 146,939.54

14 Hazen and Sawyer Design Engineers Jun 1, 2022 20182 000 12 W36 Design 26,815.50

13 Hazen and Sawyer Design Engineers May 9, 2022 20182 000 11 W36 Design 27,217.00

12 Zim Industries Inc. Apr 21, 2022 Materials W36 Const 723,596.00

11 Hazen and Sawyer Design Engineers Apr 6, 2022 20182 000 10 W36 Design 7,310.00

10 Christensen Brothers General Contractors Mar 24, 2022 521 05 SIERRA 59,443.94

9 Hazen and Sawyer Design Engineers Mar 10, 2022 20182 000 9 W36 Design 3,375.00

6 Hazen and Sawyer Design Engineers Feb 15, 2022 20182 000 8 W36 Design 2,890.00

5 Christensen Brothers General Contractors Jan 12, 2022 521 04 SIERRA 32,217.92

5 Hazen and Sawyer Design Engineers Jan 12, 2022 20182 000 7 W36 Design 22,862.50

4 Christensen Brothers General Contractors Nov 22, 2021 521 03REV SIERRA 329,624.82

3 Hazen and Sawyer Design Engineers Nov 15, 2021 20182 000 6 W36 Design 47,246.00

3 Hazen and Sawyer Design Engineers Nov 15, 2021 20182 000 5 W36 Design 21,527.50

3 Palmdale Water District (Reimbursement H&S Inv#1 4) Nov 15, 2021 N/A W36 Design 132,371.26

Water Revenue Bond Series 2021A
Updated: December 13, 2022



(Cont.)

2 Christensen Brothers General Contractors Oct 20, 2021 521 02REV SIERRA 179,726.77

2 Palmdale Water District (Reimbursement CB Inv#1) Oct 20, 2021 N/A SIERRA 62,628.75

1 Palmdale Water District Aug 2, 2021 N/A PWD 344,807.22

Issuance Costs Jul 22, 2021 N/A WRB 267,309.10



P A L M D A L E   W A T E R   D I S T R I C T 

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE:  February 6, 2023 February 13, 2023 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Dennis J. Hoffmeyer, Finance Manager/CFO 

VIA: Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM 8.1.d – OTHER FINANCIAL REPORTS

Discussion: 

Presented here are financial-related items for your review. 

1. Accounts receivable overview.
a. Shown below is the makeup of the various account types that have past due

balances over 60 days with amounts greater than $50.00.  This includes their current
outstanding balances as part of the total.

 Accounts  Outstanding Over 90 Days 

Commercial/Industrial 11 $9,013 $1,357 

Multi-Family Residential 8 $12,461 $126 

Single Family Residential 1,431 $459,583 $52,572 

SFR (Nov 2022) 1,095 $371,497 $41,011 

b. Staff continues efforts to work with the customers and offer payment arrangements
to encourage payment on outstanding balances.  Currently, we have 25
arrangements as of December 31.  The amount in an arrangement is $46,253.96
with $18,587 already collected and $27,667 outstanding.

2. Revenue Projections (attachment):
a. Revenue projections for 2022 based on selling 17,000 AF shown as of December

31, revenue is behind projections by approximately $901 Thousand.  This amount
has the drought surcharge included.

3. The 2023 Rate Assistance Program has started the application process.  Initial qualified
applicants as on January 9 are 441 with 281 seniors, 8 veterans, and 152 low-income.  This
has 259 spaces still available.

4. Payment transactions by type (attachment).

5. Billing and collection statistics (attachment).

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1.d



Dec, $12,615

Dec, $11,714

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

x
10

00
00

2022 Revenue Projections Based on 17,000 AF

Projected Consumption Actual Consumption Budgeted Revenue Actual Revenue



Payment Type 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Electronic 43,590 61,989 95,446 106,870 124,881 141,393 153,408 167,351 178,355 185,683 211,276 219,966 219,982

Front Counter 76,023 81,539 75,723 73,557 70,599 62,841 57,296 52,950 50,748 48,047 10,314 5,335 16,390
Mail & Drop Box 154,303 137,945 104,630 93,819 84,407 77,916 68,919 61,349 56,771 53,318 53,967 50,047 43,353

Telephone 18,550 22,746 24,635 27,431 24,921 20,894 20,273 16,947 17,068 16,817 16,412 11,369 13,855
Total 292,464 304,219 300,434 301,677 304,808 303,044 299,896 298,597 302,942 303,865 291,969 286,717 293,580

Detail of Electronic Payments 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
META - ACH Pymt 8,286 7,747 7,469 7,837 3,027 3,233 1,622 1,695 1,676 1,694 1,724 1,700 1,607

WES - ACH Pymt 377 809 913 1,036 971 972 995 1,022 976 917 886 780 756
INF - Website Pymts 34,927 49,602 63,919 70,399 73,349 77,813 82,246 90,409 97,384 103,872 118,195 126,608 132,149

IVR - Automated Pay ## 0 0 0 0 13,035 23,607 28,788 32,680 35,010 36,813 41,111 40,277 38,997
KIOSK - Automated Pay $$ 0 0 0 0 0 366 1,296 1,504 2,044 1,385 359 33 188
PNM - Automated Pay %% 0 0 0 0 0 0 815 2,897 4,268 4,717 8,948 10,349 8,685

VAN - ACH Pymt && 0 3,831 23,145 27,598 34,499 35,402 37,646 37,144 36,997 36,285 40,053 40,219 37,600
Total 43,590 61,989 95,446 106,870 124,881 141,393 153,408 167,351 178,355 185,683 211,276 219,966 219,982

Payment Transactions By Types Jan Dec

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Electronic

Front Counter

Mail & Drop Box

Telephone





A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 N

O
. 5.2.a



AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.2.a









MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE PERSONNEL COMMITTEE OF THE 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT, OCTOBER 12, 2022: 

A meeting of the Personnel Committee of the Palmdale Water District was held Wednesday, 
October 12, 2022, at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale, CA 93550 and via teleconference. Chair 
Mac Laren-Gomez called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 

1) Roll Call. 

Attendance: 
Committee: 
Kathy Mac Laren-Gomez, Chair 
Scott Kellerman, 

Committee Member 

2) Adoption of Agenda. 

Others Present: 
Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 
Adam Ly, Assistant General Manager 
Dennis Hoffmeyer, Finance Manager 
Angelica Barragan-Garcia, Human Resources Director 
Judy Shay, Public Affairs Director 
Dawn Deans, Executive Assistant 
0 members of the public 

General Manager LaMoreaux requested Agenda Item No. 4.4 be revised to 
"Update and discussion on 2022 Salary Survey" after which it was moved by 
Committee Member Kellerman, seconded by Chair Mac Laren-Gomez, and 
unanimously carried by all members of the Committee present at the meeting to adopt 
the agenda, as amended, revising Agenda Item No. 4.4. 

3) Public Comments for Non-Agenda Items. 

There were no public comments for non-agenda items. 

4) Action Items: (The Public Shall Have an Opportunity to Comment on Any 
Action Item as Each Item is Considered by the Committee Prior to Action Being 
Taken.) 

4.1) Consideration and Possible Action on Approval of Minutes of Meeting 
Held September 13, 2022. 

It was moved by Committee Member Kellerman, seconded by Chair Mac Laren
Gomez, and unanimously carried by all members of the Committee present at the 

~1~ 



OCTOBER 12, 2022 
PERSONNEL 

COMMITTEE MEETING 

meeting to approve the minutes of the Personnel Committee meeting held September 
13, 2022, as written. 

4.2) Consideration and Possible Action on a Recommendation to Add a 
Senior/Associate Engineer, an Operations Technician, and a Human Resources 
Analyst to the Organization Chart. ($527,518.00 Maximum Salary Impact - Human 
Resources Director Barragan-Garcia) 

Human Resources Director Barragan-Garcia provided an overview of the need to 
add these positions to the Organization Chart, and after a brief discussion of temporary 
staff, it was moved by Committee Member Kellerman, seconded by Chair Mac Laren
Gomez, and unanimously carried by all members of the Committee present at the 
meeting that the Committee concurs with staff's recommendation to add a 
Senior/ Associate Engineer, an Operations Technician, and a Human Resources Analyst 
to the Organization Chart at a maximum salary impact of $527,518.00 and that this item 
be presented to the full Board for consideration at the October 24, 2022 Regular Board 
Meeting. 

4.3) Consideration and Possible Action on a Recommendation to Approve a 
Part-Time I.T. Technician to the I.T. Department. ($35,800.00 - Potential Budget 
Impact - Human Resources Director Barragan-Garcia) 

Human Resources Director Barragan-Garcia provided an overview of the need to 
add this position to the LT. Department after which it was moved by Committee 
Member Kellerman, seconded by Chair Mac Laren-Gomez, and unanimously carried by 
all members of the Committee present at the meeting that the Committee concurs with 
staff's recommendation to add a part-time LT. Technician to the LT. Department at a 
potential budget impact of $35,800.00 and that this item be presented to the full Board 
for consideration at the October 24, 2022 Regular Board Meeting. 

4.4) Update and Discussion on 2022 Salary Survey. (Budget Impact - To Be 
Determined - Human Resources Director Barragan-Garcia) 

Human Resources Director Barragan-Garcia stated that work continues on the 
2022 Salary Survey; that data comparisons to date indicate the District is aligned on its 
salaries; and that the survey data will be presented to staff prior to being presented to 
the Committee for consideration. 

~2~ 



OCTOBER 12, 2022 
PERSONNEL 

COMMITTEE MEETING 

4.5) Discussion of 2023 Budget Items. (Finance Manager Hoffmeyer/Human 
Resources Director Barragan-Garcia) 

Finance Manager Hoffmeyer provided an overview of 2023 Budget items 
regarding personnel matters, including salaries, the cost-of-living adjustment, benefits, 
and healthcare and CalPERS expenses. 

5) Reports: 

5.1) Human Resources Director Barragan-Garcia: 

a) Update on Employee Events. 

Human Resources Director Barragan-Garcia stated that last week was Water 
Professionals Appreciation Week, and the District planned activities for employees; that 
next week is open enrollment, and ACW A/JPIA representatives will be at the District on 
October 18 presenting changes and information regarding 2023 benefits; and that this 
year's holiday dinner event will be at Vincent Hill Station. 

b) Update on Human Resources/Payroll Program. 

She then stated that staff continues to meet with vendors to transition to a new 
Human Resources/Payroll Program; that three companies are being considered; and 
that a final vendor will be presented to the Finance Committee for consideration. 

c) Other. 

She then stated that there are no other items to report. 

6) Board Members' Requests for Future Agenda Items. 

There were no requests for future agenda items. 

7) Date of Next Committee Meeting. 

After a brief discussion, it was determined that the next Personnel Committee 
meeting will be held November 9, 2022 at 3:00 p.m. 

~3~ 



8) Adjournment. 

OCTOBER 12, 2022 
PERSONNEL 

CO1\1MITTEE MEETING 

There being no further business to come before the Personnel Committee, the 
meeting was adjourned at 1:26 p.m. 

~4~ 


	AGENDA February 13, 2023
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.3
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.4
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.5
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.6
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1.a
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1.b
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1.c
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1.d
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.2.a

	Specification NoRow1: N/A
	EquipmentMaterialRow1: Plastic Pipe & Fittings
	ManufacturerSupplierRow1: Spears
	Delivery Time weeksRow1: 4 weeks
	Specification NoRow2: 
	EquipmentMaterialRow2: 
	ManufacturerSupplierRow2: 
	Delivery Time weeksRow2: 
	Specification NoRow3: 
	EquipmentMaterialRow3: 
	ManufacturerSupplierRow3: 
	Delivery Time weeksRow3: 
	Specification NoRow4: 
	EquipmentMaterialRow4: 
	ManufacturerSupplierRow4: 
	Delivery Time weeksRow4: 
	Specification NoRow5: 
	EquipmentMaterialRow5: 
	ManufacturerSupplierRow5: 
	Delivery Time weeksRow5: 
	Specification NoRow6: 
	EquipmentMaterialRow6: 
	ManufacturerSupplierRow6: 
	Delivery Time weeksRow6: 
	Specification NoRow7: 
	EquipmentMaterialRow7: 
	ManufacturerSupplierRow7: 
	Delivery Time weeksRow7: 
	Spec Section 1: N/A
	Spec Section 2: 
	Spec Section 3: 
	Spec Section 4: 
	Spec Section 5: 
	EquipmentManufacturer 1: 
	EquipmentManufacturer 2: 
	EquipmentManufacturer 3: 
	EquipmentManufacturer 4: 
	undefined: 
	1: Amber Steel Company
	2: All In One Electrical        
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	1_2: 268566- C50
	2_2: 493060- C10
	3_2: 
	4_2: 
	5_2: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 
	9: 
	10: 
	11: 
	12: 
	13: 
	6_2: 
	7_2: 
	8_2: 
	9_2: 
	10_2: 
	11_2: 
	12_2: 
	13_2: 
	1_3: P.O Box 900, Rialto, CA 92377           
	2_3: 24740 Meadview Ave, Newhall, CA 91321
	3_3: 
	4_3: 
	5_3: 
	6_3: 
	7_3: 
	8_3: 
	9_3: 
	10_3: 
	11_3: 
	12_3: 
	13_3: 
	Work 1: 0.9%  
	Work 2: 16.8%
	Work 3: 
	Work 4: 
	Work 5: 
	Work 6: 
	Work 7: 
	Work 8: 
	Work 9: 
	Work 10: 
	Work 11: 
	Work 12: 
	Work 13: 
	1_4: Rebar                                
	2_4: Electrical & Instrumentation
	3_4: 
	4_4: 
	5_4: 
	6_4: 
	7_4: 
	8_4: 
	9_4: 
	10_4: 
	11_4: 
	12_4: 
	13_4: 


